ZE@ON RE |= | r\E
LiBERRFEEBRNBIRAT]
Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited

(RAPFEARKANBEEMRLOROBRDT)

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability )
BRHAR 2570

Stock Code : 2570

2024

ANNUAL REPORT £

%




CONTENTS H &%

2 Corporation Information
RNEEHR

6 Definitions
B

13 Financial Highlights
DBHE

15 Chairman’s Statement
EERYE

18 Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERWR DN

34 Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
EE - ESReAEBAESNERE

52 Report of Directors
BExERE

94 Report of Supervisory Committee
EEERE

98 Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

128 Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR RS

137 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBHER

139 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
REZEWER

141 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MBMRRR

144 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREEEX

147 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meReREx

151 Notes to Financial Statements

PR R AR MR



02 | 03 ShanghaiREFIRE Group Limited | L/8EBaREERHBER AR

CORPORATION INFORMATION

NRIEFR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LIN Qi (#83&) (Chairman of the Board)
Dr. HU Zhe (#A%)

Ms. MA Audrey Jing Nan (55 &2 18)

Dr. ZHAI Shuang (2 %)

Mr. ZHAO Yongsheng (87K &)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. LIU Huiyou (2l k&)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Wei (Z21E)
Dr. QIAN Meifen ($2E%)
Mr. CHEN Fei (FR7¢)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. CHEN Fei (BRF) (Chairman)
Mr. LI Wei (Z21&)
Dr. QIAN Meifen (823 %)

REMUNERATION AND APPRAISAL COMMITTEE

Mr. LI Wei (Z2{&) (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Huiyou (Bl& &)
Dr. QIAN Meifen ($3%%%)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr. QIAN Meifen ($83£25) (Chairlady)
Mr. LIN Qi (FRZa)
Mr. LI Wei (Z51&)

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

Mr. LIN Qi (#838) (Chairman)
Dr. HU Zhe (#8%0)

Mr. ZHAQ Yongsheng (#57k &)
Mr. LIU Huiyou (Bl&€ &)

Mr. CHEN Fei (FR7)

B8
HITES
WL (FER)
L
BaiLt
wEHL
S
FUTES
EREE

BFIITES
FREE
BESEL
BRI

FHEER
BRARSEE (£/E)

FERE
BXIBL

FMREREES

FERELE(LE)
ferrt
BESEL

REZRS
BEFWL (ZF)

M KL
FREE

BRESE
MBS (/)
WL
S
BEREE
B



2024 %3 | ANNUALREPORT 2024 | REF

[N

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Mr. WU Yang (E,7¥) (Chairman)

Mr. ZHANG Cheng (58#2) (appointed with effect from August 21, 2024)

Mr. ZHOU Wei (B28) (resigned with effect from August 21, 2024)

Mr. JI Yizhi (Z2—7K) (resigned with effect from February 19, 2025)

Mr. WANG Chugi (T2 4#)

Mr. SUN Bei (J£1t) (resigned with effect from January 27, 2025)

Mr. LIU Tiezhong (Z187) (appointed with effect from January 27, 2025)
Mr. DONG Yazhou (Z3eM) (appointed with effect from February 19, 2025)

LEGAL ADVISER

As to Hong Kong Laws
O'Melveny & Myers

31/F, AIA Central

1 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

As to PRC Laws

Tian Yuan Law Firm

Suite 509, Tower A, Corporate Square
35 Financial Street

Xicheng District

Beijing

PRC

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Maxa Capital Limited

Unit 2602, 26/F, Golden Centre
188 Des Voeux Road Central
Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. ZHENG Zhong (Ef )
Mr. POON Ping Yeung (& 3%45)

CORPORATION INFORMATION
REER

o

RAFSE(EE)

SRR (Ro0249F8 521 H LG IEI)
AR (R2024F8 A 21 AR IEFELT)
F—ERE (R2025F2 719 AL IEIEIT)
TR A

BAb Ak (R20254F 1 27 AR I HE(TE)
RIS S (2025481 A 27 A BTt 1E1T)
BN (R202592 419 HFIGHEE)

EERER

BT EBET
B

TFrEEP 1R
RASEPLINE

BT B A1E
RILEEN S
]

=™

PIk [
ERIAE355%

A BEARES098E T

B R

EBRERBRAA
o

FIR

fEEhEFR 1885

S BRI 26182602 F

BEARWE
Wkt
ERBL



04 | 05  Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited | L/8EBaREERHBER AR

CORPORATION INFORMATION
ARER

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. LIN Qi (#R3%)
Mr. POON Ping Yeung (& 515)

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN CHINA

Room 1004, 1/F, Unit 1
1555 Jingyuan Road
Jiading District
Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

19/F, Golden Centre
188 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Construction Bank Corporation
Shanghai Jianggiao Subbranch

No. 138, Jiayi Road

Jianggiao Town

Jiading District

Shanghai

PRC

REAR

METE
ERBELE

AMMEERTEEEE RIS

FREd

E™

ZTE

VIR K 155558
1HE1/EB1004E
ERTEEEME
BB

BEEP 1885]
PO

HiR & 25 B E

EERREFLHFELHRAA
E

BT

ERKRBER1835E

A AL

171

1712171657 4

FEFREIT
PR IRTT BT B AT
B

am

REER

AR

=1RE1385%



2024 %% | ANNUALREPORT2024 | REFIRE

PRINCIPAL BANKS (continued)

Bank of China

Putuo Subbranch

No. 831, Changshou Road
Jing'an District

Shanghai

PRC

Bank of Nanjing
Xuhui Subbranch
No. 80, Nandan Road
Xuhui District
Shanghai

PRC

AUDITORS AND REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS

Ernst & Young

Certificated Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One TaiKoo Place

979, King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

2570

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.refire.com

CORPORATION INFORMATION

FTEERRIT(E)

PRI TEPE 21T
H

&

B
REHES315E

ARRITIREX T
R

=0

RER

AT 8055

BBET R RGN

LK GFHADETEFR
PRI
LB Tl o B R BT
B

#5808

HEEI795R
RNty — 2718

R A L8R

2570

ACIEEY

www.refire.com

NAER



Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited | £38E

BreREERNDERDF

In this annual report, the following terms shall have the following meanings,

except otherwise stated:

“affiliate(s)”

[BEAL]

"AGM”

[FERRE]

"Articles” or "Articles of Association”

(B2 R AEERE]

"associate(s)”

B::E YN

"Audit Committee”

[BAEEE]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

=g

"CG Code”
[{ZEERFA ]

“China” or "PRC”

(B

“close associate(s)”

[ETHEA

RAFHRF - MXESEMEIN - THFERE
BEBTHE

with respect to any specified person, any other person, directly or indirectly,
controlling or controlled by or under direct or indirect common control with such
specified person

MEMBEALME @ BEEIMEEETIZSEALTRETZTEA L EERRHEE
Sk B AT TE A B R st X LRI ) (AT ELA A

the forthcoming 2024 annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Monday,
May 19, 2025
HERARR 202565 A198 (RB—) BTN AR AEE2024FFERRE

the articles of association of our Company (as amended from time to time)

RAFMRAER (ETEET)

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

BE ETRAIE T ANRE

the audit committee of our Board

EExgETLREe

the board of Directors

B9

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

R R ERC1 AT (b F E VR ST R

the People’s Republic of China, which only in the context of describing PRC rules, laws,
regulations, regulatory authority, and any PRC entities or citizens under such rules, laws
and regulations and other legal or tax matters in this annual report, excludes Taiwan,
Hong Kong and the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China

REARSME - ERAFRPAROTERA SRR ER - BERBELRZSE
RA ERIERAREMEB AR BE TOEMNFREEERARME @ T8EF

M5 PEESRFEARAFMBRFIFFIITHE

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

A LRI T ANRE
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“Company” or “our Company”

[AA7]]

“Components for Fuel Cell System”

AR E b R TR

“Components for Fuel Cell Vehicles"

R /B T EP T

"

‘connected person(s)

[BEAL]

‘core connected person(s)”

[T BEAL]

"CSRCY
[hEEES]

"Director(s)”

[E%]

“Domestic Share(s)”

[AE ]

"EIT"
RS

"EIT Law”
[{IREMETIE)]

Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited (/B E2aEREBMMDBERAF]), a joint stock
company with limited liability incorporated in the PRC, the predecessor of which
was Shanghai REFIRE Group Ltd. (E/BEZEREEABR AR (formerly known as
Hangzhou REFIRE Technology Co., Ltd. (EZg2)REHE (TN BBRAF)), a limited
liability company established in the PRC on September 18, 2015, and if the context
requires, includes its predecessor

FEEERREERNARAR  —KAERBEFMEZHBRMHERAR - HAl
REBELRREEERAR (FIBELRREIE (MM)BRAF) » —FKK20
FORBAEFRBKYMNBREMEAR - IXEFME - BEENS

=
15

components self-developed and produced by our Group, including fuel cell stacks,
MEAs, bipolar plates, hydrogen circulation systems, DC-to-DC boost converters, etc.
AEBBEMELEENTEY  SERHNELEE  BEEZ  EER  SBRRRE
g BEmTEERRE

components sold to our customers for producing fuel cell vehicles, including hydrogen
supply systems, fuel cell engine accessories, energy storage systems, etc.
MEFHENBREERHSLIENTEMN  BREESERR NS EIK
Mot - e RS

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

AR EMRAE T ZARNRE

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

AR LR T ARz

8

China Securities Reqgulatory Commission (FBlEAEBEHELZES)

TREESEEEELZE®

the director(s) of our Company

RRRES

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each, which are subscribed for in Renminbi

RAFRAREGREEARE1.00THEBR - AARERE

enterprise income tax

EEMEHR

the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law A R AFIE TS TIE))
(FREE AR EMB S EAEHE)
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BreREERNDERDF

“Employee Incentive Schemes”

[E T mE=ta ]

"ESOP Platforms”

[BIEBEITS]

"o

"Group”, “our Group’, “we’,
"us” or “our” or "REFIRE"

[ E s[RI ELREIR]

"H Share(s)"

[HAZ ]

"o

“H Share Registrar”
[HiREHE R ]

“Hong Kong" or "HK"

(&%

“Hong Kong dollars” or "HKS"

[

“Stock Exchange”

[ B2 P

“|FRSs”

[ B 1 75 3R

“Listing”
[ £

8|

EC

the employee incentive schemes of our Company which were adopted or last
amended on January 21, 2024
RRRR2024F1 A21 BERRSEIHERTH 8 TRUEET &)

Shanghai Weilan, Shanghai Weiging, Shanghai Weijing, Shanghai Weijun, Shanghai
Yuanyiging, Shanghai Weiyi and Canada ESOP Platform, and an “ESOP Platform” shall
mean any one of them as the context may require

FBER - BEERNE - DERE - BERE - BRI - DERERINEXRE
ITHRREHEIT A - RIEXEME - [ 8 THRRETEIT & e H AP EA—E

our Company and all of its subsidiaries, or any one of them as the context may require

RRBREMEHBRRHIREME - EPEA—K QA

overseas listed ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with a nominal
value of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars and
listed on the Stock Exchange
RATRAHEFREEARE 1.007THRIN EHEBA - LUBTTRE R 5 W pA B
R ET

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

BEPREFBLERAF

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEEFRITTRR

Hong Kong dollars and cents, respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT - BEENEEER

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBARSMAR AT

International Financial Reporting Standards

B B 75 s 5 22 Al

the listing of the H Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
HAR 7 B 32 BT = AR T
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“Listing Date”
[ EH A
“Listing Rules”

[ EmsR Al

“Main Board”

[E1R]

“Model Code”

[RE<TAl

“"MOF"
[ 4B ]

“Nomination Committee”

[fRREL 8]

“PRC Company Law”

[{RERRNE)]

"PRC Government”

[ B |

“PRC Legal Adviser”

[ BA R

"Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”
[ER AR ERERERT S

December 6, 2024, on which the H Shares are first listed and dealings in the H Shares

are first commenced on the Stock Exchange
2024F12 A6 B+ HIRFERE XA B R T 0 B R FERS 22 P B B /O B

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time)

(BAMERHARARESR EMRRAD (ETRERT - s AR M AER)

the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel with the GEM of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

FEBMTEENREDS (FREPETS) BUREEBIMGEM A BET
TTEE

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in

Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
FHRAINERCI S LM BT ABRETERFRZNRLETE

Ministry of Finance of the PRC (FP 2= A R £ FN B B B EB)
rREE AR SN E B B D

the nomination committee of our Board

ExgR%%Be

the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (FZEARKEFBEQFE)), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

(REARKMBEREE) EIRERT - MR RIAEAMT U E%)

the central government of the PRC and all governmental subdivisions (including
provincial, municipal and other regional or local government entities) and
instrumentalities thereof or, where the context requires, any of them
TEPRBFRAEBRNS X (B4 - mRkEMmES T RIFER) A RG]
R - SUREME - AP EA—REE

Tian Yuan Law Firm, the legal adviser of our Company as to the PRC laws

RILEMERH - AR BERETBEEROERER

the share option scheme adopted by our Company on January 21, 2024
ANER 20241 21 BERNH B RS
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BreREERNDERDF

"Prospectus”

[ R =L

“REFIRE Technology”

[EE R

“Remuneration and Appraisal

Committee”

[FREEZZ R e

“Renminbi” or "RMB”"
[AR®

“Reporting Period”

[ R & HAA

“R&D"
[ ]

“Securities and Futures

Commission” or “SFC"

(B

"SFO”

[

o

7 R HEE 1561 ]

“Shanghai Unilia"

[ LB E]

“Shanghai Weijing”

[ L/ERTE]

the prospectus issued by the Company and published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange on November 28, 2024
AR RIPR20245F 11 A28 AEEAR R B R Bt 32 P8 uh B M ) IR Z 42

Shanghai REFIRE Technology Co., Ltd. (E/BE2BEEIREHE AR A R]), a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on December 17, 2014 and one of our subsidiaries
EEEBEREBERAT - —KR2014F 12817 AEPEZEMAZNERET
NaE - WARMOMERAG .2 —

the remuneration and appraisal committee of our Board

EEeyREERLZES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARY - PEEEEY

year ended December 31, 2024
BHZE2024F12A31BILFE

research and development

o M g

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

BARRF M EEHERZEE

S

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as

amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BREDFS71 BCESF RAEGD) (B REHER] ~ fFrs A E T X&)

Unilia (Shanghai) Fuel Cells Inc. (E/8RBEFEREHEERAR]), a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on May 23, 2017 and one of our subsidiaries
LEBEMEREERERAR - —KMR201745 A23BEFBIEMA I ERERE
AAE - WARMOMEARZ—

Shanghai Weijing Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (/&&f
RERBHEREEERER)), one of our ESOP Platforms
FERREEHAAREE(BRERE)  RANEIHKRTEITa 2 —
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“Shanghai Weijun”

[ EBETEE

“Shanghai Weilan”

[ E&ER]

“Shanghai Weiqging”

[ LBRE]

“Shanghai Weiyi”

[ EERE]

)

"

“Shanghai Yuanyiging”

[ BRI

“Share(s)"

[Bfn ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[AR 3R]

“State Council”

[ B |

“Strategy Committee”

[BREZEE]

"

“subsidiary(ies)
=G

“substantial shareholder(s)

2R

"

Shanghai Weijun Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (E/EETEE

BEBRAABLEERAE)), one of our ESOP Platforms
FERS®RERZFAGREE (BRERE)  RMIMEIEREIFEa 22—

Shanghai Weilan Business Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (_t /&5 5 75
HBIEREEERER)), one of our ESOP Platforms

FBEEEGHRAEREE (BREAR)  BMNEIRRFAEITAZ—

Shanghai Weiging Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (/8 E¥
BEBBASREEBERAER)), one of our ESOP Platforms
FBENEERBRGELE (BREAX)  BMOEIRRASE TR —

Shanghai Weiyi Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (_E/8Ef (&
BB AGBLEERER)), one of our ESOP Platforms
FEREEREZACECE(ARER)  BMNEIHRTETEZ—

Shanghai Yuanyiging Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (_t/&
BRI ERH ARG REEERAR)), one of our ESOP Platforms
LERTEERZAGBREE (BRAER)  AANBEIHEFAETEZ—

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00

each, including both Domestic Shares and H Shares

AARBRARFREAEARE100THNEEE - BIEREREHK

holder(s) of our Share(s)

BOFBEA

the State Council of the PRC (FP 2 A R 2L H0 B B 7455
fhEE AR RANE H %R

the strategy committee of our Board
EERUREEY

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

BA LRI T ARNRE

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

A LRI T ARNRE
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“Supervisor(s)” member(s) of our Supervisory Committee

[B5%] B EREeXE

“Supervisory Committee” the supervisory committee of our Company

== B ARAEFEE

"United States” or "U.S.” the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas subject to its
jurisdiction

[ ] B OENREAREH - HEL  BHEXEEEEMNMEHE

“U.S. dollars”, “USS" or "USD”" United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

=l B OERL EEEEER

"%" per cent

[%] 15 Btk

Note: The English translation of Chinese names of entities included in this annual report is prepared for identification purpose only.

Kret - AFEHAEBER D X RWH B RV EHBHIRGER -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

For the year ended December 31,

EZ12A31BLEEE

2024 2023 2022 2021
20244 20234 20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥F AREEFTT ARBFT AR®TT
Revenue Y A 648,775 895,278 604,648 524,109
Gross Profit 7] 111,766 179,616 49,823 61,785
Loss before income tax k& PS5 AT & 18 -779,606 -579,768 -545,473 -650,302
Loss for the year FFAE51E -777,759 -577,531 546,099 -654,292
Loss per share attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year
FARRQ AR EGTRETE -9.03 -6.51 -6.73 -8.81
Total assets A& 4,692,131 4,036,575 4,141,134 2,494,243
Total liabilities B {&42%8 2,753,042 2,286,111 1,902,002 1,957,788
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
RABHEE ANEGER 2,036,150 1,824,400 2,271,548 566,024
Cash and Cash equivalents I8 & I8 & S(EY) 883,356 664,510 1,079,456 276,220

Note: The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange on December 6, 2024.

Biat - RRAIHAR R 202412 A6 B EB R AT E4R £
o
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During the Reporting Period, total revenue was approximately RMB648.8
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 27.5%;
among which, the revenue from overseas regions increased by
approximately 151.7% year-on-year, and sales revenue of hydrogen
fuel cell systems for non-vehicle scenarios increased by approximately

132.6% year-on-year;

During the Reporting Period, gross profit was approximately RMB111.8

million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 37.8%;

During the Reporting Period, the loss attributable to the owners of the
Company was approximately RMB737.3 million, as compared to the loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately RMB529.5

million for the Previous Period;

During the Reporting Period, the adjusted net loss (non-IFRS measure) of
the Company was approximately RMB417.0 million, as compared to the
adjusted net loss (non-IFRS measure) of the Company of approximately
RMB471.4 million for the Previous Period, representing a year-on-year

decrease of approximately 11.5%;

During the Reporting Period, the net outflow of cash flows used in
operating activities was approximately RMB393.2 million, while the net
outflow of cash flows used in operating activities of the Company during
the Previous Period was approximately RMB718.4 million, representing a

year-on-year decrease of approximately 45.3%; and

No dividends were declared for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Note:"Adjusted net loss (non-IFRS measure)” refers to the net loss for the year adjusted

by deducting share-based payments and listing expenses.

2
a

RiE R BIRANABARK6488HE
T R A #927.5% o H A AR &S
@ AU AR L IG IN4I151.7% - IEE RS
SR ED RGHE AR I NL
132.6%

RIEEH - EAHNAAREI11188E8
7T+ R #937.8%

REEHRD  ARREEARGBREOA
ARE7373BE L MBEBEARRE
BEANEGREBEHNAARES2SHETT

RERE IR - AR ARG AR EE GERER
MM ELEAFE)INRARK47.088

BT R A A L AR FEE (GER
BB RS EAGT 2)NAARKI48E
7T IR 4911.5% :

REEHR - K2EHAARSMFRD
HR/ARK3G28ET - MBTHEARR
AR EEHMARERFRLONAARKE
7184 B &TT - LR HI453%: &

HE2024F 1231 B FETET RIEM
fEE -

C[ERARFER CGEERM BRE LR E) R0

B DA R 25 B0 1 31 B 1 59 3% 0 38 88 9 4 P
A -
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2024 marks a significant milestone in the development history of the
Company. On December 6, 2024, we were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, opening a new chapter in the

Company'’s development.

Since its establishment in 2015, REFIRE has been dedicated to the research
and development of hydrogen technology, building a hydrogen industry
ecosystem, and promoting large-scale commercial applications. By upholding
the mission of “continuously building corporate competitiveness, becoming
a global leading hydrogen technology enterprise, and creating a sustainable
future”, we have experienced remarkable growth and transformation, evolving
from a startup to a significant player in the industry. We have established
a comprehensive technology framework across the entire industrial chain
in the fields of fuel cells and hydrogen production equipment, providing
the market with a one-stop solution for hydrogen production and its end
applications. We are also collaborating with upstream and downstream
partners to explore commercial scenarios for hydrogen energy and promote

the commercial application of hydrogen technology.

In the past year, the hydrogen energy industry has entered a critical
transformation phase, shifting from being policy-driven to market-driven. We
remain committed to innovation by continuously advancing technological
research and product optimization, and enhancing the performance and
reliability of our fuel cell stacks and systems, to provide our customers
with more stable and reliable solutions. Additionally, we are making steady
progress in forward-looking research on hydrogen energy technologies
and the pre-research of next-generation products, further expanding our
exploration of front-end technologies within the global supply chain.
These efforts have consistently improved our technology and product
competitiveness, reinforcing our position as an industry leader in research,

development, and technical expertise.

Q04FRARBREFES FEEEREEERN—
F2024F 12 A6 BRMEBTBR S ERKN
£ AT ARFNEREE -

FEERAZT—AFAIILAR AR
@ﬁ%ﬂ&bﬁﬁ}m&mﬁﬂﬁ’f&FuuE-ﬂ%é - ERE
EERBEURAELCHERRAEE - MR
BEBEEECERTF N RARHELNE
ﬂ&¢%’%ﬁ%ﬂ&%LTFf¥F$XJ
CoFde BB ERTRTE— - H—F
+Eﬁ&§%ﬂ@a B o HMERTERBE M
ARBESNEEXBARENGRE - 805
MSRERE REmER - AR TR - I
AL THFERRAERELESS A
BERI B R B o

BER—F > QRETEEARBRESE O D
HIREOEREOS - LMBRHEFED - &
BHERMAZEEREL  HERABHE
mMEEMRAGA SN AREFPRHEEREN S
HRRRTT 2 BB ETR A HEdE AL AT BE BT
MERT—REMEH  E—THEZIRMHE
PEE) IR IR R E@Wﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ1f’ﬁ$tﬁﬂ%
FATINEMMERBRR N - RETITERSE
B MM E 77 -
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We have maintained the stability and leadership of our core business
in vehicle fuel cells. We have not only engaged in more demonstration
projects in fuel cell vehicle demonstration city clusters but also achieved
large-scale commercial applications of hydrogen-powered heavy-duty
trucks in markets without subsidies. Our product technology has met the
stringent requirements of the scenarios for the operation of heavy-duty
trucks. By continuously exploring avenues for the commercialization of
hydrogen-powered heavy-duty trucks, we have solidified our advantages
in this sector. At the same time, we have made progress in hydrogen
energy ecology projects aimed at the future. The first phase of our project
to integrate green hydrogen production, storage, transportation, and
application in Taiyang Mountain, Ningxia, officially began construction in
November 2024. We are also actively looking into replicating this model in
other areas with suitable resources, aiming to create a hydrogen energy
ecological cycle tailored to local conditions while driving our products and
technologies toward larger-scale commercial applications. Our focus is on
the Chinese market, while we also persist with our development in global
markets, providing customers worldwide with hydrogen energy technology
solutions. Our international market business has continued to grow,

establishing a solid foundation for greater growth in the future.

We will remain committed to our pioneering spirit, continuously expanding
the diverse applications of hydrogen technology. We have made significant
strides in new application scenarios, including electric vehicle supercharging,
mining machinery, oil and gas field operations, port ships, and rail transit. By
taking the lead in exploring demonstration application projects to validate
the commercial prospects of hydrogen technology in these fields, we have
accumulated valuable experience in research and development, engineering,
manufacturing, and service in these new scenarios, and enhanced customer

trust in the broader market.
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Looking ahead, we will remain committed to advancing the
commercialization of hydrogen energy technologies. By focusing
on key markets and priority products, we will continue to expand
application scenarios for hydrogen energy commercialization, enhance
the competitiveness of our technologies, products, and services, and
build stronger commercialization capabilities. This enables us to deliver
cutting-edge hydrogen energy technology solutions to global clients,
continuously improve sustainable operational capabilities, achieve
high-quality corporate development, and create greater value for our

shareholders.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management and all employees of the Group for their
hard work and dedication. | would also like to extend my heartfelt thanks
to all our shareholders, partners, customers, suppliers, and others who have

consistently supported us.

Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited
Mr. LIN Qi

Chairman of the Board

Shanghai, the PRC, April 25, 2025
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In 2024, China’s top-level policy design for hydrogen energy became
more comprehensive. The Government Work Report (BT LYEZRE)),
as promulgated by the State Council of the People’s Republic of China,
proposed accelerating the development of emerging hydrogen energy
industries. The “Guiding Opinions on Accelerating Green Development in
Manufacturing” and the “Guidance on Accelerating the Comprehensive
Green Transformation of Economic and Social Development” proposed to
promote the entire hydrogen energy supply chain, covering production,
storage, transportation, and utilization. In November 2024, the Energy Law
of the People’s Republic of China (HZE ARZEFEHEEIRE)) officially
recognized hydrogen as an energy source, placing it alongside oil, coal,
natural gas, nuclear power, and hydropower for regulatory purposes. This
decision clarified hydrogen’s strategic role within the national energy
system and its importance for green development. Hydrogen is seen as a
crucial pathway for achieving green transformation across multiple sectors,
including transportation, industry, construction, and power generation.
Globally, hydrogen's significant role in energy transition, as well as China’s
goals of reaching peak carbon emissions and achieving carbon neutrality, has
gained widespread acknowledgment. Driven by policy support and market
demand, hydrogen applications, especially in heavy-duty trucks, have seen
commercial validation and breakthroughs. Fuel cell vehicle technology has
matured, with high-power fuel cell systems now being deployed on a large
scale, facilitating heavy-load, high-speed and long-distance transportation.
The foundational work in heavy-duty truck applications has paved the way
for various uses of hydrogen and fuel cells. Demonstrations of hydrogen
applications are emerging in areas such as off-grid ultra-fast charging,
material handling, green ports, green mining, oil equipment, and railway
transportation. Integrated projects focusing on green hydrogen production,
storage, transportation, and utilization are making progress, creating an initial
hydrogen-electricity industry ecosystem that combines renewable energy
generation, electrolysis for hydrogen production, and the downstream

consumption of green hydrogen and fuel cells.
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In 2024, the hydrogen energy industry underwent a significant transition from
being policy-driven to market-driven growth. The application of hydrogen
energy expanded from demonstration city clusters to non-demonstration
city clusters in China, from commercial vehicle scenarios to other scenarios,
and from the domestic Chinese market to international markets, which
presented a series of opportunities and challenges. Throughout 2024, we
achieved steady growth. We maintained the stability and competitive
advantage of our core business in automotive fuel cells, leading the industry
in installation volumes for heavy-duty trucks. Our overseas operations
experienced significant growth, and our business innovation efforts delivered
phased successes, including the completion of product development and
initial validation for off-grid ultra-fast charging projects. Additionally, the
green hydrogen integrated project in Taiyang Mountain, Ningxia officially
commenced, marking a major advancement for the “power-hydrogen-
power” business model. On December 6, 2024, we were successfully listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, officially entering the international
capital market. This achievement represents an important milestone in the

development of the Company.

1) We are dedicated to technological innovation and are
firmly making investments in the future, to solidify
our advantages in performance, reliability, longevity,
environmental adaptability, and cost-effectiveness in
hydrogen energy technologies and expertise.

In 2024, we advanced the development of control algorithms specifically
designed for heavy-duty truck logistics scenarios to improve product
environmental adaptability and reduce cold start times, offering more
stable and reliable solutions for heavy-duty logistics. We have also
continuously upgraded our stack system products by optimizing the
production processes of membrane electrodes and refining intelligent
assembly technologies for stacks, thus significantly enhancing stack
performance and power density while increasing system reliability.
Additionally, we have successfully developed second-generation
hydrogen ultrafast charging equipment. Moreover, we have also
conducted forward-looking technology studies and pre-research for
next-generation products to promote the customized development of

core materials and back-end design matching.
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2) With our strong technical capabilities and product

advantages, we are actively promoting the deployment
of our products from demonstration city clusters to
non-demonstration city clusters in China, thereby
accelerating the commercialization of hydrogen energy
applications.

In 2024, we led the heavy-duty truck market and continuously advanced
the commercial application of hydrogen-powered trucks in coal, steel,
and chemical transportation across regions such as Shanxi, Shaanxi,
Xinjiang, Inner Mongolia, Henan, and Hebei. Within the fuel cell vehicle
demonstration city clusters, we successfully deployed over 1,000 new
vehicles. In collaboration with China Petrochemical Corporation (Ff
HA B ITEBEABRAFR), we established the “Beijing-Shanghai
Hydrogen Corridor’, completing a trial operation of 1,500 km along
the Beijing-Shanghai Expressway, marking the world’s first large-scale,
long-distance, cross-regional practical transportation test for hydrogen
vehicles, and paving the way for innovative trunk highway logistics
scenarios. Beyond automotive applications, we actively explored
and developed other commercially viable scenarios. We launched
several hydrogen ultra-fast charging stations in highway service areas,
commercial centers, and urban communities, improving the charging
experience for electric vehicle users. Additionally, in China, we deployed
the first 1.5 MW hydrogen power station as part of a "hydrogen-for-oil”
green drilling demonstration project and put into operation the first
hydrogen-powered unmanned heavy-duty mining dump truck at an

open-pit coal mine.
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3)

4)

With our comprehensive hydrogen technology solutions
covering the entire process from hydrogen production
to hydrogen application, we are actively promoting
integrated green hydrogen projects to establish a robust
hydrogen-electricity ecosystem.

The green hydrogen production, storage, transportation, and utilization
integrated project in Taiyang Mountain, Ningxia officially commenced
in 2024. In collaboration with our hydrogen-electricity ecosystem
partners, we are jointly developing the “Taiyang Mountain Model’, which
integrates wind, solar, hydrogen, storage, transmission, and utilization.
Additionally, we have signed an agreement with the Yinchuan High-Tech
Industrial Development Zone to support a green hydrogen production,
storage, transportation, and utilization integrated project. By leveraging
the experience gained from the Taiyang Mountain project, we aim to

explore and replicate the integrated green hydrogen solution model.

We continue to expand our global presence, with
our products and technologies earning international
certifications, resulting in sustainable and significant
growth in overseas markets.

In 2024, we collaborated with CRRC Qishuyan Locomotive Co., Ltd. (4
B EE#BEER AT to develop hydrogen-powered locomotives
that were exported to Chile, helping Ferrocarril de Antofagasta a
Bolivia become the first freight company in South America to use
hydrogen-powered locomotives. At the Saudi Tecshift Summit, our
hydrogen-powered heavy-duty trucks, equipped by Hyperview, made
their debut, meeting the needs for long distance transportation
and heavy loads in desert regions, leading the green transformation
of heavy-duty transport in the Middle East. Additionally, our
hydrogen-powered street-washing vehicles were officially launched at
the release event of the "Hong Kong Hydrogen Development Strategy’,
marking another hydrogen application in Hong Kong and contributing
to the improvement of the city’s environment. Furthermore, we
participated in prominent global exhibitions such as the 2024
International Hydrogen & Fuel Cell Expo in Japan and the 2024 Hannover
Messe in Germany, showcasing China's hydrogen energy achievements

and promoting international exchanges in the hydrogen industry.
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5) As a leading technology company in China’s hydrogen

6)

energy industry, we collaborate with upstream and
downstream industry partners to jointly build a hydrogen
ecosystem.

In June 2024, we signed a framework cooperation agreement with
Contemporary Amperex Technology Co., Limited (&R HT8ERE
KRB AR AT to jointly provide robust power for the hydrogen
energy and fuel cell vehicle market and explore multi-domain
hydrogen-electricity synergistic applications. Focusing on the Taiyang
Mountain project, we established strategic partnerships with Tan Kah
Kee Innovation Laboratory (32 EI¥1EEZE), Shanghai Taigingchen
Energy Technology Co. Ltd. (L& EEFEEHEAR AR, Sinopec
Engineering Incorporation (FEIA{L TIZZEFZRBR AT, Sinopec
Sales Co., Ltd. Ningxia Petroleum Branch (FEA{LEEBRARE
E R AT, FAW Jiefang New Energy Business Division (—/f# K
¥TBEIRE % 30), Weina Hydrogen Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (44X
FEERHE AR A F]), Ningxia Ruike Chemical Co., Ltd. (EEmEHMET
ABRZAF]), and other industry partners. Together with Hubei Chutian
Smart Communication Co., Ltd. (It REEZBRMHBRAF),
CAMS New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (BBHTHTEEREIRBRA
Al), and Hydrogen Integrated Power Energy Technology (Suzhou) Co.,
Ltd. (EFEBRERFIT (BRI B R A 7)), we accelerated the application
of hydrogen ultrafast charging. Additionally, we continued to expand
our collaboration with various sectors in Hong Kong to promote the

development of the hydrogen energy ecosystem.

The Company was first listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on December 6, 2024.

Listing on the Stock Exchange has not only opened up broader and
more convenient financing channels for us, helping to improve
financing efficiency and provide financial support for our technology
research and development as well as project construction; it has also
further enhanced our Company's image and brand value. During the
preparation for the listing, we optimized our management and financial
systems in accordance with compliance requirements, improving
governance standards and operational norms, which helped enhance

our overall competitiveness and reduce operating risks.
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Currently, there is a strong global and Chinese consensus on the
development of the hydrogen energy industry. China's hydrogen energy
industry policies, laws and regulations are also improving, bringing long-term
certainty to the industry’s growth. In 2025, we will continue advancing
product and technology development to meet market demands for
cost-effectiveness and performance. We will continue promoting commercial
applications of hydrogen energy with a focus on heavy-duty trucks and
expanding its application scenarios. Additionally, we will explore integrated
green hydrogen projects to build the hydrogen energy ecosystem, ensuring

our sustained high-quality development.

1) Promoting commercial applications of hydrogen energy
with a focus on heavy-duty trucks.

We will continue to expand our presence in the low-cost hydrogen
market by leveraging affordable hydrogen resources from industries such
as steel, coking, petrochemicals and chlor-alkali, alongside local freight
transport scenarios to reduce operational costs. Hydrogen-powered
heavy-duty trucks still hold immense growth potential in bulk cargo
transportation within these sectors. By capitalizing on policies like
toll reduction and exemption introduced in various regions, we aim
to broaden the application of hydrogen-powered heavy-duty trucks
in highway and medium-to-long-haul transportation scenarios,
gradually expanding the market. Furthermore, with our extensive and
comprehensive product portfolio and partnerships, we will actively
promote the commercial application in off-grid supercharging and other
diversified fields.
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2)

3)

4)

Accelerating the advancement of integrated green
hydrogen ecosystem projects to further solidify our
leadership in comprehensive hydrogen technology
solutions.

By replicating the model of integrated green hydrogen projects,
we will help local markets increase renewable energy consumption
while reducing the cost of hydrogen production from renewables. As
these projects are progressively implemented, we aim to boost sales
of hydrogen equipment and components such as water electrolysis
systems, while expanding the application of hydrogen in areas including

heavy-duty trucks, hydrogen energy storage, and power generation.

Continuing R&D efforts on fuel cell systems and hydrogen
equipment to meet market demands and support business
growth.

We will further enhance product durability, reliability, efficiency, safety,
and cost-effectiveness to gain competitive advantages and create value
for our customers. Leveraging our technological and product portfolio
spanning hydrogen production equipment to endues applications, we
will strengthen our technological edge in critical segments and deliver

comprehensive green energy solutions to customers.

Expanding our first-mover advantage overseas and
accelerating global expansion to sustain performance
growth.

Building on our ongoing global market presence, we are the first
company to achieve commercial application overseas, with bulk
orders already secured. We will continue to strengthen front-end
sales networks, build global brand awareness, and launch marketing
campaigns in broader international markets and regions, including

Europe, the Middle East, and Southeast Asia, to drive customer growth.
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I1l. FINANCIAL REVIEW

We generated revenue primarily from the (i) sales of hydrogen fuel cell
systems and components; (i) provision of fuel cell engineering and technical
services; (iii) sales of hydrogen production systems and related components;
and (iv) others, which primarily included provision of after-sales services and

sales of hydrogen energy vehicles.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's revenue amounted to
approximately RMB648.8 million, as compared to approximately
RMB895.3 million during the Previous Period, representing a decrease of
approximately 27.5%. The decrease was mainly because (i) the development
of commercialization scenarios for hydrogen energy and the construction
of related infrastructure is still in its early stage; and (ii) the fluctuations in
certain customer demands and orders, thus leading to a slight year-on-year

decrease in the revenue of hydrogen fuel cell systems and their components.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue by product type

for the years indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Hydrogen production systems and related components
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Others
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Total
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Notes:

- Components mainly included hydrogen supply systems, fuel cell engine
accessories, energy storage systems and others for fuel cell vehicles, and cell stack,
MEA, bipolar plate, DC-to-DC boost converters, hydrogen circulation systems and
others for fuel cell systems.

- Others mainly included the provision of after-sales services and sales of hydrogen
energy vehicles.

During the Reporting Period, out of the revenue of the Group, the revenue
from overseas regions amounted to RMB58.4 million, of which approximately
RMB23.2 million was incurred in the Previous Period, representing an increase
of approximately 151.7%. The increase was mainly due to (i) our continuous
marketing expansion of overseas business centered on the European, North
American and Southeast Asian markets; and (ii) the recognition of fuel cell
products and technologies by overseas customers, thus achieving sustained

and significant growth in overseas results.

During the Reporting Period, out of the revenue of the Group, the revenue
from sales of hydrogen fuel cell systems in non-vehicle scenarios amounted
to RMB54.1 million, of which approximately RMB23.3 million was incurred in
the Previous Period, representing an increase of approximately 132.6%. The
increase was mainly due to our commercial applications in various fields,

such as off-grid supercharging and power stations.

Our cost of sales primarily consists of raw materials, depreciation and
amortization of our production facilities and other fixed assets used in our
production process, employee benefit expense, and impairment losses on
inventories. Our cost of sales was RMB537.0 million in 2024, representing
a decrease of approximately 25.0% from RMB715.7 million in 2023. The
decrease was in line with the change in our revenue during the Reporting

Period.
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Our gross profit represents our revenue less the cost of sales, and our gross
profit margin represents our gross profit divided by our revenue, expressed

as a percentage.

Our gross profit decreased by approximately 37.8% from RMB179.6 million for
the Previous Period to RMB111.8 million for the Reporting Period. Our gross
profit margin decreased from approximately 20.1% for the Previous Period to
approximately 17.2% for the Reporting Period. The decrease is mainly due to
(i) the decrease in our revenue during the Reporting Period; and (ii) that the
provision for product quality guarantee funds was included in product costs

instead of sales expenses.

Our other income decreased by approximately RMB18.8 million or
approximately 32.9% from approximately RMB57.1 million for the Previous
Period to approximately RMB38.3 million for the Reporting Period, mainly
because (i) the government grants and subsidies received and recognized
during the Reporting Period decreased by approximately RMB8.4 million; and
(i) the bank interest income decreased by approximately RMB10.1T million

during the year.

The Group's selling and marketing expenses mainly increased from
approximately RMB134.8 million for the Previous Period to approximately
RMB139.5 million for the Reporting Period, mainly due to the increase in
share-based payment expenses recognized under our Company's share
option incentive scheme and employee share option schemes. After
excluding share-based payment expenses, the Group's selling and marketing
expenses mainly decreased from approximately RMB131.3 million in the
Previous Period to approximately RMB85.0 million in the Reporting Period,
mainly due to the control in selling expenses and the adjustment of
after-sales service into principal operating costs as a result of changes in the
IFRS Accounting Standards.
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The Group's administrative expenses increased from approximately RMB339.7
million for the Previous Period to approximately RMB454.9 million for the
Reporting Period, mainly due to the increase in share-based payment
expenses recognized under the Company’s share option incentive schemes
and share option schemes. After excluding share-based payment expenses
and the listing expenses, the Group’s administrative expenses mainly
decreased from approximately RMB259.1 million for the Previous Period
to approximately RMB226.8 million for the Reporting Period, mainly due
to the decrease in the number of administrative staff and the control of

administrative management expenses.

The Group's research and development expenses decreased from
approximately RMB220.9 million for the Previous Period to approximately
RMB219.4 million for the Reporting Period. After excluding share-based
payment expenses, the Group's research and development expenses mainly
decreased from approximately RMB200.8 million for the Previous Period to
approximately RMB143.8 million for the Reporting Period, mainly because
we focused on and streamlined the product lines, improved research and
development personnel activity and increased research and development

resource investment efficiency.

The Group's impairment losses on financial assets and contract assets
increased from approximately RMB64.0 million for the Previous Period to
approximately RMB69.9 million for the Reporting Period, primarily due to
the increase in the amount of provision for expected credit losses for trade

receivables.

The Group's income tax credit primarily represents the Group's total current
income tax and deferred income tax credit under the relevant income tax
rules and regulations in the jurisdictions where we operate during the year.
For the year, the Group recorded an income tax credit of approximately
RMB1.8 million (2023: approximately RMB2.2 million).
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The Group's finance costs mainly consist of interest expenses on borrowings.
For the Reporting Period, finance costs of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB57.6 million (2023: finance costs of approximately RMB47.9

million), mainly due to the increase in interest expenses on borrowings.

As a result of the foregoing, loss attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB737.3 million for the Reporting Period, as

compared to approximately RMB529.5 million for the Previous Period.

We define “adjusted net loss (non-IFRS measure)” as a loss for the year
adjusted by adding back share-based payments and listing expenses in
connection with the Company’s global offering. Share-based payments were
non-cash in nature, representing the employee incentive scheme through
which we offered share awards to our employees. The following table

reconciles our adjusted net loss (non-IFRS measure) for the years indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®E D

TEENRMEXNAFERFERFEFT - W
HHHE AEBORERRNAENARKES768
BT (2023F  MEKANABARKE479BE
JL)  EEHMMERF BRI

WEHE - AR LEARE - ARREA AEG
EEANARKE 3 73HEEL  MBTHENA
ARBSOSHEETT ©

BAIAG [ AT 8% B 1R GFBIFR B 7% s 2 AIGH
B)IEBREMEARN BRERONRRAR
AIEREERBELTHASMABRNFAER -
BN RERONREIFRSEE - BRAB
BETHBEFERESR B AORNREE - TX
SRR EERMNKRAREFER GEERET
BmEERIFE) Bk -

2024 2023

20245 2023%F

RMB’000 RMB'OO_O

ARBT T ARBFT

Loss for the year F R E518 (777,759) (577,531)

Adjustment (by adding back): &% (fnE) :

Share-based payments A% {7 3z 15 339,833 87,066
Listing expenses in connection with the Company'’s global offering

RNRRRIREERR LM% 20,957 19,084

Total &5t (416,969) (471,381)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENRE DT

As of December 31, 2024, the Group's loans were approximately RMB1,559.0
million. The proportion of the Group's non-current borrowings in the total
borrowings was approximately 32.4% as of December 31, 2024, ensuring
the healthy and stable cash flow of the Group in the future. The Directors
believe that the Group's debt level and financial structure have laid a solid
foundation for the Group to withstand market volatility and diminish financial

risks. All bank borrowings and loans are denominated in RMB.
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2024
20244
Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000
BRFE (%) IEE  ARBTT
Current 8
Bank loans — unsecured $R1TE R — EER 2.8-4.15 2025 364,467
Current portion of long-term bank loans — unsecured
REROTEFORB D — EER 2.9-4.2 2025 281,726
Current portion of long-term bank loans — secured
RERITERRB D —FER 3.6 2025 8,084
Current portion of long-term other borrowings — sale leaseback — secured
REPEMERARB IS — HERIE - BER 4 2025 45,779
Current portion of long-term other borrowings — unsecured
REEMERNRB D — EER 4 2025 93,454
Current portion of long-term other borrowings — secured
REEMERRB D —FER 4.2 2025 260,724

Subtotal - current

It — R

1,054,234
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®E D

2024
20244

Effective

interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000
B E (%) FHH  AR®TIT

Non-current JEEB)

Bank loans — unsecured $R1TE X — IR 2.9-4.2 2026-2027 409,850
Bank loans — secured $R1TE R — B &R 3.6 2029 62,000
Other borrowings — sale leaseback — secured E b {& 5k — & B 7 — &R 4 2026 32,926
Subtotal — non-current /Nat — IERED 504,776
Total &5t 1,559,010

The Group's primary sources of liquidity consist of cash generated from
operating activities, bank borrowings, and proceeds from the listing of
H Shares on the Stock Exchange. The Group's cash and cash equivalents
primarily consist of bank balances. We may require additional cash due to

changing business conditions or other future developments.

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB883.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
32.8% compared to approximately RMB664.5 million for the Previous Period.
As of December 31, 2024, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB1,426.9 million, as compared to approximately RMB1,467.5 million as of
December 31, 2023. The current ratio of the Group, which is calculated as
current assets divided by current liabilities as at the end of each financial
period, decreased to approximately 1.7 as of December 31, 2024 from
approximately 2.1 as of December 31, 2023.

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debts divided by the sum of total
capital and net debt as at the end of each financial period. The gearing ratio
remained relatively stable at 0.46 as at December 31, 2024, as compared to

the gearing ratio of 0.45 as at December 31, 2023.
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The Group did not make any significant investments, material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Reporting

Period.

As of the date of the annual report, the Company did not formulate any

future plans for material investments or capital assets in the coming year.

Pursuant to the supplemental arrangement signed with a major customer,
FAW Jiefang, who was also one of the Group’s shareholders in December
2023 and 2024, the Group has offered a guarantee that this customer will
receive subsidies related to the hydrogen fuel cell vehicle with the Group's
products embedded in from the government amounting to RMB252,560,000
before December 31, 2025 and RMB180,880,000 before December 31, 2024.
For the amount due before December 31, 2024, RMB56,056,000 has been
received in 2024 and the remaining is in the collecting process. According
to the subsidies policy, such subsidies can be applied and received once
the criteria are fulfilled. The management of the Group considers that it is
highly probable for the customer to collect such subsidies. In addition, for
the amount for which the criteria have been fulfilled, the application process
has already been taken with the government, and for the remaining amount,
the management considered it would be highly probable for the customer
to fulfill the criteria in forthcoming periods. Accordingly, the guarantee

provision was assessed to be minimal as at December 31, 2024.

While the Group primarily operates in the PRC and transactions are primarily
denominated and settled in Renminbi, the Group also has business
operations in other overseas markets. As such, the Group is exposed to
foreign currency risk arising from fluctuations in exchange rates between
the RMB and other currencies relating to the Group’s business. Further, the
Group is subject to foreign currency risk attributable to the bank balances
that are denominated in currencies other than RMB. The Group seeks to limit
the exposure to foreign currency risk by minimizing its net foreign currency
position. The Group did not enter into any hedging transactions in respect of
foreign currency risk as of December 31, 2024. The Directors expect that the
fluctuation of the RMB exchange rate will not have a material adverse effect

on the operation of the Group.
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The Group's capital expenditures primarily relate to payments of property,
plant and equipment and land lease. For the year ended December 31, 2024,
the Group's capital expenditures were approximately RMB60.6 million (2023:
approximately RMB142.1 million).

The Group's capital commitments comprise contracted but not provided for
capital commitments for (i) the acquisition of property, plant and equipment;
and (ii) associates and other unlisted investments. As at December 31, 2024,
the Group recorded total capital commitments of RMB159.9 million, as

compared to those of RMB150.9 million as at December 31, 2023.

As of December 31, 2024, the Group had a total of 414 full-time employees.
We primarily recruit our personnel through recruitment agencies, on-campus
job fairs, referrals and online channels, including our corporate website and

social networking platforms.

We place a strong emphasis on training our employees to develop their
skills. Pursuant to our employee training policy, we provide our employees
with opportunities to participate in training sessions and seminars on safety
production, fire safety and emergency care, as well as team-building activities

to cultivate our corporate culture.

Employee benefit expenses consist of (i) wages and salaries; (i) share-based

payments; and (iii) pension scheme contributions and social welfare.
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The biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management

are set out as follows:

Mr. LIN Qi (#5), aged 43, founded our Group in September 2015, and
has served as an executive Director and our chief executive officer since
then. He has also been the chairperson of our Board since July 2017. Mr. Lin
currently also holds directorships and/or senior management positions at our
various subsidiaries, including REFIRE Technology, Zhejiang Unilia Hydrogen
Technology Ltd. (/L= QsERRAER A F]) and Shanghai Unilia. He
is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall strategic management,

organizational development and strategic project development of our Group.

Mr. Lin has over 20 years of experience in the fuel cell industry. Prior to
founding our Group, from December 2004 to January 2010, he was an
engineer at Shanghai Shenli Technology Co., Ltd. (/& HRHE AR A A),
a company principally engaged in the development and industrialization of
fuel cell technology, where he was primarily responsible for developing fuel
cell control systems. From March 2010 to September 2015, he was a system
engineer at SAIC Motor Corporation Limited (/&3 E £ BN BRA ),
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600104) and
principally engaged in automotive manufacturing, where he was primarily

responsible for developing fuel cell control systems.

Besides, Mr. Lin is currently a director of four companies in which our
Company has a minority equity stake, namely, Shanghai Taigingchen Energy
Technology Co,, Ltd. (E/8FEREEREHRE R A R]) (@ company principally
engaged in manufacturing and sales of hydrogen energy equipment (other
than full cells) and provision of related technology), with a non-executive
role as nominated by our Company, Shanghai Hydrogen Energy Technology
Co., Ld. (E)BEEESRERHTARAT]) (the operating entity of Shanghai
Fuel Cell Manufacturing Industry Innovation Center (/&M AR E b ELE
ZABIFETH L) which is a research platform for technologies pertaining to fuel
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cells established under the guidance of Shanghai Municipal Commission
of Economy and Informatization (L/8W4CEMEB/LEZEER)), Yulin Xuri
Hydrogen Wind Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (fi#kfB B S &R AR
A|]) (an investment platform with investments in a company principally
engaged in provision of solutions relating to hydrogen power generation
applications and a digital marketing solution provider), and Shaanxi
HydroTransformer Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (BRPEE ZREREHE AR A
7)) (a company principally engaged in provision of integrated solutions for
organic liquid hydrogen storage and supply), with a non-executive role as

nominated by our Company.

Mr. Lin obtained his bachelor's degree in software engineering from
Nanchang University (F9&AK%£) in Jiangxi in November 2004. He further
obtained his executive master of business administration from the Guanghua
School of Management of Peking University (1t RAZ S EEIBELT) in
Beijing in July 2023. Mr. Lin has been certified as a senior engineer of product
engineering by the China Society of Automotive Engineers (/58 T2
B9 since December 2022. Mr. Lin plans to enroll in the Doctor of Business
Administration (DBA) program at The University of Hong Kong in September
2025.

Dr. HU Zhe (%), aged 40, joined our Group in November 2015 as our
manager and has been our chief operating officer and president since
January 2024. He was appointed as a Director on July 15, 2017, and was
re-designated as an executive Director on January 21, 2024. Dr. Hu currently
also holds directorships, supervisorships and/or senior management positions
at our various subsidiaries, including Jiangsu REFIRE Technology Co., Ltd. (T
BREBREREHE AR AR]). He is primarily responsible for overseeing the

overall business operation and management of our Group.

Dr. Hu has over 15 years of experience in the automotive industry. Prior to
joining our Group, from April 2010 to November 2015, he was an engineer
at SAIC Motor Corporation Limited (\E/&/AEEERMD AR AR, where
he was primarily responsible for R&D of fuel cell systems and R&D and

application of the durability of automotive fuel cells.
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Besides, Dr. Hu is currently a director of three companies in which our
Company has a minority equity stake, namely, Shanghai Pegasus Hydrogen
Technology Co., Ltd. (E/BEREEERIEBRAE]) (@ company principally
engaged in R&D, manufacturing and sales of metal plate stacks), Aerospace
Hydrogen Energy (Shanghai) Technology Co. Ltd. (i ASEAE( L&) EHAE
FR 2 T]) (a company principally engaged in R&D, manufacturing and sales of
metal plate stacks), and Beijing Yuzhou Tongda Hydrogen Energy Technology
Co, Ltd. GERBAREQEREBRAF]) (@ company principally engaged
in R&D of metal bipolar plates), all with a non-executive role as nominated by

our Company.

Dr. Hu obtained his bachelor's degree in automotive engineering in July 2009
and his master’s degree in automotive engineering in March 2010, both from
Tongji University (A& X£2) in Shanghai. He further obtained his doctor’s
degree in automotive engineering from Tongji University in December 2019.
Dr. Hu has been certified as a senior engineer of product engineering by the
China Society of Automotive Engineers (FF B398 T 222 &) since December

2022.

Ms. MA Audrey Jing Nan (55 &%), aged 39, joined our Group in September
2017 as the director of the business development department at our
subsidiary, REFIRE Technology, and has been our vice president since January
2020. She was appointed as a Director on December 27, 2023, and was
re-designated as an executive Director on January 21, 2024. Besides, Ms. Ma
is currently a managing director of our subsidiary, REFIRE Europe GmbH,
and a director of our subsidiaries, Unilia (Guangdong) Fuel Cells Inc. (BB
BRELE M (BR) AR A A]) and REFIRE Hong Kong Limited (EZBRERES
HBRAF]). She is primarily responsible for overseeing the development and

management of our overseas business.
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Ms. Ma has over 12 years of experience in architectural design, urban
planning and business development. Prior to joining our Group, from October
2009 to August 2010, she was an architecture intern at B+H Architects, a
company principally engaged in architectural designs and urban planning.
From March 2011 to August 2011, she was an architectural assistant at 10
Design Limited, a company principally engaged in architectural designs and
master planning. From January 2013 to April 2014, Ms. Ma was an assistant
architect at Head Architecture Limited, a company principally engaged in
architectural and interior designs, where she was primarily responsible for
architectural designs. From June 2014 to July 2016, she worked at SOM Asia
Limited, a company principally engaged in architectural designs, construction
and urban planning, where she was primarily responsible for market research
and business development. From August 2016 to January 2017, she served
as the deputy general manager of Hong Kong Nation-Synergy Hydrogen
Power Technology Co., Limited (B/EBISEaERHEBRAF]), a company
principally engaged in provision of technologies relating to fuel cell systems
and a subsidiary of Sino-Synergy Hydrogen Energy Technology (Jiaxing) Co.,
Lid. (BB REERHR(FE) R BB AFR]) (@ company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9663)).

Ms. Ma obtained her bachelor’s degree in architectural studies from Carleton
University in Canada in June 2009. She obtained her master's degree in urban

design from the University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November 2012.

Dr. ZHAI Shuang (%), aged 42, joined our Group in March 2016 as a
senior manager of the preliminary design department at our subsidiary,
REFIRE Technology. He has been the chief engineer of the product
engineering department at REFIRE Technology since March 2019, and has
been a deputy executive director of the R&D center at our Company since
March 2022. He was appointed as a Director on September 8, 2020, and was
re-designated as an executive Director on January 21, 2024. He is primarily
responsible for devising technology strategies, leading R&D of new products

and overseeing talent development of project teams.
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Dr. Zhai has over 14 years of experience in R&D and working in the
automotive industry. Prior to joining our Group, from December 2012 to
March 2016, he was an engineer at SAIC Motor Corporation Limited (/&%
BHEEBERHBRAT), where he was primarily responsible for constructing

simulation platforms for fuel cell systems.

Dr. Zhai obtained his bachelor's degree in mathematics and applied
mathematics from Xinyang Normal University (12 % A 3 K £ (formerly known
as Xinyang Normal Institute ({5FZEM#E2FT)) in Henan in July 2007. He
further obtained his doctor’s degree in automotive engineering from Tongji
University (BEAE) in Shanghai in November 2012. Dr. Zhai has been
certified as a senior engineer by the Shanghai Municipal Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau (/8T A ERFILZRER) since December
2021.

Mr. ZHAO Yongsheng (3K ), aged 40, joined the Group in April 2017
as senior manager of the Procurement Department at our subsidiary REFIRE
Technology. He was appointed as director of the Supply Chain Center from
December 2022 to March 2025. He was appointed as director of both the
Procurement Department and Pioneer Project Team since March 2025,
primarily overseeing daily management and operations of these departments.
Mr. Zhao was appointed as a Director on April 13, 2023 and re-designated
as Executive Director on January 21, 2024. He is primarily responsible for
supervising the daily operations and management of the Supply Chain
Center. Mr. Zhao has over 14 years of experience in the automotive industry.
Prior to joining our Group, from April 2010 to March 2017, he worked at SAIC
Motor Corporation Limited (_E/8/58E EBR KD AR Q).

Mr. Zhao obtained his bachelor's degree in automotive engineering (vehicle)
in July 2009 and his master's degree in power machinery and engineering in
March 2010, both from Tongji University ([ A£2) in Shanghai.
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Mr. LIU Huiyou (Z/€ %), aged 60, joined our Group in December 2023 and
has served as a Director since then. He was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on January 21, 2024. He is primarily responsible for providing

professional opinion and judgment to our Board.

Mr. Liu has over 40 years of experience in the energy industry. From July
1985 to October 1997, he was successively a deputy section chief, a section
chief and deputy chief economist at the Gudong Oil Production Factory (flll
RECHE) of Sinopec Shengli Petroleum Administrative Bureau Co., Ltd. (h
EAtEEBNOHERRERAR
From October 1997 to March 2003, he was successively a deputy director

(“Sinopec Shengli Petroleum”).

of the planning management division at Sinopec Shengli Petroleum, a
deputy director of the planning department of Sinopec Shengli Petroleum
and a deputy director of the planning division at Sinopec Shengli QOilfield
Company (FREIA{ELB5F))lBHE A R /AR]). From March 2001 to May 2003, he
was a manager at Sinopec Shengli Oilfield Construction Project Economic
and Technical Evaluation Consulting Co., Ltd. (Bs%jh M &R E B &%
B E AL

advisory and assessment services for investment decision-making in oil

, where he was primarily responsible for conducting

and gas field development and construction projects, along with providing
comprehensive consultation and evaluation reports. From May 2003 to
August 2009, he was the director of the planning division of Sinopec Shengli
QOilfield Company, where he was primarily responsible for strategic planning,
investment management and analysis. From August 2009 to July 2013, he
was a deputy chief economist at Sinopec Shengli Petroleum, where he was
primarily responsible for corporate strategic plan, investment management
and economic analyses. From July 2013 to June 2016, he was the chief of
HIIREEERE
F) of China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (FRBIfAHM{E AN B
fRA7A]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 386) and the

the Petroleum Engineering Cost Management Center (&
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Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600028) and principally engaged in
oil and gas exploration, refining, chemical and marketing, where he was
primarily responsible for the establishment of the petroleum engineering
cost management system and daily management and operation of the
center. Besides, Mr. Liu has successively been a deputy chief and a deputy
general manager of the development planning department of China
Petroleum & Chemical Corporation since June 2016, and has been the chief
of the new energy office of China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation since
October 2018, where he has been primarily responsible for oil and gas
exploration, development, investment and management and analysis and
advancing the new energy industry development. Since January 2022, he
has also been the chief expert in energy conservation and environmental
protection (new energy) at China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation, where
he has been primarily responsible for providing professional advice relating
to the new energy sector. He retired from China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation as at the end of 2024. Currently, he still serves as the director of
Sinopec International Energy Investment Co., Ltd and Central SOEs Industrial

Investment Fund for Rural Area.

Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor's degree in oil production engineering from
China University of Petroleum (FBIAMAE(ZER)) (formerly known as
Huadong Petroleum College (ZEE A H£Fx)) in Shandong in July 1985.

Mr. LI Wei (Z=1&), aged 54, joined our Group in September 2020 and has
served as our independent non-executive Director since then. He is primarily

responsible for providing independent advice and judgment to our Board.

Mr. Li has over 19 years of experience in finance. From June 2006 to
November 2008, he was the head of the investment banking division at
Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd. (FRIEEBFHFBRMDABR A R)),
a company principally engaged in investment banking and securities
brokerage, where he was primarily responsible for overseeing the operation
and management of the securities brokerage business. From December
2008 to 2020, he was the managing director of the investment banking
division at China Galaxy Securities Co., Ltd. (FFBISR/A B HR D AR AR]), a
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company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6881) and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 601881) and principally engaged in investment
banking and securities brokerage, where he was primarily responsible for
overseeing the operation and management of the securities brokerage
business. Since October 2022, he has also served as an independent
non-executive director of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (B)ZE &%
B ABMRAT]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3903)
and principally engaged in the provision of diversified and comprehensive
financial services for domestic small, medium and micro enterprises and

individuals.

Mr. Li obtained his bachelor's degree in economics in June 1992 and his
master's degree in economics in July 1995, both from Renmin University of

China (FEIARKZ) in Beijing.

Dr. QIAN Meifen (£3£%F), aged 43, joined our Group in September 2020
and has served as our independent non-executive Director since then. She
is primarily responsible for providing independent advice and judgement to

our Board.

Dr. Qian has over 13 years of experience in higher education. From June
2012 to June 2015, she was a lecturer at Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics (T FHBF €K &), Dr. Qian has successively been a lecturer and an
associate professor at the school of management of Zhejiang University (47
JIRE) since September 2015, and has been a deputy director of the finance
and accounting department of the school of management of Zhejiang

University since March 2019.

Besides, Dr. Qian has served as an independent director of Hangzhou
Flariant Co., Ltd. (fIMNEHERFARMDBRAF) (@ company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 605566) and principally engaged
in manufacturing of dyeing products) since December 2022, and Zhejiang
Rongpeng Air Tools Co., Ltd. (HT/ L& ME R T Ak BR A F) (a company
listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations (stock code: 874187)

and principally engaged in manufacturing of air tools) since March 2023.
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Dr. Qian obtained her bachelor's degree in public finance in June 2005 and
her master's degree in finance in June 2007, both from Zhejiang University
(7T KE) in Zhejiang. She further obtained her doctor's degree in finance

from Australian National University in Australia in November 2012.

Mr. CHEN Fei (BR ), aged 41, joined our Group in December 2023 and has
served as our independent non-executive Director since then. He is primarily

responsible for providing independent advice and judgment to our Board.

Mr. Chen has over 17 years of experience in investment banking and financial
management. From July 2008 to May 2010, he was an investment banker at
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation, where he was primarily
responsible for advising on financings, mergers and acquisitions for domestic
and foreign clients. From May 2010 to May 2018, Mr. Chen was an investment
banker at UBS AG Hong Kong Branch, where he was primarily responsible for
advising on financings, mergers and acquisitions for domestic and foreign
clients. From May 2018 to April 2022, Mr. Chen was the chief financial officer
and board secretary at Tubatu Group Co., Ltd. (EEREBRMHAERA
Al), a company principally engaged in online home furnishing platform
operation in China, where he was primarily responsible for overseeing
financial investment activities of the company, including accounting, capital
management, handling tax-related matters, preparing and reviewing financial
statements, and financial data analyses. Besides, Mr. Chen has served as
an executive director since April 2022 and the chief financial officer since
May 2022, of YSB Inc., a digital pharmaceutical platform listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9885), where he has been primarily responsible for
overseeing overall financial management (including accounting, capital
management, handling tax-related matters, preparing and reviewing financial
statements, and financial data analyses), internal audits and control, corporate

finance, investment activities and legal matters of the company.

Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor's degree in finance in July 2006 and his
master's degree in finance in July 2008, both from Peking University (36 A
22 in Beijing. Mr. Chen has been certified as a chartered financial analyst by
the CFA Institute since September 2012, and obtained a certificate of board

secretaries from the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in November 2020.
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Mr. WU Yang (E7¥), aged 37, joined our Group in January 2023 and has
been our shareholders’ representative Supervisor and the chairperson of our

Supervisory Committee since then.

Mr. Wu has over nine years of experience in market research and equity
investment management. Since May 2016, he has been the investment
director at Shenzhen Qianhai Chun Yang Asset Management Co., Ltd. (%
g B EGEEEE AR AR, a company principally engaged in private
equity investment, where he has been primarily responsible for investment

decisions and post-investment management.

Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor's degree in logistics management from Nanjing

University of Finance and Economics (R R B &L K E2) in Jiangsu in June 2010.

Mr. ZHANG Cheng (3R%2), aged 43, joined our Group in August 2024 and

has been our shareholders’ representative Supervisor since then.

Mr. Zhang has over 13 years of experience in economics and equity
investments. From July 2012 to May 2020, he worked at the Economic
Construction Department under the MOF (F % A B L 1B B B 3045 7
#EEA]). Since June 2020, he has been a deputy general manager of the
secondary investment department at National Manufacturing Transformation
and Upgrade Fund Co., Ltd. (AREEZEEAARESRHDER LT, a
company principally engaged in investment management and consulting
and our Shareholder, where he has primarily been responsible for equity
investments. Further, from May 2023 to November 2023, Mr. Zhang was a
supervisor of Zhejiang RIFA Precision Machinery Co., Ltd. (/T B 355271
WA AR A A]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock

code: 002520) and principally engaged in manufacturing of machine tools.

Mr. Zhang obtained his bachelor’s degree in economics in June 2006 and his
master’s degree in economics in June 2009, both from Central University of
Finance and Fconomics (A R EF4E K 2) in Beijing.
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Mr. WANG Chuqi ((E##), aged 41, joined the Group in October 2015
as director of the Lean Management and Digital Intelligence Department.
He served as General Manager of the Sales Task Force since March 2025,
with primary responsibility for the daily management of the task force. Mr.
Wang has been our employee representative Supervisor since September
2020. Additionally, he currently serves as Supervisor of our subsidiary, REFIRE
Technology.

Mr. Wang has over 20 years of experience in information technology. Prior to
joining our Group, from January 2005 to July 2014, he worked at Zhejiang SIF
Technology Co., Ltd. (HL#4%r = LRI BRAF]), a company principally
engaged in software development. From August 2014 to October 2015,
he worked at Brother System Technology Development (Hangzhou) Ltd.
CEILBEB M@ AR AR, a company principally engaged in
software development. Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor's degree in software
programming from Nanchang University (B & A2 in Jiangxi in November
2004.
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Mr. SUN Bei (#1k), aged 39, joined our Group in April 2016 as the executive
president of the applied engineering department at our subsidiary, REFIRE
Technology. Between April 2016 and January 2022, he was a deputy director
of the R&D center at REFIRE Technology. From February 2022 to March 2025,
he has been the general manager of the sales center of the system business
department at our Group. From March 2025, he served as the executive
director of the R&D Center of the Group, primarily responsible for overseeing
overall operation and management the R&D Center of our Group. He has
been our employees’ representative Supervisor since May 2022 until January
27, 2025. Mr Sun resigned as the employees’ representative Supervisor
with effect from January 27, 2025, the details of which are set out the
announcement of the Company dated January 27, 2025. Mr Sun has been

elected as the vice president of the Company on February 16, 2025.

Mr. Sun has over 14 years of experience in the automotive industry. Prior
to joining our Group, from July 2011 to April 2016, he worked at United
Automotive Electronic Systems Co., Ltd. (A AEEFARAA), a
company principally engaged in R&D, manufacturing and sales of gasoline
engine management systems, transmission control systems and automotive

drive control systems.

Mr. Sun obtained his bachelor's degree in automotive engineering (vehicle)
in July 2008 and his master's degree in automotive engineering in March
2011, both from Tongji University (& A22) in Shanghai.

Mr. LIU Tiezhong (28 /), aged 44, joined the Group in February 2017 as
a senior manager of the quality management department at a subsidiary of
the Company, REFIRE Technology. Mr. Liu has been the acting director of the
Project Management Department at REFIRE Technology from December 2022
to April 2024, and has been serving as Acting Director of the Organizational
Development and Employee Experience Department since April 2024,
primarily responsible for overseeing the department's comprehensive
operations and management. On January 27, 2025, Mr. Liu has been elected
as an employees’ representative Supervisor, the details of which are set out

the announcement of the Company dated January 27, 2025.
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Mr. Liu has over 17 years of experience in the automotive industry. Prior to
joining the Group, from June 2003 to July 2004, he was an assistant engineer
at Huizhou Dayawan Timax Electronics & Machinery Co., Ltd.* (M T A g8 /&
KEETHEMABMR AT, a company principally engaged in manufacturing
and sales of computer numerical control drilling and milling machines,
where he was primarily responsible for engineering drawing. From July 2004
to March 2007, he was a supplier quality engineer at Tech-Front (Shanghai)
Computer Co., Ltd.* (EE(LB)EFABMRAF]), a company principally
engaged in manufacturing and sales of computers and peripherals, where
he was primarily responsible for supplier quality management. From April
2007 to June 2008, Mr. Liu was a supplier development engineer at Shanghai
DELPHI Automotive Door System Co., Ltd* (L /BEBETEMRLGAR
A |]) (currently known as Shanghai Inteva Automotive Door Systems Co.,
Lid* (B8 BIRZERBPIR AR A F)), a company principally engaged in
development, manufacturing and sales of automotive door panel systems,
where he was primarily responsible for supplier development. From August
2008 to June 2011, he was a senior quality engineer at Shanghai LEAR
Automotive Parts Co., Ltd* (LBFETEZTHAER AT, a company
principally engaged in development, manufacturing and sales of automotive
seating systems, where he was primarily responsible for product quality
assurance. From July 2011 to January 2017, he was a project quality manager
at Shanghai Sogefi Auto Parts Co., Ltd* (E/8REIETEIHFERAF), a
company principally engaged in development, manufacturing and sales of
engine filtration systems and chassis suspension system components, where

he was primarily responsible for quality management.

Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor's degree in mechanical design from Xiangtan
University (I AZ) in Hunan in June 2003. He obtained his master's
degree in business administration from East China University of Science and
Technology (2332 T K &) in Shanghai in January 2025.
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Mr. DONG Yazhou (E32H), aged 38, joined the Group in December 2024
and has been a director of a subsidiary of the Company, Foshan Diyi Element
New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (#8111 38 — e = FTaEIREHE B R A 7)), since
then. Mr. Dong has been elected as shareholders’ representative Supervisor
with effect from February 19, 2025, the details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated February 19, 2025.

Mr. Dong has over 13 years of experience in the automotive industry. Since
August 2011, he has worked at FAW Jiefang Automotive Co., Ltd. (— /S
AEARZAT) ('FAW Jiefang”), a Shareholder and a company principally
engaged in manufacturing and sales of trucks and buses, where he was
successively a procurement engineer, the head of metal procurement, the
head of the non-metal procurement office of the procurement department,
an assistant to the general manager of the smart logistics branch company,
a deputy director of the procurement department and the director of the
procurement department between August 2011 and December 2023. He has
been the party secretary of the powertrain department at FAW Jiefang since
December 2023 and an assistant to the general manager of FAW lJiefang
since December 2024, where he has been involved in the management of
the powertrain department of the company. Since December 2024, Mr. Dong
has been an assistant to the general manager of FAW Jiefang Group Co., Ltd.
(—RENEBERMAR AT, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000800) and principally engaged in manufacturing
and sales of automobiles, where he has been involved in the management of
the powertrain department of the company. Further, since December 2024,
he has been a director of Diyi Yuanjing New Energy Power Technology (Wuxi)
Co., Ltd. GEH—E=FNELIRE R (E15)BBRAF), a company principally
engaged in research, development, designs, manufacturing and sales of
power battery systems and energy storage battery systems, where he has
been involved in overall operation and management of the company Mr.
Dong obtained his bachelor's degree in mechanical design, manufacturing
and automation from Hebei University of Technology (Aldt T K£) in
Tianjin in August 2011.
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Mr. LIN Qi (#k¥F) is the chairperson of our Board, our executive Director and
chief executive officer. For further details, see “Executive Directors” in this

section.

Dr. HU Zhe (%) is the executive Director, chief operating officer and

president. For further details, see “Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. MA Audrey Jing Nan (5 &%) is the executive Director and vice

president. For further details, see “Executive Directors” in this section.

Mr. ZHENG Zhong (#/E), aged 36, joined our Group in May 2018 as an
assistant to the chairperson of the board of directors of our subsidiary, REFIRE
Technology. He was an assistant to the chairperson of our Board between
January 2020 and September 2020, and has been our Board secretary
since September 2020 and the Group's vice president since January 2024.
Mr. Zheng currently also holds supervisorships at our various subsidiaries,
including Jiangsu REFIRE Technology Co., Ltd. (TERE2EREHEL AR A
7)) and Shanghai REFIRE Prismatic Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd. (/&
EDIH EAERHE B R A ). He is primarily responsible for overseeing equity
financing and handling matters relating to investor relations, legal affairs and

intellectual properties of our Group.

Mr. Zheng has over 15 years of experience in legal profession. Prior to
joining our Group, from July 2010 to March 2017, he was a lawyer at the
Shanghai office of Tian Yuan Law Firm (3t R KT EIEET LEDFR),
where he was primarily responsible for providing legal services in respect
of investments, financings, mergers and acquisitions. From April 2017 to
May 2017, he was a lawyer at the Shanghai office of Hai Run Law Firm (1t
ARG EERMELAT 8D FT), where he was primarily responsible for
providing legal services in respect of investments, financings, mergers and
acquisitions. From June 2017 to April 2018, he served as the legal director of
Hongling Sigi (Zhuhai) Equity Investment Management Enterprise (Limited
Partnership) (RABE(KE) REREEB X (BRAR)), where he
was primarily responsible for overseeing risk management and compliance
matters. Besides, Mr. Zheng is currently a director of Jiangsu Jiahua Hydrogen
Technology Co, Ltd. (L& F{L @ aERIHE AR A F]), a company in which our

Group has equity interest.
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Mr. Zheng obtained his bachelor’'s degree in law from Fudan University
(8 B K2 in Shanghai in June 2010. He obtained his qualification of
legal profession from the Ministry of Justice of the PRC (FZE AR
B R)JEER) in August 2010, his fund practice qualification from the Asset
Management Association of China (FEIFEFHIEERESERE) in July 2017,
and a certificate of board secretaries from the Shanghai Stock Exchange in
December 2020.

Mr. XIE Hongyu (RALRS), aged 46, joined our Group in December 2018 as
a deputy general manager of our subsidiary, REFIRE Technology, and has
been our vice president since December 2020. Further, Mr. Xie is currently a
director of our subsidiaries, Shanghai PANDO Electric Technology Co., Ltd. (L&
BEHBEREEARAR]), PANDO (Zhejiang) Electric Technology Co., Ltd.
EH O BER/EHEERAF]) and Changde REFIRE Surge New Materials
Technology Co., Ltd. (RIEEBZHEMMEEHLER A T)). He is primarily
responsible for overseeing the daily operation and management of our

hydrogen equipment component business.

Mr. Xie has over 22 years of experience in new energy and new materials
industries. Prior to joining our Group, from January 2003 to October 2018,
he worked at Hunan Corun New Energy Co., Ltd. GHF®I 7= FTREIRAL (5
BBRAR]) (formerly known as Changsha Lyrun Materials Co., Ltd. (R4 /17T
RN ABR A A)), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600478) and principally engaged in R&D, manufacturing and
sales of foam metal materials, where he was successively a section chief of
the production department, a manager of the R&D department, the director
of the quality management department and an assistant to the general
manager of Hunan Corun New Energy Co., Ltd., and was primarily responsible
for overseeing daily operation and management of the aforementioned
departments and assisting the general manager with daily operation of
the company. During the same period, Mr. Xie also served as the general
manager of certain subsidiaries of Hunan Corun New Energy Co., Ltd.,
including Changde Liyuan New Materials Co., Ltd. (B TTHME AR E
f£72&)) (a company principally engaged in R&D, manufacturing and sales of
energy-saving and new energy automotive base materials, civil battery base
materials and nickel-plated steel strips) and Hunan Copower EV Battery Co.,
Ltd. CHERIEE/REBE N EMBBREERA]) (a company principally engaged
in R&D, manufacturing and sales of batteries for hybrid electric vehicles),
where he was primarily responsible for overseeing daily operation and

corporate management of the aforementioned companies.

EPSEER 20106 ABRB LAMERKELEE
T B o FR2010F8 AMBHEAR LB A
EEETRERBEAR - R2017F7 AEFH
BEEAREESEMERTHESHEER
W 2020512 AR LBBEHFRFABEENE
EEWEERES -

WALREE  465% - M2018F 12 AMARE
E - EERMOKEQREE R BEE -
WH20205 12 AREEREBEEE - I -
HEERARMOMBE AR LBEBHBREH
BRAR - EHOMD ERBMEERARRS
BEPYENMABBRERAAES - HEE
BEEEASERNEEETHMHEBHATE

BRER -

HEERTERRFTMBITER BB 22F K
oo MIMARSEER - H2003F1 AE2018F
108 BAEBRNHER DEFERROER
REl(ABED NTHMBBRDBRART - —
FREBBHFZZALETHRA (BHRE :
600478) + TENBRASBM A AME - &iE
RHEE) BARETDHRN IRFERRO A
RARAEENITEER - WEIPLE - FEILH
RRBEEHE  TEEEEE LAIMAMA
FHENEEVHHALBEREATBATEEE
TE- RE - SEEMEEREE NETNER
BHAERARE THEARNALE  BEF
BEATLHMEHEREERF (—REBHELLE
BHARABEEN RAEMEN RIEERIEE
e BUERMHEN AR RERBEREE N
BHWEREEAR (—REERFRABNAE
B  REREENAR)  BREEZEEE
ELMARMAEEERMEER -



Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited | L& 2 EREBMBRHERATE

Mr. Xie obtained his college diploma in chemical technology from Hunan
Chemical Vocational Technology College (#iFI{L 2 T 3B F T2 pr)
(formerly known as Hunan Chemical Engineering School (& {2 T2

1)) in Hunan in June 1998.

Mr. SUN Bei (#21t) is our vice president. For further details, see “Supervisors”

in this section.

Dr. Christopher John GUZY, aged 69, joined our Group in March 2020 and
has been our chief technology officer since then. He is primarily responsible
for overseeing advanced technology development and devising technology

strategies.

Dr. Guzy has over 42 years of experience in engineering and higher
education. Prior to joining our Group, from 1983 to 1986, he was an assistant
professor at the David H. Koch School of Chemical Engineering Practice
of Massachusetts Institute of Technology in the United States. From 2000
to 2001, he was the global general manager at GE Lighting, a company
principally engaged in lighting production and service, where he was
primarily responsible for the development of linear fluorescent technology.
From 2001 to 2005, Dr. Guzy was the general manager of global products
of GE HealthCare (formerly known as GE Medical Systems), a company
principally engaged in R&D, manufacturing and sales of medical devices,
where he was primarily responsible for oversight of technology operations.
From January 2005 to March 2016, he was a vice president and the chief
technology officer of BALLARD Power Systems, a company principally
engaged in the provision of clean energy fuel cell solutions and products,
where he was primarily responsible for leading product development,
applications, engineering and technology research. From May 2016 to March
2020, Dr. Guzy was a professor at Foshan University (ff LT} E2 1T 225,
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Dr. Guzy obtained his bachelor’'s degree in chemical engineering in May
1977 and his master's degree in chemical engineering in May 1979, both
from Clarkson University in the United States. He further obtained his
doctor’s degree in engineering from University of New Mexico in the United
States in July 1982. Dr. Guzy was accredited as an expert under the Chinese
Government Friendship Award (R EBIEfT & FEEE) in September 2019 by
the Department of Foreign Expert Services of the Ministry of Science and
Technology of the PRC in recognition of his significant contributions to
China's hydrogen and fuel cell industries. Further, he was awarded the
Shanghai Magnolia Silver Award (H EBJ42 £ 52) in 2023 in recognition of his

contribution to the development of Shanghai.

Mr. SHAO Liangming (BRR Bi), aged 43, joined our Group in June 2018
as a finance manager at our subsidiary, REFIRE Technology. He was a senior
manager of the internal audits department at our Company from September
2020 to August 2023, and has been a senior manager of the operation and
management department since September 2023 and our financial controller
since January 2024. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the financial

management of our Group.

Mr. Shao has over 18 years of experience in audits and financial management.
Prior to joining our Group, from September 2007 to June 2018, he was
successively an audit manager and a senior manager at BDO China Shu Lun
Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP (Z{E @ FTENEFATRREBE ),

where he was primarily responsible for audits.

Mr. Shao graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (/8B AE) in
Shanghai through online courses in accounting in July 2008. Mr. Shao has
been certified as a certified public accountant by the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (FEIFEM & &R ) since December 2007,
and has been certified as a medium-level accountant (P A& 5T BtH8) by
Shanghai Municipal Bureau of Human Resources and Social Security (/87

ANERMHERIER) since May 2009.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2024.

On December 6, 2024, the H Shares of the Company were first listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Prospectus has been published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company

(www.refire.com).

The Company is a leading hydrogen technology company in the PRC focused
on the design, development, manufacture, and sales of hydrogen fuel cell
systems, hydrogen production systems, and related core components, as
well as providing fuel cell engineering and technical services catering to
customers’ needs. With the key technology layout of the whole industrial
chain in the field of fuel cells and hydrogen production systems, we provide
a one-stop solution for hydrogen production and end-use applications based
on the market demand to promote the ecological construction of hydrogen
energy industry and the commercial application of hydrogen energy

technology across diverse sectors.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

shown under note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2024 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 137 to 150 of this annual

report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

As the Company intends to retain all of its future earnings to finance the
development and growth of the Company's business, it has not yet adopted a
dividend policy to declare or pay any dividends. The declaration and payment of
any dividends in the future will be determined by our Board and subject to the
Articles of Association and the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(A EE AR FELFBE R EE)), and will depend on a number of factors, including
our financial performance and business operation, capital requirements and
contractual restrictions. No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of
our profits and reserves lawfully available for distribution. As confirmed by our
PRC legal adviser, according to the PRC laws, any future net profits obtained by
the Company must first be used to make up for its accumulated prior losses,
after which the Company is obliged to allocate at least 10% of its net profits to
the statutory capital reserve until the cumulative amount of the statutory capital
reserve exceeds 50% of the Company’ registered capital. Therefore, the Company
will only be able to declare dividends after (i) all its historical accumulated
losses from prior fiscal years have been made up for; and (i) the Company has
allocated sufficient net profits to the statutory capital reserve as described above.
The Board will regularly review the Company’ status and consider adopting a

dividend policy if and when appropriate.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended December 31, 2024.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the

Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held on Monday, May 19, 2025. The notice
of the AGM will be published and sent to the Shareholders in due course in

the manner as required by the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS OF H
SHARES AND ASCERTAINING OF ELIGIBILITY FOR
ATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The register of members of H Shares will be closed from Wednesday, May 14,
2025 to Monday, May 19, 2025, both days inclusive, during which no transfer
of H Shares will be registered, in order to determine the holders of the H

Shares who are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM.
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To be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all properly completed transfer
documents, accompanied by relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company's H share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, May 13, 2025

for registration.

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of the Group's
performance during the year and the material factors underlying its results
and financial position as well as the outlook of the Group's business are
provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 18 to 33 of
this annual report. Particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred after December 31, 2024, if any, can also be found in the notes

to the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, more details regarding the Group's performance by reference
to financial key performance indicators and environmental policies, as well
as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group, are provided in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report. Each of the above-mentioned relevant

contents forms an integral part of this Report of the Directors.

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for the last four
financial years are set out on page 13 of this annual report. This summary

does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Some of the major risks we face include the following:

Our business depends on the PRC government policies and regulatory
framework supporting the hydrogen industry, which the PRC

government could change or eliminate;

The demand for our products depends on the future trend and
development of the PRC fuel cell vehicle industry and the availability
of other types of new energy vehicles. There are uncertainties in future
market demand and we cannot assure that we will continue to obtain

sufficient purchase orders in the future;
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We are in a new industry where emerging technologies used in fuel
cell systems or hydrogen production systems may not be mature. Any
major product defects, malfunctions or negative news concerning the
hydrogen industry may damage our reputation and adversely affect our

business, financial condition and results of operations;

The industry we operate in is characterized by rapid technological
changes and advancements. We may not be able to maintain our
revenue growth and any delay by us in bringing new and competitive

products to the market could adversely affect our financial performance;

We recorded net losses in the past and had negative cash flows from
operating activities, all of which may continue if we are not able to

implement our business plans successfully in the future;

We depend on a concentration of major customers and we do not
enter into long-term sales agreements with them. Any loss of these
customers or future purchase orders from them would adversely affect

our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows;

We are subject to credit risk arising from the customer and outstanding
trade and bills receivables (net of impairment), and our receivables
turnover days remained at a relatively high level during the Track Record

Period; and

Our research and development efforts may not yield the results as
expected to maintain our market share and competitiveness in China’s

fuel cell market.
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We may be involved in legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business
from time to time. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief, during the Reporting Period, the Company has complied in all respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

Company.

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environmental protection
and has not noted any material incompliance with all relevant laws and
regulations in relation to its business including environmental protection,
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.
We strive to comply with applicable rules, laws, regulations and industry
standards on workplace safety and environmental matters. In doing so,
our human resources department would, if necessary, adjust our human
resources policies to accommodate material changes to relevant labor and

safety laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had not been subject to any
fines or other penalties due to non-compliance with health, safety or
environmental laws or regulations. For details, please refer to the Company's

Environmental, Social and Governance Report dated April 25, 2025.

As of the date of this annual report, we had 414 employees. Our employees
are generally remunerated by way of a fixed salary. Our Group utilises an
appraisal system for our employees and considers the appraisal results of
individual employees in conducting their salary reviews, making promotion
decisions and determining the amount of bonuses. We also maintain social
insurance coverage for our employees in accordance with the applicable PRC

laws and the requirements of the local authorities.
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Our Group recruits employees based on a number of factors such as their
working experience, educational background and vacancy needs. In order
to increase the overall competitiveness of our workforce and to attract and
retain existing employees and strengthen their knowledge, skill level and
quality, our Group places strong emphasis on the training of its employees.
We provide training across different operational functions, including
induction training for new employees, technical training, and training to
enhance the employees’ knowledge in safety measures when performing

their duties.

We believe that our management policies, working environment, employee
development opportunities and employee benefits have together
contributed to good employer-employee relations and successful employee

retention.

During the Reporting Period, our primary customers were commercial vehicle
manufacturers, Industrial Systems Integrators, and Power Systems Integrators
based in the PRC.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, we generated revenue of RMB146
million, RMB111 million, RMB70 million, RMB59 million and RMB53 million
from our five largest customers, which accounted for 22%, 17%, 11%, 9% and

8% of our total revenue, respectively.

Our major suppliers are located in the PRC. We select and procure raw

materials and key components from third-party suppliers.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, we purchased RMB105 million,
RMB51 million, RMB33 million, RMB22 million and RMB19 million from our
five largest suppliers, which accounted for 13%, 6%, 4%, 3% and 2% of our

total purchase, respectively.

AEEREBEZERZHRERE @ fIIHE TEL
B HEERLTZRFE - RINARMEIH
BERBFNOARRSIALRERFREE RIEFH
M- Rk TFRER AEE+HEREER
Foll o HPIRE AR L BB - BEH
BEABEI - RWEEI - RIETHRERETT
B R 2 2EEAE A -

HPIEE - RPN ERBE - TIERK - &R
BREGMEERNOADESRIFNETR
SREGLRINILERE -

RBEHE  ZANEI2EP R/URPENE
REBERER  TEXGEXRBRBNRGEK

o

o

%2§2024¢12ﬁ31 BIEFE  HRMBERREP

BHRADBABARB I46BET - ARM
1115%7’5 cARKE0BET ARBSOBETT
RARESIEEIT - DRNEBPIBK AR 22%
17% ~ 11% ~ 9% £2.8% °

B TEHERIUNPE - HfEEASE
= HERRERM R IR -

HZE2024F12A31BIEFE - HMAAKHEE
EEHMRED R AARBIOCAET - AR
B BB ARK3ZEEL ARB2L2EE
TRAR¥19BET 2GR MEBRTED
13% 6% * 4% * 3% K2 2% °
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Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended December 31,
2024, none of the Directors or the Supervisors or any of their close associates
or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors and
Supervisors own more than 5% of the number of issued Shares of the
Company) had any interest in the Company's five largest customers and

suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2024 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2024 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2024, pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations, the
Company has distributable reserves of RMB1,950 million in total available
for distribution (2023: RMB1,743 million), of which none of the distributable

reserves has been proposed as final dividend payment for the year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company as at
December 31, 2024 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in note 13 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BRANFMAAREEEIN - REZE 2024512 A431H
IFFE  BEEFEXEFHEENEAE R
BARARRE (REERESMANEBELAR
AIBBS%BEBEITRG )R AARARE P RELE
A T -

N

AR RRAREE2024F12 A B ILEENE
BB H NG AT ERRM T3 -

(A

REBNEHE2024F 12831 BILFENREGS
BTN R A B IRERMITE33 -

At 2 ke

2024512 A31 B - IBEIEMBERER - AR
AR EYRFEEHEAENAIDREEEEAAR
#1950 B E T (2023F - AR¥,7438&T) -
HbzgEmEgar®Ho REEIEARIR
BXfT e

RITERRH BB

RATMR20245 12 A3 BRITER R HME
TR BT AGRE T SHRERME27 -

W - BERRE
REBREZE2024F 1283 BIEFENDE
BB R EEDFBHIN GRS P BRERM T
13°



2024 %% | ANNUALREPORT2024 | REFIRE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report and based on the information publicly
available to the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the minimum public float of 25% as required under

the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of the PRC that would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company during
the year ended December 31, 2024 and up to the date of this annual report

are set out below:

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEWE

ARABRBRE
RAFREMRERA AR ARG AR RIE
EEFRM AAREERETRIORTES

5% RIEABRIFRE -

BRRBEE

REAERKTEEEMEEBELABENG
XHREARRBRIZL P AIR AR RE SR

GE
EE ESREAEEE

ARATREE2004F 1231 BIEFERAER
FHAHNEES  EERaREREHIWOT

Name Position in the Company
e R D B WAL
Directors

Bx

Mr. LIN Qi Chairman of the Board and chief executive officer
I EERFEARWTE

Dr. HU Zhe Executive Director

HEE L BWITEE

Ms. MA Audrey Jing Nan Executive Director
St BITES

Dr. ZHAI Shuang Executive Director
B2UEL+ BITEE
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Name

]

Position in the Company

R D R B BT

Mr. ZHAO Yongsheng

HEIKAE S A
Mr. LIU Huiyou
FerEt
Mr. LI Wei
FEEE

Dr. QIAN Meifen
BESEL
Mr. CHEN Fei
RS
Supervisors
Ex

Mr. WU Yang
HAFRE

Mr. ZHANG Cheng
RIBSEAE

Mr. ZHOU Wei
k=i

Mr. JI Yizhi

ES Lo
Mr. WANG Chugi
EREELE
Mr. SUN Bei
Bk

Executive Director

HITE=R

Non-executive Director

FERITES

Independent Non-executive Director
BIFMITEE

Independent Non-executive Director
BUIRITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BYIFITES

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

EEETF

Supervisor (appointed with effect from August 21, 2024)
= (202458 A21 AR HEHE)

Supervisor (resigned with effect from August 21, 2024)
B (202458 B21 BRIEHE(E)

Supervisor (resigned with effect from February 19, 2025)
B (1R2025F2 B19B R IEHEME)

Supervisor

BE

Supervisor (resigned with effect from January 27, 2025)
BoE (02025501 B27 BERIEHE(E)
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Name

HH

Position in the Company

RAED TR

Mr. LIU Tiezhong
2l

Mr. DONG Yazhou
ERMEE

Senior management
EREERE

Mr. LIN Qi

M3

Dr. HU Zhe

HEEL

Ms. MA Audrey Jing Nan
Bt

Mr. ZHENG Zhong

Supervisor (appointed with effect from January 27, 2025)
B (72202551 B27 EFSAHELE)

Supervisor (appointed with effect from February 19, 2025)
B (20252 B19B R HE)

Chairman of the Board, executive Director and chief executive officer
BEER WITESFHREEATE

Executive Director, chief operating officer and president

HITES  BFRELTREHR

Executive Director and vice president

HITEEREILH

Vice president and Board secretary

BBk BllaHEFewE

Mr. XIE Hongyu Vice president

FAIREE EEGE

Mr. SUN Bei Vice president (appointed with effect from February 16, 2025)

FibkE B4 (720252 A 16 BRRELE)

Dr. Christopher John GUZY Chief technology officer

Christopher John GUZY1E £ BERMNE

Mr. SHAO Liangming Financial controller

AR AR MBEEA

To the best of the Board’s knowledge, information and belief, the Directors, BEZMAN BELEE EF EFhe
Supervisors and senior management do not have any relationship among BERE 2 BWEE AR -
them.

Biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management are Ex EERaREREENBREFBEHNASE

set out on pages 34 to 51 of this annual report.

TREEI4E51H
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service contract with
the Company. The principal particulars of these service contracts comprise
(@) a term of office commencing on the date of the approval at the relevant
Company's general meeting and ending on the expiration of the term of
office of the current session of the Board (with respect to Directors) or a
term of office commencing on the date of the approval at the Company's
general meeting or the date of the employees’ representative assembly (as
the case may be) and ending on the expiration of the term of office of the
current session of the Supervisory Committee (with respect to Supervisors);
and (b) termination provisions in accordance with their respective terms. Our

Directors may be re-appointed subject to Shareholders” approval.

According to the Articles of Association, the terms of service of both the
Directors and the Supervisors are for three years, and all Directors and
Supervisors are subject to re-appointment or re-election upon the expiry of

their term.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has or is proposed to have a service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent and remain so as of the date of

this annual report.

EERESENRBEEL

EEERESFDEAQALRBEL - 2%
RBEHNEEFBEREQEHE AR AR
RegiERHEEREESSEHERLL (B
BEEME)REHBE AL REBBR RS LER
FBIREXAGEH (BRBERAME) EEEEE
FeEHERL(REFME)  ROREBERSE
EBEIRRET LIRS - EFEIRRAL AR
EEHZAT -

REARERNRE EFRESNIHAR
=F MBEEEMESENEHER  HEEH
EarskEE -

BIEE R Y EFEARE R EA(NERFR
ERERBRANEMNAEE-—FARBAEHLE
BT CEERERINEELIEZRBEAL -

BYFHTESNE LM

ARFEARE EMRAE3 13 REESE LI
MITEEMFLBEREBL MM FEERE -
ARBERBR 2RBUFRTESHEBEIA
T MEEAFHRAMDBBEIAL -
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of

the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

EEERE

EE - EERBSTHRAEBRRK

N1
RE

7 HEROKREEENERR

HE2024F 128310 EF - EERARAH
BITHABRAR RIS EEMERER (EER
BHRBAEBROIEXVED BRG - BERG RE
BERHEERBEESKMEROIEXVEET X
FE3NMEMEAR A LB PT (BIERIEZS
REEBROINEREXREREEIRAER
B m KR ) K ARBES LGRS
352K EFEMERMSREBIRESTAE S1TH
ERAFI RS RABIT

Number

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Approximate
percentage of

of Shares/ the class of  shareholding in
Underlying Shares issued the total Shares
Name of Director Position Nature of interest Class of Shares Shares held” (%)™ issued (%)"
FERTER  HERTRG
FriERe,/ RAHHL BHNEFR
EEpg B BERME RDER HERAERE" BREA)" BATH %"
Mr. LIN Qi Chairperson of the Board,  Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares
executive Director and Interests
chief executive officer in controlled
corporations 18,852,700 41.45% 21.89%
MEEE HER WTEE EREEA NER 18,852,700 %
FERRTE A ERER
Dr. HU Zhe® Executive Director, chief Beneficial owner Domestic Shares
operating officer and
president 750,000 1.65% 0.87%
HAEEL BITEE B EREEA NER 750,000

EEEREH
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Approximate

percentage of Approximate

Number shareholdingin  percentage of
of Shares/ the class of ~ shareholding in
Underlying Shares issued the total Shares
Name of Director Position Nature of interest Class of Shares Shares held” (%)™ issued (%)"
HERTERN  HERTRH
FrERe,/ RAPHBL BHUNEFR
EEpg B REME R HERAEA" BREA)" BHTH )"
Ms. MA Audrey Jing Nan® Executive Director and Beneficial owner Domestic Shares
vice president 1,967,500 433% 2.28%
Bty RITEFREEH EREEA NER 1,967,500
Dr. ZHAI Shuang® Executive Director and Beneficial owner Domestic Shares
deputy executive
director of the R&D
center 150,000 0.33% 0.17%
BEELTO BITESHRWPEAL BEmfEBA NER
WiTRIRE 150,000
Mr. ZHAO Yongsheng® Executive Director and Beneficial owner Domestic Shares
director of the supply
chain center 150,000 0.33% 0.17%
HXELEE HTESRMER ERfEBA NER
HL B E 150,0008%
Notes: Mzt -
(1) As at December 31, 2024, the Company had issued 86,139,291 Shares in total, M MR2024%F12AH31H KR alAHED BT
including 45,482,153 Domestic Shares and 40,657,138 H Shares. 86,139,291 IRk 10 - B$E45,482,153RAE R &
40,657,138 AR HAR °
(2) As at December 31, 2024, Mr. LIN Qi beneficially holds 12,834,272 Domestic (2 BHZE2024F12A31H MBLEERHEE
Shares. Mr. LIN is the executive partner of Shanghai Weilan, Shanghai Weiging 12,834 2728 A ERK - LR LEEIR - L8
and Shanghai Weijing and is responsible for their respective management. As B EEEENRMITESRABA  BEZSEE
such, under the SFO, Mr. LIN is deemed to be interested in the 6,018,428 Domestic SENEIE - At BIEZFLHERBASEG - Rk
Shares held by Shanghai Weilan, Shanghai Weiging and Shanghai Weijing. HEWR AR EEER - BRI SR EERERES
16,018,428 XM EAXF HEH ok o
(3)  As at December 31, 2024, Dr. HU Zhe beneficially holds 750,000 Domestic Shares. (3) EZE2024%12A318 © HHEIE LT ESHEA 750,000

He is entitled to receive pursuant to the exercise of options granted to him under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, subject to the terms and conditions of these

options.

RN E R - REREE R A ERBRETS
ERMBRRETemARKER  EAXZEH
P B (B TR S AR I PTARER
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As at December 31, 2024, Ms. MA Audrey Jing Nan beneficially holds 1,967,500
Domestic Shares. She is entitled to receive pursuant to the exercise of options
granted to her under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, subject to the terms and
conditions of these options.

As at December 31, 2024, Dr. ZHAI Shuang beneficially holds 150,000 Domestic
Shares. He is entitled to receive pursuant to the exercise of options granted to him
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, subject to the terms and conditions of
these options.

As at December 31, 2024, Mr. ZHAO Yongsheng beneficially holds 150,000
Domestic Shares. He is entitled to receive pursuant to the exercise of options
granted to him under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, subject to the terms and
conditions of these options.

All interests are long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2024, none of the Directors,

Supervisors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to have

any interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures

of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning

of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO

(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to

have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be

recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the

SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(4 BHZE2024F 128318 ERBrRITEXRES
1,967,500l RME MR - HEBREE R AMEEHHE
R ST I a0 R AR A I A TR T A AR URER - B
SR SRR RAEHEFTRR o

(5) BZE2024F128318  BEHELEZEEHEH 150,000
AR - HEREE X AREEATERETE
BEOEREETEMABRKER  HEZZEE
REAE B IR AR FTAR IR o

(6) BZE2024F 128318 BXEXLLEEREE
150,000 RN E L - HEBEH XA AREERER
HEFTEIERNBEREETEM AR - AR
ZEBREO B RIGHEFTRR -

(7)) FBERZBREFR -

B EXATIREESN 20245128318 - HHE
BE BEERARAGERITHRABRAQR L
HAMABEEE (EERFES RAEGKOIEXY
) mktn - BEARMDREEZFEENER A
BEETAREBEESFRBEGAEXVBETRE
8N EBME AN R (BREREFESR
HEGINBBEXESEREERRABEAD
BRmRAR)  RARAREES RS KIS
3S2IEERARNBIFEMERLM - siRIRIZ%EST
RZEME AN R R e Easiox g -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at December 31, 2024, so far as the Directors are aware, the following
persons (not being a Director, Supervisor or chief executives of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

TERRRKRS REE KD E

2L N/ -
ﬁﬁ&/ﬁ)?:‘.

202412 4318 - LEEMA - TIALT (I
FEE  BERARAREITERAL)RERHK
AR MR IRIZES R EAEXVIBE2 R
3D EME AR AR B TR RSB AR AR IR
BHERBEEOIEBIEMERETEFE 2 ELM
REEZS SRR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in the

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Number of  relevant proportion  share capital of our
Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest Shares held of Shares" (%) Company"” (%)
RELQF
RIEE L BRTRA
R A3 VRS BENELN
BREE /BB 5%/ BEME FisRO#E BRE D" (%) BRE D" (%)
Shanghai Weiging®” Beneficial owner 3,652,700 803 424
Domestic Shares
LBREY BEakEBA 3,652,700 RN E R
Shanghai Weijun® Interest in controlled corporations 3,652,700 8.03 4.24
Domestic Shares
TIBRERY R 3,652,700 RN E R
Sinopec Capital Co,, Ltd. (FEI AL EBE R Beneficial owner 2,912,975 7.16 3.38
ARA7]) (‘Sinopec Capital’) H Shares
REAEEERERAR ([RALER]) BREAA 2,912,975 B HAR
8,738,925 19.21 10.15
Domestic Shares
8,738925 R &R
National Manufacturing Transformation and Beneficial owner 3,735,405 8.21 434
Upgrade Fund Co,, Ltd. (AR 2 £ &R Domestic Shares
ARESRHERLAD)
AR MEF AR A REERNERAR BB 3,735,405 RN ERR
Ningbo Meishan Free Trade Port Zone Pengfan Beneficial owner 3,000,000 7.38 348
Zhibin Investment Partnership (Limited H Shares
Partnership) (ERIGILRTTEREE L2 BRE
BRLE(ERAR) (Pengfan Zhibin')?
ERBLRTERRACBREEGBLE BHEAA 3,000,000 HA&

(BRAE) (BAZR))
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in the

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Number of  relevant proportlon share capital of our
Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest Shares held of Shares" (%) Comp%{\\%('S , \("/%)
RIBERLLA) BRGEE
R HIBA BEHHL
BRR#EE/ A8 5/ ERME FRERO#A BERED LY %) BERED %)
Ms. LIANG Lanyin (2ER)® Interest in controlled corporations 4,001,000 9.84 464
H Shares
ZHE LY R EEER 4,001,000 &HIR
Shenzhen Qianhai Chunyang Asset Interest in controlled corporations 5,539,497 1362 6.43
Management Co, Ltd. (RIIBT S EHEEEE H Shares
AR A7) ("Chunyang Capital’)
AasEGEEEBERLA ((FHER])Y  FEiERER 5,539,497 B HR
Shenzhen Chunyang Chuangxian Information Interest in controlled corporations 5,539,497 1362 643
Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) H Shares
(FRYNEGEI R ESAABLEBRAR)Y
RINFGEEERBARKLE (FRAK)Y R E s 5,539,497 B HER
Mr. FU Junru (BE )@ Interest in controlled corporations 5,539,497 1362 643
H Shares
[BEmEEY R E s 5,539,497 B HER
Huiyang Jingneng Investment Interest in controlled corporations 2,574,000 6.33 2.99
Management (Beijing) Co,, Ltd. H Shares
(FEFREREERIR) ﬁﬁE
#?ﬁﬁ&éﬁ% (ER)BRR R EEER 2,574,008 HAR
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Approximate

Approximate percentage of
percentage of shareholding in
shareholding in the the total issued
Number of  relevant proportion  share capital of our
Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest Shares held of Shares" (%) Company"” (%)
RARH
RiEBL) ER{TRE
R 084 EEHHL
BRR#EE/ A8 5/ ERME FRERO#A BERED LY %) BERED %)
Mr. LU Qingping (B F)® Interest in controlled corporations 2,574,000 6.33 2.99
H Shares
BETLEY REEERER 2,574,008 HAR
Ningbo Trustbridge Il Equity Investment Beneficial owner 2,191,700 539 254
Partnership (Limited Partnership) H Shares
(EREE_HRBREARLEBRAY)
("Trustbridge 11
ERBE-HRERESHOE (FREY) EHEAA 2,191,700k HAR
= DE
Ningbo Trustbridge Investment Management Interest in controlled corporations 2,191,700 539 254
Partnership (Limited Partnership) H Shares
(EREEREERARMEBRAK)
ERBEREERABLE (BRER)O RREERER 2,191,700 8% HA%
Shanghai Trustbridge New Economy Equity Interest in controlled corporations 2,922,300 7.19 339
Investment Management Partnership (Limited H Shares

Partnership) (L /BB FEERERE
ERARLEERER)

EREREEREREEREB LS XEEEER 2,922,300 H A&
(BER&%)
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in the

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Number of  relevant proportion  share capital of our
Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest Shares held of Shares" (%) Company"” (%)
RAAQT
B BR{RA
R HIBA BENEN
BRR#EE/ A8 5/ ERME FRERO#A BERED LY %) BERED %)
Shanghai Trustbridge Investment Interest in controlled corporations 2,922,300 7.19 339
Management Co, Ltd. (L B2 EREEE H Shares
BRAR)C
LEREREEEERAFY R AEER 2,922,300 HA& 7.9 339
Zhengzhou Spruce Automotive Industry Equity Beneficial owner; Interest held jointly 4,994,961 1229 5.80
Investment Fund (Limited Partnership) with another person H Shares
BENELREEZREREER(BRAE)
("Zhengzhou Spruce”)”
BNEY R EEXREREES (FRA) BN 4,994,961 BRHIR
([BMER]) HEMATHABEER
Yutong Bus Co, Ltd. (FBEBRIABRAR) Beneficial owner; Interest held jointly 4,994,961 1229 580
("Yutong Bus")" with another person H Shares
FREERHERLR ((FBEEE]) ERBEAA: 4,994,961 BRHAR
HHMA T HRREER
Mr. WAN Jingzhao (B2 H8)" Beneficial owner; Interest held jointly 4,994,961 1229 580
with another person H Shares
BRRAELY BEakEBA 4,994,961 IR HAR
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in the

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Number of  relevant proportion  share capital of our
Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest Shares held of Shares" (%) Company"” (%)
RALQF
RiEBL) ER{TRE
R HIBA BEHHL
BRR#EE/ A8 5/ ERME FRERO#A BERED LY %) BERED %)
Zhengzhou Yunshan Investment Interest in controlled corporations 4,994,961 1229 5.80
Management Co, Ltd. (S EM R EEE H Shares
BRAR)
BHELREERERRF R AEER 4,994,961 BRHAR
Lhasa Centennial Deyu Industrial Co,, Ltd. Interest in controlled corporations 4,994,961 1229 5.80
(HEEBFETEEERAR)" H Shares
NERFRTEXERARA R EEER 4,994,961 BRHAR
Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co,, Ltd. Interest in controlled corporations 4,994,961 1229 5.80
(EHFRERERAR)" H Shares
BHNFREEBRLR R EEER 4,994,961 BRHAR
Zhengzhou Tongtai Zhihe Enterprise Interest in controlled corporations 4,994,961 1229 5.80
Management Center (Limited Partnership) H Shares
BMBRESLEERTOERAE)”
BHBRFZACEERHL(BREE)Y R E s 4,994,961 B HAR
Zhengzhou Tongtai Hezhi Management Interest in controlled corporations 4,994,961 1229 5.80
Consulting Co, Ltd. (BMBRABEEZHN H Shares
BRAR)
HNBERABERAAERARY R EEER 4,994,961 BRHIR
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in the

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total issued

Number of  relevant proportion  share capital of our

Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest Shares held of Shares™ (%) Company” (%)

AR

RIEE LA BRTRA

. IR A3 O BEA BENELN

BR#EE A8 5%/ BHiME FERO#E BRED LY %) BERE D" (%)

Mr. TANG Yuxiang (% E#)7 Interest in controlled corporations 4,994,961 1229 580
H Shares
BEEEED RmAEER 4,994,961 BRHIR

Lhasa Deyu Xinrong Industrial Co,, Ltd. Interest in controlled corporations 4,994,961 1229 5.80
(EEFHREZERAR)" H Shares
NERFHREXERAR RmEEER 4,994,961 B HAR

FAW Jiefang Automotive Co,, Ltd. Beneficial owner 3,600,000 7.92 418
(—ABmABARAR)® Domestic Shares
—ABBAEBR AR EREEA 3,600,000 & R

FAW Jiefang Group Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled corporations 3,600,000 7.92 418
(—ABRRERRHERAR) Domestic Shares
—ARNEERHERARY RmEEER 3,600,000 A& R

Notes:
MsE

As at December 31, 2024, the Company had issued 86,139,291 Shares in total,
including 45,482,153 Domestic Shares and 40,657,138 H Shares.

Shanghai Weijun held approximately 54.18% partnership interest in Shanghai
Weiqing as one of its limited partners. As such, under the SFO, Shanghai Weijun
is deemed to be interested in the 3,652,700 Domestic Shares held by Shanghai
Weiging.

Ms. LIANG Lanyin (BH) held approximately 99.81% partnership interest in
Pengfan Zhibin as its sole limited partner and approximately 99.78% partnership
interest in Ningbo Meishan Free Trade Port Zone Jinglong Baoluo Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (ZEBILRMABRREBEREEGRLEE
RAE)) as its sole limited partner. As such, under the SFO, Ms. LIANG Lanyin is
deemed to be interested in the 4,001,000 H Shares held by Pengfan Zhibin and
Ningbo Meishan Free Trade Port Zone Jinglong Baoluo Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership).

20245128318 RRFIA HBE71786,139,291
f&f& 5 - B24545,482,153 IR N E A% 5 40,657,138 K H

B o

FERBEALERENBRAEZAFEEY
54.18% 5 B o At - BIBFFEHFREBEKM
LR AR LIEREFTHE3,652,700 RAE
MR A R o

Z2EELZTRBELZENE—EBREBAZE
H#99.81% 4 Bl RIEAZFGILRTIAER
BRERLEARLE (BRAB)NE—FGREE
AFEBEA9.78%E BHEm - AL BREBEEFEHFR
HEKS  RPERLEIHEEARBALZ BRER
BLURBAERRERREGELE (BRAR)
Fir#54,001,000 8 HAX R B S ©
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Chunyang Capital is the general partner of each of Pengfan Zhibin, Shenzhen
Chunyang Songteng Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) (F3IIZ&F
MEERIZEIREABBEE(BRE)) and Ningbo Meishan Free Trade Port Zone
Jinglong Baoluo Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (& H§IL{RTEHS
EREERREASEEEREH)). Shenzhen Chunyang Hongxin Venture
Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) (FRYIERAMEEIEREABEEER
A %)) is managed by its general partner, Shenzhen Qianhai Chunyang Venture
Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) (CRIIFEEGBIZIREEBREEER
& %)), whose general partner is Chunyang Capital.

Chunyang Capital was held as to 80% by Shenzhen Chunyang Chuangxian
Information Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (& 3IIE[5 8l 5L 15 B 5
ABLE(ERAE) whose general partner is Mr. FU Junru ({E 40).

As such, under the SFO, each of Chunyang Capital, Shenzhen Chunyang
Chuangxian Information Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) and Mr.
FU Junru is deemed to be interested in the 5,539,497 H Shares held by Pengfan
Zhibin, Shenzhen Chunyang Songteng Venture Capital Partnership (Limited
Partnership), Ningbo Meishan Free Trade Port Zone Jinglong Baoluo Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) and Shenzhen Chunyang Hongxin Venture
Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership).

Each of Ningbo Huiging Jingnuo Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(BREFBERARIERESRPLEAEMRER)) and Ningbo Luping Jingneng
Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) (BE & F Recgl2RE AR
H(BRE#)) is managed by its general partner, Huiyang Jingneng Investment
Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. R REER BB R LX) AR A F]), which is
wholly owned by Mr. LU Qingping (B/&). As such, under the SFO, each of
Huiyang Jingneng Investment Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and Mr. LU Qingping
is deemed to be interested in the 2,574,000 H Shares held by Ningbo Huiging
Jingnuo Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership) and Ningbo Luping
Jingneng Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership).

Trustbridge Il is managed by its general partner, Ningbo Trustbridge Investment
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) (BN Z2EREEEABLE B
R & %)), whose general partner is Shanghai Trustbridge New Economy Equity
Investment Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) (/8 Z(E 34 ER
BIREEEABEE(BREE)), whose general partner is Shanghai Trustbridge
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (L/BREHREEEBRAF). Besides,
Shanghai Trustbridge New Economy Equity Investment Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership) is the general partner of Ningbo Trustbridge New Economy |I
Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (Z8 5 22 (= # A4S 7 — BRRRHEIE
BEaBEREBERAR).

As such, under the SFO, Ningbo Trustbridge Investment Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership) is deemed to be interested in the 2,191,700 H Shares held by
Trustbridge II, and each of Shanghai Trustbridge New Economy Equity Investment
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) and Shanghai Trustbridge
Investment Management Co., Ltd. Is deemed to be interested in the 2,922,300
H Shares held by Trustbridge Il and Ningbo Trustbridge New Economy Il Equity
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership).

EEEARIBAZE  RYELERAEKRER
BRE(BERAR) RERELRTERRIZEE
REABLEX (FRAB)ZENEREBA - R
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BERBEHE (BRER)PTHS5,539,497 R HAR+ %
B o
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Zhengzhou Spruce, Yutong Bus and Mr. WAN Jingzhao (B85 8&) beneficially
hold 3,363,798 H Shares, 1,494,162 H Shares and 137,001 H Shares, respectively.
As confirmed by Zhengzhou Spruce, Yutong Bus and Mr. WAN Jingzhao, they
are parties acting in concert in exercising Shareholders’ rights pertaining to our
Company. As such, under the SFO, each of Zhengzhou Spruce, Yutong Bus and Mr.
WAN Jingzhao is interested in the respective H Shares they beneficially hold and is
deemed to be interested in the H Shares held by the other two parties.

Besides, Zhengzhou Spruce is managed by its general partner, Zhengzhou
Yunshan Investment Management Co., Ltd. (BB EEZEEEFRR A 7)), which
was wholly owned by Lhasa Centennial Deyu Industrial Co., Ltd. (hIEEH F1=
FEXEBRAF), which was wholly owned by Zhengzhou Yutong Group Co.,
Ltd. (EBINFBEE AR A A]), which was in turn held as to 85% by Zhengzhou
Tongtai Zhihe Enterprise Management Center (Limited Partnership) (M @2
ATEEEPLERAE)), whose general partner is Zhengzhou Tongtai Hezhi
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (BSJNiBZA S BIE A @A R A R]), which was
in turn held as to 52% by Mr. TANG Yuxiang (% E#£) as of December 31, 2024.
Further, as of December 31, 2024, Zhengzhou Spruce was held as to approximately
79.84% by Lhasa Deyu Xinrong Industrial Co., Ltd. RIEEFHRIEXER A A)
as the largest limited partner.

Besides, Yutong Bus was held as to approximately 37.70% directly by Zhengzhou
Yutong Group Co., Ltd. as of December 31, 2024.

As such, under the SFO, (i) each of Zhengzhou Yunshan Investment Management
Co., Ltd,, Lhasa Centennial Deyu Industrial Co., Ltd. and Lhasa Deyu Xinrong
Industrial Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the H Shares in Zhengzhou
Spruce is interested and is deemed to be interested, and (i) each of Zhengzhou
Yutong Group Co., Ltd., Zhengzhou Tongtai Zhihe Enterprise Management Center
(Limited Partnership), Zhengzhou Tongtai Hezhi Management Consulting Co., Ltd.
and Mr. TANG Yuxiang is deemed to be interested in the H Shares in Zhengzhou
Spruce and Yutong Bus are interested and are deemed to be interested.

FAW Jiefang Automotive Co, Ltd. (—/AfFBUSEBIRAR]) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of FAW Jiefang Group Co,, Ltd. (—/AEMEE RN AR A F]), which
is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000800). As such, under
the SFO, FAW Jiefang Group Co,, Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the 3,600,000
Domestic Shares held by FAW Jiefang Automotive Co., Ltd..

All interests are long positions.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2024, so far as the Directors are
aware, the Company had not been notified by any other persons (other than
the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be entered in the register required to be kept

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
that would enable the Directors or Supervisors to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or Supervisors or any of their spouses
or children under the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the
equity or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had

exercised any such right.

ISSUANCE OF DEBENTURES

During the year ended December 31, 2024, no issuance of debentures was

made by the Company.

B EXCATBEESN - REEATA - R2024512
A318 - ARREABEEEAEMALT (ES
EERARATZERITBABRIN @B - RRA
RARRRGHAERDEBREES RS
WGBIEXVEE 2 REINFATHE - HBELA
BIEBEL S EIENFE36EBRARTFERN
ERMeERIORAE -

ESRBERONERENVEFR

BAFHAITREEIN AR B REA(INE
RERERE B BB R A LB AR E
EREEMHERBEARFSEFMEAMER AR
REEEMESHR  EMEEEREEL
E {5 BB s R 18 5% F L ER AR
AR B AT E A A B e B sk B E MR A
HERITEREMBRAER -

BITERER
HZE2024F12831BILFE - ARABTEEDL
T {EREE AT -



2024 %% | ANNUALREPORT2024 | REFIRE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

To the knowledge of the Board, none of the Directors had any interests in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly,

with the businesses of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2024.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions entered of the Group during the
year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in note 39 to the consolidated

financial statements.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, save for the transaction with
Dr. ZHAI Shuang which constituted a fully exempt connected transaction
pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules, none of the related party
transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements
constitute any non-exempt connected transaction or continuing connected

transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director or Supervisor or an entity
connected with a Director or Supervisor was materially interested, either
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract which is
significant in relation to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisting during the
year ended December 31, 2024 or at the end of the year ended December
31,2024.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance was
entered into between the Company, or one of its subsidiary companies, and
a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended
December 31, 2024.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended December 31, 2024 between the Company
and a person other than a Director or Supervisors or any person engaged in

the full-time employment of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for Directors
liabilities in respect of legal actions arising out of corporate activities against

the Directors as at the date of this annual report.

Except for such insurances, at no time during the year and up to the date of
this annual report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being
in force for the benefit of any of the Directors of the Company or associated

companies.

STAFF, EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

As of the date of this annual report, the Group had 414 employees.
Our employees are generally remunerated by way of a fixed salary. Our
remuneration policies are formulated based on the performance of individual
employees and are reviewed regularly. A Remuneration and Appraisal
committee was set up to review the Company’s emolument policy and
structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management of
the Company, having regard to the Company's operating results, individual
performance of the Directors and senior management and comparable

market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, the chief executive and
supervisors and five highest paid individuals for the year ended December

31,2024 are set out in notes 8 to 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Full time employees of the Group in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC government.
During the Reporting Period, no forfeited contributions had been used by

the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE SCHEMES

Our Company adopted and approved the Employee Incentive Schemes on
March 27,2017, May 15, 2019, December 24, 2020, June 23, 2022 and January
21, 2024, respectively. The Employee Incentive Schemes are not subject to
the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules as they do not involve the
grant of Shares or the grant of options by our Company to subscribe for

Shares after the Listing.

Our Company established seven ESOP Platforms, namely Shanghai Weilan,
Shanghai Weiging, Shanghai Weijing, Shanghai Weijun, Shanghai Yuanyiging,
Shanghai Weiyi and Canada ESOP Platform.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Employee Incentive

Schemes (as amend from time to time).

The purpose of the Employee Incentive Schemes is to incentivize our
employees and external consultant who have made contribution to our

Group's development.
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Participants of the Employee Incentive Schemes include our senior
management members, middle management members and other
individuals who have significant contribution to the development of our
Company (the “Participants”). The Employee Incentive Schemes further

provide that the Participants:
shall possess full capacity for civil conducts;
shall not have any criminal record;

shall not have been publicly condemned or declared as an
inappropriate participant by any stock exchange, the CSRC or any
administrative authority under the CSRC in the past three years;

shall not have been imposed administrative penalties or market
bans (352X A$& ) by the CSRC and any administrative authority
under the CSRC as a result of material violations of laws and

regulations in the past three years;

shall not have been the legal representative of a company or
enterprise whose business license had been revoked or which
had been ordered to close as a result of violation of laws (except
where three years had passed since the date of liquidation of such

company or enterprise);

shall not have been a director, factory director or manager of a
company or enterprise which had been bankrupt or liquidated
(except where three years had passed since the date of bankruptcy

or liquidation of such company or enterprise);

shall not have a significant amount of personal debts due but not

repaid;

shall not have violated the Articles of Association or their

employment contracts;

shall not have severely violated the rules and regulations of our

Company.
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The executive partner of Shanghai Weilan, Shanghai Weiqging, Shanghai
Weijing, Shanghai Weijun, Shanghai Yuanyiging and Shanghai Weiyi is
Mr. Lin. The general partner of Canada ESOP Platform is 1415085 B.C. Ltd,,
which has delegated all of its powers and duties as a general partner of
Canada ESOP Platform to Mr. Lin pursuant to a management agreement
dated January 9, 2024, and Mr. Lin is responsible for the management of
Canada ESOP Platform. Therefore, in effect, all management powers of
the ESOP Platforms reside with Mr. Lin.

The selected Participants will be granted awards in the form of
economic interest in the ESOP Platforms conditional upon certain
conditions as specified in each award agreement and upon fulfilment of
such conditions, such selected Participants will become a limited partner
of the relevant ESOP Platform. Upon becoming the limited partner of the
ESOP Platforms, the selected Participants indirectly receive economic
interest in the corresponding number of underlying Shares held by
the ESOP Platforms. All selected Participants irrevocably authorize the
general partner of the relevant ESOP Platform to handle all affairs of the
relevant ESOP Platform and act as the concerted party to the general

partner of the relevant ESOP Platform.

Our executive Directors or our Board (as the case may be) shall be

responsible for:

formulation, modifications and specific implementation of the

Employee Incentive Schemes;

interpretation and supervision of the Employee Incentive Schemes;

where applicable, formulation and implementation of specific
incentive schemes for foreign employees and relevant rules for

overseas employee shareholding platforms (if any); and

any other matters relating to the supervision and implementation
of the Employee Incentive Schemes, or authorized under the
Employee Incentive Schemes, the Articles of Association and

relevant legal documents or by a general meeting of our Company.
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The interest held by the Participants in the relevant ESOP Platform shall
be subject to a lock-up period which shall be 12 months from the Listing
(in the case of the partnership interest whose underlying Shares are H
Shares) or 36 months from the date of our Company's listing in the PRC
(in the case of the partnership interest whose underlying Shares are not
H Shares).

Upon listing of our Company, prior to the expiry of the applicable lock-
up period, the Participants may not transfer, pledge, gift or otherwise
encumber or entrust to another person their interest in the limited
partnership without the consent of the executive partner of the relevant
ESOP Platform.

Upon listing of our Company and the expiry of the applicable lock-
up period, (i) subject to any applicable rules and regulations, the
Participants make an application to the executive partner of the
relevant ESOP Platform in connection with the disposal of their interest
in the limited partnership; and (ii) other than the aforementioned
circumstance, the Participants may not transfer, pledge, gift or otherwise
encumber or entrust to another person their interest in the limited
partnership without the consent of the executive partner of the relevant
ESOP Platform.

Further details of Employee Incentive Schemes of the Group during the
year ended December 31, 2024 are set out in note 32a to the consolidated

financial statements.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of our Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme adopted on January 21, 2024. No further options will be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after Listing.

The Incentive Scheme has been formulated to further establish and
improve the Company's long-term incentive mechanism, attract and retain
outstanding talents, maximize the motivation of the staff of the Company
and effectively align Shareholders' interests, the Company's interests and
individual interests of the core team members so that the parties would

make joint efforts for the Company's long-term development.
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The term of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme commences on the date
on which the options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are first
granted and ends on the date on which all options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are exercised or canceled, and in any

event, will not exceed six years.

The Board is responsible for the implementation and management of
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The eligible participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (“Eligible
Participants”) include our Group's Directors, senior management
members, core technical personnel and important technical personnel,
as well as other employees that our Company thinks fit, excluding

independent non-executive Directors and Supervisors.

Before granting any option under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
the Board shall evaluate whether conditions for the grant of options
have been satisfied by the relevant Eligible Participant, the relevant
Eligible Participant shall enter into a share option grant agreement with
our Company, which sets out the respective rights and obligations of
the relevant Eligible Participant and our Company. No consideration
is payable upon the grant of options under the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme.

The maximum aggregate number of underlying Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 5,267,800 Domestic Shares
(representing approximately 6.11% of the existing issued share capital of

the Company).

The exercise price in respect of each option granted shall be RMB33.64.
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(9) Exercise of Options

The options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not be
exercised before the expiry of 12 months commencing on the date
on which the options are granted or the Listing Date (whichever is
later) (the “Waiting Period"). Subject to the satisfaction of the relevant
conditions in respect of the exercise of options, the Eligible Participants

may exercise their options in two tranches:

(9) FBRERIITIE

BRAFMEESHBREFTSTHRERED
SREBRER T ZASR ET A CARBRE
RZE)E12EAERA ([FFBDITE - 75
EHABITEBRENBEBGE 28R
SEE D MALITEE B

Exercise period

Maximum portion
of options which
may be exercised

CIERgEd -3¢
1THEH SN
The first exercise period Commencing on the first trading day of H Shares upon the expiry of the
Waiting Period and ending on the last trading day within
12 months from the expiry of the Waiting Period 50%
E— BT BEFHEMEBEHRRZ S A RESFHEREHW12ME 8 &%
—fEA %A 1k
The second exercise period ~ Commencing on the first trading day of H Shares upon the expiry of
12 months from the expiry of the Waiting Period and ending on the
last trading day within 24 months from the expiry of the Waiting Period 50%

& BT
4 EANRE—EARS A LE

BEFHEREFm12EANEEHRRZ S B RESFHEREI W

Where options which may be exercised are not exercised within the
relevant exercise period, such options shall be cancelled. Where any
relevant condition in respect of the exercise of options is not satisfied
for the relevant exercise period, the portion of options which may be

exercised during the corresponding exercise period shall be cancelled.

(h) Adjustment

If our Company conducts capitalization of capital reserve, bonus shares
issue, share subdivision, share split, rights issue or share reduction, the
number and price of the options shall be adjusted in accordance with
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

(h)

A FITE B ENERETEMARE
1T - BRABRER T A - WA
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(i)

()

(k)

)

Lock-up Period and Restrictions on Disposals

The Domestic Shares issued to the Eligible Participants pursuant to the
exercise of the options are subject to a lock-up period of one year from
the date on which the options are exercised, following which the Eligible
Participants may dispose of such Domestic Shares in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations of the place(s) where our Company's
securities are listed and the stock exchange(s) where our Company’s

securities are listed.

Non-transferability of Options

All options are non-transferable and shall not be used as a form of

guarantee or as a repayment of debt.

Change in Control

Despite a change in control, amalgamation or separation of our
Company, there shall not be any amendments to the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme.

Amendments to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Any amendment to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be approved

by a general meeting of our Company.

()

(k)

)
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(m) Outstanding Options (m) [ R 7T (A R 1
| | | | | | | |
Number Number
of Shares of Shares
underlying underlying
the outstanding the outstanding
options as options as at
at January 1, December 31,
Name/category of grantees Positions held within our Group 2024 Number of Shares underlying the options 2024
2024
R204F1 818 1283188
WEATEERE HATEERE
RBEALL /BRI EEEENER RERHEEY BERERERAEA RERHEE
Granted Exercised  Lapsed during Cancelled
during the year”  during the year theyear®  during the year

EREREY  FAEAR FhkRe Ehis

Mr. LIN Qi (#3) Chairperson of our Board, executive - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Director and chief executive officer

iy EER REERERYAE

Dr. HU Zhe (%) Executive Director, chief operating officer - 750,000 - - - 750,000
and president

il ns GTEE ERELERGH

Ms. MA Audrey Jing Nan (5&79) Executive Director and vice president - 200,000 - - - 200,000

ERiEnt MTEEREAH

Dr. ZHAI Shuang (B%) Executive Director and deputy executive - 150,000 - - - 150,000
director of the R&D center

et RTEERRERLATRIEE

Mr. ZHAQ Yongsheng () Executive Director and director of the - 150,000 - - - 150,000
supply chain center

BERE RTESRMARETLOE

Mr. ZHENG Zhong (BE) Vice president, Board secretary, director of our - 150,000 - - - 150,000
subsidliary and supervisor of our subsidiaries

g5t Bz #FeUE LMNBLAES

REAHELIES
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Number Number
of Shares of Shares
underlying underlying
the outstanding the outstanding
options as options as at
at January 1, December 31,
Name/category of grantees Positions held within our Group 2024 Number of Shares underlying the options 2024
2045
R204F1 818 1283188
WEATRERRE WAGTRERE
AEARS/EH EREENER RERGERAY BRERERGHA RERGHA
Granted Exercised  Lapsed during Cancelled
during the year  during the year theyear®  during the year
FRERA FREAE EREHY Epi
M. XIE Hongyu (L) Vice president and director of our subsidiaries - 200,000 - - - 200,000
BImRE BaszamiBLaEs
Mr. SHAO Liangming (AR &) Financial controller - 18,250 - - - 18,250
PREfE HBREA
M LU Yun (BIE) Evecutive president - 150,000 - - - 150,000
BEns HTHE
Other 146 grantees” - - 2499550 - - 444050 2,055,500
Efp 146 ZAREA?
Notes: Bist :
(1) The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted and approved on January (1) BRXAFREEABRETER2024F1 8

21, 2024. All the options were granted on January 21, 2024, with an exercise
price of RMB33.64 per Share. For details of the exercise period, see “(g)
Exercise of Options”above.

During the period from January 21, 2024 to November 18, 2024 (being the
latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining certain information
contained in the Prospectus), 27 grantees left the Group, and the share
options previously granted to them were cancelled accordingly. In respect
of the remaining 119 grantees who are not Directors, senior management
or connected persons of our Company and have not been granted options
to subscribe for 150,000 Shares or more, one out of such 119 grantees left
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2024 and the share options
previously granted to him were cancelled accordingly.

21 BERMRALE o FTBERER2024F1 A
2181\ TEEASRBRND ARK33.64
TC o (THEHFBHELE L (g BREMNTT
]

B2024%1 821 BZE2024F11 188 (ENFE
ERBRERMESE TERNREERATA
) IEEART - 27 B AR ABERASE - LAl
BYHENBREEEEN - BEK1198
ABRA(WIERRRESE SfESEERH
EAT B R B RRAE LATREE 150,000 8%
FALERDIME » Z19BEBAFE—F
EEAREZE 202412 A31 B ILEEBA
£E - KRR TEMOBIERBENS
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During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed above, no share options

were granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled.

Details of the fair value of the share options at the date of grant and the
accounting standard and policy adopted are set out in note 2.4 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Details of the Group's Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme for the year ended
December 31, 2024 are set out in note 32b to the consolidated financial

statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreement was
entered into by the Company at any time during or subsisted at the end of
the year ended December 31, 2024.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, no
member of the Group was involved in any litigation, arbitration or claim
of material importance, and no litigation, arbitration or claim of material
importance was known to the Directors to be pending or threatened against

any member of the Group.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

There was no donation made by the Group during the year ended December
31, 2024.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OR SALE OF TREASURY SHARES

From the Listing Date up to December 31, 2024, except for the Global
Offering in connection with the Listing, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities or sold any treasury Shares (as defined under the Listing Rules).
As at December 31, 2024, the Company did not hold any treasury Shares (as
defined under the Listing Rules).

RBEHE - REXMEEESN  BER
PR R~ 1T~ RAREKEESH -
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

The H Shares of the Company were first listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on December 6, 2024. Without taking into account the exercise of
the over-allotment option on January 2, 2025, after deducting underwriting
fees, commissions and other related listing expenses, the total net proceeds
of the Group's initial public offering amounted to approximately HK$619.9
million (the "“Net Proceeds”). The Net Proceeds will be allocated and utilized
in accordance with the purposes and proportions set out in the Prospectus
of the Company, and there is no change in the intended use of the Net

Proceeds as disclosed in the Prospectus.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEWE

ERBEMBSRHFHRNAR
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TREBIMERBFENRTAEREEZ
2024F 12 A3 AMERBABE

The following table sets out the intended use of the Net Proceeds and a

summary of their utilization as of December 31, 2024:

Amount of net
proceeds

Balance of net
proceeds

Intended
timetable

Percentage  utilized up to unutilized as at for use of the
Allocation of of total December31, December 31, unutilized net
Intended use of net proceeds net proceeds Net Proceeds 2024 2024 proceeds
EZE2024%5 20245
1542 124318 1283181 AR A
FTiS A FT{S 308 EEAN REFAE PTG RIBFRE
FRiSFORFRNETE R FEMSE  FEAL  ETUERETE  JEFEEAS REREER
(i)  To fund our R&D activities and HK$461.8 74.5% Nil HK$461.8 Before
production capacity expansion of our million million December 31,
hydrogen fuel cell systems 2028
() AEMOEREEDZFOHEED 4618 74.5% T 461.8EEHBTT 20285
RiFEERHMES BEET 12A31 85
(i) To fund our production capacity HK$94.9 15.3% Nil HK$94.9 Before
expansion of our hydrogen production million million December 31,
systems 2027
(i) REFNSERBNEERH{ES 949HEBTT 15.3% T 949HEHT #2027
12A3188
(iii) For the expansion of our overseas HK$47.7 7.7% Nil HK$47.7 Before
market footprint million million December 31,
2028
(i) BREMBEBINTSEBAR 477 B BT 7.7% T 477EEER 20284
1283188
(iv) For our working capital and general HKS$15.5 2.5% Nil HK$15.5 Before
corporate purposes million million December 31,
2028
vy BREMNEEESR—MRDAIAE 155888 2.5% T 155HEBBET 720284F
1283188
Total HK$619.9 100% Nil HK$619.9
million million
st 619.9E BB T 100% T 619.9HEBT

Note:The intended utilization timetable for the unutilized net proceeds is based on
the Group's current best estimate and is subject to changes depending on the
Group's uncontrollable future development and activities.

i RBAMBEREFENESABRRIDENAE
EREREREMEL - EAteREAZET
AR ARKRERIESMAMEE -
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On January 2, 2025, the over-allotment option as described in the Prospectus
was partially exercised, and an aggregate of 23,180 H Shares has been
allotted and issued by the Company. The Company received additional
net proceeds of approximately HKS$3.4 million, after deduction of offering
expenses payable by the Company in connection with the partial exercise
of the over-allotment option. The Company will utilize the additional net

proceeds on a pro-rata basis for the purposes as set out in the Prospectus.

The Company is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 98 to

127 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has been established with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, including three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. CHEN Fei, Dr. QIAN Meifen and Mr. LI Wei. Mr. CHEN Fei

is the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has, together with the management and the external
auditor, reviewed the accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group as well as the internal control matters, and also reviewed the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024.
The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed and confirmed that the
annual financial results for the year ended December 31, 2024 comply with
the relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and appropriate

disclosures have been duly made.
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended

December 31, 2024 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young shall retire and being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment,

and a resolution to this effect shall be proposed at the AGM.

On January 2, 2025, the over-allotment option as described in the Prospectus
was partially exercised, and an aggregate of 23,180 H Shares were allotted
and issued by the Company. The Company received additional net proceeds
of approximately HK$3.4 million, after deduction of offering expenses payable
by the Company in connection with the partial exercise of the over-allotment
option. The Company will utilize the additional net proceeds on a pro-rata

basis for the purposes as set out in the Prospectus.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
January 2, 2025.

Due to work re-arrangement reasons, Mr. SUN Bei has resigned as an
employees’ representative Supervisor of the current session of the
Supervisory Committee with effect from January 27, 2025, and Mr. JI Yizhi
has resigned as a Shareholders’ representative Supervisor of the current
session of the Supervisory Committee with effect from the date on which
the proposed election of Mr. DONG Yazhou (“Mr. Dong") as a Shareholders’

representative Supervisor is approved by the Shareholders of the Company.

Mr. LIU Tiezhong was elected as an employees’ representative Supervisor
of the current session of the Supervisory Committee at an employees’
representative assembly of the Company held on January 27, 2025, for a term
commencing on January 27, 2025 and ending on the expiration of the term

of office of the current session of the Supervisory Committee.
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Further, the Supervisory Committee resolved to propose to elect Mr. Dong
as a Shareholders’ representative Supervisor of the current session of the
Supervisory Committee at a meeting of the Supervisory Committee held
on January 27, 2025. The proposed election of Mr. Dong as a Shareholders’
representative Supervisor was duly passed by the Shareholders at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on February 19, 2025,
and Mr. Dong would serve as a Shareholders’ representative Supervisor for a
term commencing on February 19, 2025 and ending on the expiration of the
term of office of the current session of the Supervisory Committee. Following
the election of Mr. Dong as a Shareholders’ representative Supervisor
on February 19, 2025, the resignation of Mr. JI Yizhi as a Shareholders’
representative Supervisor of the current session of the Supervisory

Committee has taken effect.

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
January 27, 2025 and February 19, 2025, and the circular of the Company
dated January 27, 2025.

On February 28, 2025, the Company submitted a filing (the “CSRC Filing”)
to the China Securities Regulatory Commission (FEEHFEBREELZES),
in respect of the implementation of the full circulation of H Shares. Under
the CSRC Filing, the Company has made an application to the CSRC on
behalf of certain Shareholders of the Company for conversion of a total of
16,369,877 Domestic Shares held by such Shareholders into H Shares and the
listing of such converted H Shares on the Stock Exchange (the “Conversion
and Listing"). Upon obtaining all the filings and/or approvals from relevant
regulatory authorities (including the CSRC and the Stock Exchange) and
having complied with all the applicable laws, regulations and rules, such
Domestic Shares will be converted into H Shares, and such H Shares will be
listed and traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

RN - RA20254F1 B27 A EBITHEFEESSS -
EERRBRE BRERELLERLAREES
ERFARKRES - BREREBELERREARE
EEE AR R AR A AR 20254 2 A19 A ETHEG
BAIRERE EIERXBLE - SRR &R
ERARERRRERESNAEIEE2025F2A8
1ORRMBEARESEESEBEMELL - 182025
FLAVVABRRELEBRRRRESER  F—
EEEBAENEEEERRARESTDEN -

HE—HHERELEARR B A2025F1 A27H
F2025F2 19 ARE RAAGT B A20254F
1A27BEVEE o

ANARER2025F2 A28 A EHR 2 RER
FREBFFEEEEZECRER ((PERE
SHER])  BREFEIESHER  ARFER
RARRETREMFHABZESRLEAE K
ZEBREFENE 16,369,877 RNERE R A
HAR I PRSP B ([ R £ ) - BAEFEE
EMEBISITEEBERR SHE (BEFEH
BEGMBMRMM)RFEMARERERE  EHR
RER ZENERBEERAHR - MZEH
RASRERFTER ETREE -



Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited | L& 2 EREBMBRHERATE

As at the date of this annual report, details of the implementation plan of
the Conversion and Listing have not been finalized. The Company will make
further announcement(s) on the progress of the Conversion and Listing
in accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules and/or the
Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as and when appropriate.
The Conversion and Listing are subject to the performance of other relevant
procedures required by the CSRC, the Stock Exchange and other relevant

domestic and overseas regulatory authorities.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
February 28, 2025.

Pursuant to the amendments to the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China (R ZEARAFIEIQRFE)) effective on July 1, 2024 (the “New
Company Law"), a joint stock limited company may, in accordance with its
Articles of Association, instead of establishing a Supervisory Committee,
establish an Audit Committee which comprises Directors and discharges the
duties of the Supervisory Committee as prescribed under the New Company
Law. On April 17, 2025, in light of the New Company Law, the Board resolved
and proposed to dissolve the Supervisory Committee (the “Proposed
Dissolution”), following which the duties of the Supervisory Committee will
be discharged by the Audit Committee of the Board.

Pursuant to the Articles and the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Proposed Dissolution is subject to the approval of the Shareholders by way
of a special resolution at a general meeting. A special resolution to consider
and approve the Proposed Dissolution will be proposed at the AGM in due

course.
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In light of the New Company Law and the Proposed Dissolution, as well
as the consultation conclusions on “Proposals to Further Expand the
Paperless Listing Regime and Other Rule Amendments” published by the
Stock Exchange on January 24, 2025, and to further improve the corporate
governance of the Company, the Board resolved and proposed to amend
the Articles in accordance with the requirements of the New Company
Law and the Listing Rules, and make adjustments to certain provisions in
the Articles after taking into consideration, among others, the operational
and management needs of the Company (collectively, the “Proposed

Amendments”).

Pursuant to the Articles and the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Proposed Amendments are subject to the approval of the Shareholders
by way of a special resolution at a general meeting. A special resolution to
consider and approve the Proposed Amendments will be proposed at the

AGM in due course.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
April 17, 2025.

Save as disclosed above, there were no events occurred that have

significantly affected the Group up to the date of this annual report.

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations under Rules
13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. LIN Qi

Chairman of the Board
Shanghai, the PRC, April 25, 2025
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REPORT OF SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
EERES

In 2024, all members of the Supervisory Committee diligently and responsibly

supervised the operation and management of the Company in accordance

with relevant provisions such as the Company Law of the People's Republic

of China, the Securities Law of the People's Republic of China, the Company's

Articles of Association, and the Rules of Procedure for the Supervisory

Committee, effectively safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders and the

Company.

COMPOSITION OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the
Supervisory Committee consists of 5 members, including 2 employees’
representative Supervisors and 3 Shareholders' representative
Supervisors. The term of office of the Supervisors is 3 years and they
can be re-elected after their respective terms expire. As of the date of
this annual report, the members of the Supervisory Committee of the

Company are as follows:

WU Yang (Shareholders’ representative Supervisor, chairperson of

the Supervisory Committee)

DONG Yazhou (Shareholders’ representative Supervisor)

ZHANG Cheng (Shareholders' representative Supervisor)

WANG Chugi (employees’ representative Supervisor)

LIU Tiezhong (employees’ representative Supervisor)

CHANGE OF SUPERVISORS

From January 1, 2024 to the date of this annual report, the composition
of the Company's Supervisory Committee have changed three times.

The specific details are as follows:

1) On August 21, 2024, after being reviewed and approved by the
Company's third extraordinary general meeting in 2024, ZHOU
Wei, the Shareholders’ representative Supervisor, was changed to
ZHANG Cheng;

R2024%F BEEGEEBNERB(RFE QT

FE) AREAREFERESRE) RRIERRE
EEFRAUISHAATRBEEEBARAA

HIEEREE  BRONEERARIRRER ©

1. EEEHE

REARERNAT  EFEEESAK
B AMARIRREFTRIBERRARE
B BEEEH3F  AHERRIUNEER
B RAFHRAY > ARAREESKE
LEN

RF (BRAKRESE  BEFEXF)

BN (BRRRRES)
w2 (BRAKRES)

TRE(BIARKRES)
ZEh (BIRRER)

H2024F1 A1VAE2AFHRAH - ARAE
FEeNAEKEE =k - ABFBOT ¢

1) R2024F8H218 » 2024 FRNFE
ZABRERReEZILE  BEARR
EEFRBEET ARE



2024 4£4F | ANNUALREPORT 2024 | REFIRE

2)  On January 17, 2025, after being elected by the Company's
employees’ representative assembly, Sun Bei, the employees’

representative Supervisor, was changed to LIU Tiezhong; and

3)  On February 19, 2025, after being reviewed and approved by the
Company's first extraordinary general meeting in 2025, JI Yizhi, the
Shareholders’ representative Supervisor, was changed to DONG
Yazhou. All three changes have gone through the necessary review
procedures, and the operation of the Supervisory Committee is
stable.

In 2024, the Supervisory Committee convened and held 7 Supervisory
Committee meetings in accordance with the law. The notification,
convening, and voting procedures of the meetings comply with the
requirements of the Company Law of the People's Republic of China
and other laws and regulations, as well as the Company's Articles of
Association and the Rules of Procedure for the Supervisory Committee.
In addition, according to the relevant provisions of the Company's
Articles of Association, the Supervisory Committee attended 12 meetings
held by the Board of Directors and 6 shareholders’ meetings convened
by the Board of Directors. The work of the Supervisory Committee mainly

includes:

1. Attending the Company's shareholders’ meetings to understand the

operation of the shareholders” meetings.

2. Attending the Board meeting of the Company to understand the

operation of the Board.

3. Reviewing the Company's finance report and the audit report

submitted by the accounting firm.

4. Opinions expressed by the Supervisory Committee.
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The Board of Directors and senior management members of the
Company operate in strict accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Company Law of the People's Republic of China and the
Company's Articles of Association, perform their duties diligently
and responsibly, make scientific and reasonable decision-making
procedures, conscientiously implement the resolutions of the
general meeting, and have not found any illegal activities or

behaviors that harm the interests of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee has reviewed and agreed to the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2024, and believes that the financial statements of the Company
objectively and truthfully reflect the Company's financial position
and operating performance, without false records, misleading
statements, or significant omissions. The audit opinion issued by

the Company's appointed auditors is objective and fair.

The Supervisory Committee has inspected the construction
and operation of the Company's internal control system and
believes that a relatively complete internal control system and
corresponding internal control framework has been established.
As far as they are aware, the Directors and senior management
of the Company have implemented the decisions of the general
meeting and the Board meeting in accordance with relevant
laws, regulations, and the Articles of Association. The Supervisory
Committee also believes that the internal control evaluation report
of the Company truly and objectively reflects the Company's

internal control system and its operation.
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The Supervisory Committee supervised the related party
transactions that conducted by in the Company in 2024. The
Supervisory Committee believes that the decision-making process
of such related party transactions complies with relevant laws,
regulations, and the Articles of Association, and the terms of
such related party transactions are fair and comply with general
commercial terms. The Supervisory Committee also believes that
no insider transaction has been found, and such related party
transactions do not involve behavior that may harm the interests of

Shareholders and the Company.

In 2024, the Company's external guarantees only occurred in
its holding subsidiaries, which provided funding for the daily
operations of the holding subsidiaries. The Supervisory Committee
believes that the decision-making process for such external
guarantees complies with relevant laws, regulations, and the
Articles of Association, and does not involve any behavior that may

harm the interests of Shareholders and the Company.

According to the relevant provisions of the Company Law of the
People's Republic of China and the requirements of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission, the Company currently has both a Supervisory
Committee and an Audit Committee. In order to further simplify the
corporate governance structure and respond to the recommendations
of the securities regulatory agency, the Company will simplify
governance and further improve the functions of the Auditor Committee
of the Board of Directors. The Supervisory Committee will no longer
be established, and the powers of the Supervisory Committee will be

exercised by the Auditor Committee of the Board of Directors.
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The Group is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards. The Board believes that high corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the

interests of Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has adopted the CG Code as its own code of corporate
governance. For the period from the Listing Date up to December 31, 2024,
the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions of the CG

Code during the Reporting Period except for the deviations as explained

below and the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”

below. The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate

governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Paragraph C.5.1 of the CG Code provides that Board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with active
participation of the majority of the Directors, either in person or through
electronic means of communication. As the Company was only first listed
on the Stock Exchange on December 6, 2024, no meeting was held by the
Board during the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2024. The
Company expects to continue to convene at least four regular meetings in
each financial year at approximately quarterly intervals in accordance with
code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code.

Paragraph D.3.3 of the CG Code provides that members of the Audit
Committee should liaise with the Board and the senior management and
the committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the auditors. As the
Company was only first listed on the Stock Exchange on December 6, 2024,
no meeting was held by the Audit Committee during the period from the
Listing Date to December 31, 2024. The Company expects to continue to
convene at least two regular meetings in each financial year at approximately
semi-annually intervals in accordance with code provision D.3.3 of the CG
Code.

AEEBNRERSTEENERER EFT
BIE - AR RRRMRERRF 2@ N R
CEEBEMAEENERMNE  SRENDE
ERNAERESR -

RARERMEEERTAEREE SN
EJ6SFAl e B LT ABIE £ 2024912 A31 B &
B AARERMEHBETEEE AT
FrAEEASFRNE - T XAk X[ EFH
BRNITE I —BRATMIREER N - RARISEE
HURERAMEELR R  BRETLEE

JASTA o

BIECEEATAECSIERTE B2
FEBFERAZLMK - KHBE—IX BK
BAOEEFFEFNBEBRETRAS EEES
HE o HARRBIR2024F12 A6 B A RBEZFR
BARLEm BLEWHEERE204F12A31HEH
M EFEVERTEE - ARFBEHERE
EEATRNTANEXECS 1§ - BENET
AR BREEERELWATHEH  AHNEF

—IR e

BECEEARTNEDIIKMATE  BHFEBE
EHREFE LS REEERL - BE8
E—FELEZEMEEMA c BRARAR
202412 A6 B A R FrE R L - B LW A
HABZE2024F 12 A3 1 A HIM - BRI ZE W E
BITEH - ARAEHHRBEEEE ST
SFRHEXED 336 - #ENSEVBFERH
DRIREREE  ROFF—K o

¥



2024 4£4F | ANNUALREPORT 2024 | REFIRE

Paragraph F.1.17 of the CG Code provides that the issuer should have a policy
on the payment of dividends. As the Company intends to retain all of its
future earnings to finance the development and growth of the Company'’s
business, it has not yet adopted a dividend policy to declare or pay any
dividends. The declaration and payment of any dividends in the future will be
determined by our Board and subject to the Articles of Association and the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FFZE AR LFME A ALY,
and will depend on a number of factors, including our financial performance
and business operation, capital requirements and contractual restrictions.
No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of our profits and
reserves lawfully available for distribution. As confirmed by our PRC legal
adviser, according to the PRC laws, any future net profits obtained by the
Company must first be used to make up for its accumulated prior losses,
after which the Company is obliged to allocate at least 10% of its net profits
to the statutory capital reserve until the cumulative amount of the statutory
capital reserve exceeds 50% of the Company'’s registered capital. Therefore,
the Company will only be able to declare dividends after (i) all its historical
accumulated losses from prior fiscal years have been made up for; and (i) the
Company has allocated sufficient net profits to the statutory capital reserve
as described above. The Board will regularly review the Company’s status and

consider adopting a dividend policy if and when appropriate.

The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and the growth of its business and to reviewing
such practices from time to time to ensure that they comply with statutory

and professional standards and align with the latest development.
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REFIRE is committed to continuously enhancing corporate competitiveness
and becoming a leading global hydrogen technology company. We use
hydrogen technology to create a sustainable future. The Company adheres
to hydrogen technology as its core, driving sustainable development and
contributing to the global energy transition. Corporate culture serves as
the foundation of enterprise development, guiding all employees in their
daily work and ensuring that they progress steadily towards common goals
and values. To support the realization of REFIRE's strategic goals and vision,
we have developed a highly coordinated talent strategy goal. By building
a systematic talent management mechanism, we continuously consolidate
our competitive advantage and lead industry development. In terms of
organizational environment, we are committed to creating an inclusive,
diverse, and safe working environment. With the Board's diversity governance
policy, we ensure gender diversity in management. In terms of talent supply
chain, we expand talent sources through cooperation with universities,
recommendations from industry experts, and other channels, injecting new
blood into the company’s development. In terms of cultural integration, new
employees will receive training on the “Corporate Culture Handbook” and
core values when they join the Company, ensuring that cultural ideas are

deeply rooted at the grassroots level.

Additionally, the Company incorporates culture-related content into its
systems and daily activities. Based on the Company’s mission, vision, and the
development characteristics of the hydrogen industry, we have proposed
the values of pioneer, continuous evolution, and ecological thinking after
years of practice, and established value assessment indicators and linked
them to promotional evaluation mechanisms. Within the Company, we
actively practice engineer culture through Engineer’'s Day activities, patent
commendations, and technical training programs for college recruits,
ensuring the effective transmission and implementation of cultural ideas. At
the same time, to strengthen corporate social responsibility, the Company
regularly holds hydrogen energy awareness campaigns and open-day
activities. Through these initiatives, we continue to popularize hydrogen
energy knowledge to the public and convey our corporate culture and

values.

The Board firmly believes that talent is one of our core long-term values, and
corporate culture will drive high-quality enterprise development, ultimately

delivering long-term benefits.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and takes decisions objectively in the best interest of the

Company.

The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from a Director to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Director is

spending sufficient time performing them.

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, consisting of five executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive

Directors. The current members of the Board of the Company are listed as

follows:
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Name Position in the Company
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Directors

s

Mr. LIN Qi Chairman of the Board and executive Director
I F A& EERFNTEF

Dr. HU Zhe Executive Director

HEEL WITEE

Ms. MA Audrey Jing Nan Executive Director

Bzt WITEE

Dr. ZHAI Shuang Executive Director

=33 hn HITES

Mr. ZHAO Yongsheng Executive Director

KA A WITEE

Mr. LIU Huiyou Non-executive Director

e REE FEMITESE

Mr. LI Wei Independent Non-executive Director
PR BIFHNITES

Dr. QIAN Meifen Independent Non-executive Director
BERSE L BUIFITES

Mr. CHEN Fei Independent Non-executive Director
BRARSE A4 WUIFITES
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The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to
the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly

identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual

report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there are no financial, business, family, or other material

relationships among members of the Board.

Under paragraph C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. LIN Qi is the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company. With considerable experience in the fuel cell industry
and having served in the Group since its establishment, Mr. Lin is in charge
of the overall corporate and business strategies of the Group. Despite the
fact that the roles of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer are both performed by Mr. Lin, which constitutes a deviation from
paragraph C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board considers that vesting the roles
of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer both in Mr.
Lin is beneficial to the management of the Group. The balance of power
and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board and the senior
management, which comprises experienced individuals. Currently, the
Board comprises five executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors, and therefore will have a strong

independence element in its composition.

The Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the corporate
governance structure of the Group in order to assess whether the separation

of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer is necessary.
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Since the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report, the Board at all
times met the requirements under Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive

Directors are independent and remain so as of the date of this annual report.

Independent View

In order to ensure that independent views and input are made available
to the Board, the Nomination Committee and the Board are committed to
assessing the Directors’ independence annually with regard to all relevant

factors including the following:

required character, integrity, expertise, experience and stability to fulfil

their roles;

time commitment and attention to the Company’s affairs;

firm commitment to their independent roles and to the Board;
declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as independent
non-executive Directors;

no involvement in the daily management of the Company nor in any
relationship or circumstances which would affect the exercise of their

independent judgement; and

the chairman of the Board meets with the independent non-executive

Directors regularly without the presence of the executive Directors.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the above

mechanisms on an annual basis.
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According to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be elected by the
general meeting with a three-year term. The term of office of Directors shall
last from the date on which the Directors take office to the expiration of the
term of office of the current Board of Directors. Upon the expiration of the

term, the Directors may be re-elected and serve consecutive terms.

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the

Company's affairs.

The Board, directly and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to the management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group'’s operational and financial performance,
and ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in

place.

All executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. The
independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high
standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance
in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on corporate

actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense for discharging their

duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by

them.

REQFER  EFTRHRRGEREL £
M=% ZESTHEEFIECAEELREE
ESEHERR L EFEHER  TERE
Fo

f
St
>
5 om
m
&
ik
A
[
in
+f
™
Rl
2
)
el
h

EEERLAKBBEZES  BBHER
EREEEER EEARENEERPBER
B EREZREOAESLRREERL

AR E SRR ERTERREFUSIA
RENREEHER ARRTE AEFE
TURREDE R BEHN & - BUHRITE
FRRRRADABREREOFEL - PEE
ERFREFE - U AATARBERLA
BT 2R -

EREFHAZALEKESARRMEE
B YARBEEBRTITERSIRKBELEXE
R NRAARBETERE - BRBARQEA

=

A A R TR R TR (R0 K (B 1S -



2024 4£4F | ANNUALREPORT 2024 | REFIRE

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the

management.

The Board has clearly set out the circumstances under which the
management should report to and obtain prior approval from the Board
before making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Company. The Board regularly reviews the above-mentioned circumstances

and ensures they remain appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal action taken against them arising
out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage would be reviewed on an

annual basis.

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their

contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure an
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction shall
be supplemented by visits to the Company and meetings with senior

management of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading
materials on relevant topics would be provided to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses

at the Company's expense.
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During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company organized training BE2024F12A31BIEFE - XARIRFABEE

sessions conducted by the legal advisers for all Directors in compliance ELHREEABRERNFIINETEEES
with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code. The training sessions covered a SFAISFRNEXECI 41& - BIIREREESFH
wide range of relevant topics including Directors’ duties and responsibilities, BREM BEHERS  EEBERERE
continuing connected transactions, disclosure of interests and regulatory MEZHEBER - LI ARFAEMESR
updates. In addition, relevant reading materials including compliance HIEEHEEN  BEAETFM OERERE
manual/legal and regulatory updates/seminar handouts have been provided oM e EE AHES2EREE -

to the Directors for their reference and studying.

The training records of the Directors for the year ended December 31, 2024 EEREE2024F 12 A31 B IEFEREIIEE
are summarized as follows: i

Attending training, briefings,

seminars, conferences and Reading news alerts, newspapers,
workshops relevant to the journals, magazines and publications
Company’s industry and business, relevant to the Company’s industry
director’s duties and/ and business, director’s duties and/
Name of Directors II:igll)}'ﬁscgggrporate gcgerrggge or corporate governance
BEADNTTER : BIEEAQNTITERER -
ESHER SEEER ESHER SEXER
FRENEI - BN g - BENFERA - ®/E -
EEnE mHE SBRBETH BT - BERERY
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. LIN Qi #REF 55 42 4 v
Dr. HU Zhe tA¥T1H + v v/
Ms. MA Audrey Jing Nan 55 &gz + v/ v
Dr. ZHAI Shuang Z2#1&+ v/ v
Mr. ZHAO Yongsheng #87k 4 Sc 4 v v

Non-executive Director EHITES

Mr. LIU Huiyou 8| & & 4

Independent Non-executive Director B IEHITES
Mr. LI Wei ZXE 4

Dr. QIAN Meifen 35318+

Mr. CHEN Fei FRAR %5 4

\
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SSS
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The Board has established four committees namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Strategy Committee, each of which has been delegated responsibilities
and reports back to the Board. The roles and functions of these committees
are set out in their respective terms of reference. The terms of reference of
each of these committees will be revised from time to time to ensure that
they continue to meet the needs of the Company and to ensure compliance
with the CG Code where applicable. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Strategy Committee are posted on the Company's
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders

upon request.

The Strategy Committee has been established with written terms of
reference. The Strategy Committee comprises five members, including three
executive Directors namely Mr. LIN Qi, Dr. HU Zhe and Mr. ZHAO Yongsheng,
one non-executive Director namely Mr. LIU Huiyou and one independent
non-executive Director namely Mr. CHEN Fei. Mr. LIN Qi is the chairman of

the Strategy Committee.

The primary duties of the Strategy Committee are to formulate, evaluate and
facilitate long-term development strategies and major investment decisions

of the Group, which includes, amongst other things:

evaluating and advising on the long-term strategic plans and other

significant matters that may affect the development strategies; and

other duties conferred by the Board.

As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on December 6, 2024, no

meeting was held by the Strategy Committee for the period from the Listing
Date to December 31, 2024.
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The Audit Committee has been established with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph D.3 of part 2
of the CG Code. The Audit Committee comprises three members, including
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHEN Fei, Dr. QIAN
Meifen and Mr. LI Wei. Mr. CHEN Fei is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in providing an independent view of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management systems, overseeing the audit process, and performing other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board, which includes, amongst

other things:

proposing to the Board the appointment and replacement of external

audit firms;

supervising the implementation of the internal audit system;

liaising between the internal audit department and external auditors;

reviewing the financial information and related disclosures; and

other duties conferred by the Board.
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As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on December 6, 2024, no
meeting was held by the Audit Committee for the period from the Listing
Date to December 31, 2024. Up to the date of the annual report, the Audit
Committee had held the second meeting of the second session on March 28,
2025, during which matters such as the Group's annual results for the year
ended December 31, 2024 and the recommendation of no final dividend
were considered and approved; the third meeting of the second session
was held on April 17, 2025, during which, matters such as financial results
and report for the year ended December 31, 2024, significant issues on the
financial reporting, operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems and internal audit
function, appointment of external auditors, engagement of non-audit services
and relevant scope of works, connected transactions and arrangements for

employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties were considered.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors once without the
presence of executive Directors at the second meeting held on March 28,
2025.

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and paragraph E.1 of part 2 of the CG Code. The Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee comprises three members, including two independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. LI Wei and Dr. QIAN Meifen, and one
non-executive Director namely Mr. LIU Huiyou. Mr. LI Wei is the chairman of

the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary duties
of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee are to develop remuneration
and appraisal policies of the Directors, evaluate the performance, make
recommendations on the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management and evaluate and make recommendations on employee

benefits, which include, amongst other things:

establishing, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure concerning remuneration and appraisal of
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration

and appraisal;

determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of each

Director and members of senior management;

reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to

time;

reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes under

Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

other duties conferred by the Board.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to the level of remuneration paid by comparable companies,
the time commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior
management, and the employment conditions of the Company and its
subsidiaries and consolidated affiliated entities. The level of remuneration
takes into consideration the remuneration required to attract and retain to
manage the Company successfully. No Director or senior management of the

Company is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
(excluding share-based compensation) for senior management (excluding
Directors and Supervisors) of the Company by band for the year ended
December 31, 2024 falls within the following bands:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRE

RIBECEEATUMNTANGXEE 15K HE
2024F 12 A3 AEFE - mEFMEEE DR
RARBREBAE (TEEESRER)NEH
(TEIEARR D AEROFHI &I T -

Remuneration band (RMB) Number of Individuals

FNEE (ARY)

3,563,900 4
356.39& 7T 4

As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on December 6, 2024,
no meeting was held by the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee for
the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2024. Up to the date of
annual report, the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee had held the third
meeting of the second session on April 17, 2025, respectively, during which,
matters such as remuneration policy and structure of the Company and
the remuneration packages of the Directors and other related matters were

discussed.

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of reference
in compliance with paragraph B.3 of part 2 of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee comprises three members, including two independent
non-executive Directors namely Dr. QIAN Meifen and Mr. LI Wei, and one
executive Director namely Mr. LIN Qi. Dr. QIAN Meifen is the chairlady of the

Nomination Committee.

ARARRARR2024F 12 AcBEBRFT LT - B
ETEEZE2024%F12 A31 8 1 B E BN R E
ZEgUREFE® BEXFHRAH - Hie
EREEBENRIN20255F4817BB8MATE_E
FE=REHE - Uit (AP e1E) KD R B
HEREBARESENHFHEFBS -

b

B mREEERTRE —BOB3IHRKS
REZEQUHTEMRELE - REEES
H=FZREHEK  BEMEBIIERTERE
EHBEIRFREE R —RATEEMEL
& EXSETECREZESTRE -



Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited | L& 2 EREBMBRHERATE

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
in relation to the appointment and removal of Directors which includes,

amongst other things:

reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis and making recommendations to the Board regarding any

proposed changes;

identifying, selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the

selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

assisting the Board in maintaining a board skills matrix;

supporting the Company’s regular evaluation of the Board’s

performance;

making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to

the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Directors; and

other duties conferred by the Board.

As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on December 6, 2024,
no meeting was held by the Nomination Committee for the period from the
Listing Date to December 31, 2024. Up to the date of the annual report, the
Nomination Committee had held the second meeting of the second session
on February 10, 2025, during which matters such as the appointment of the
vice president of the Company were considered; the third meeting of the
second session was held on April 17, 2025, during which, matters such as
structure, size and composition of the Board and the independence of the

independent non-executive Directors were discussed.

REZBGZRESENBRZREEL NER D
EXERTRAAMEE - REZEENTERE
RUEZERBREZTANERTSREES AP
B

EHBNETERE  ABRREXLHRE
MEREHAEFTSRIER

e KERBABATHEESTAIU

MEFESRIER

AHEEIFRITE S HBE

BHEFSRIEST SRR

RERREMFEETGRBRMSS

RERZE EFZEIREREENEE
RERSREER &

HRAARRARN2024F12 A6 B “*?&Fﬁiﬁ =
LM ABE2024F12A3ALHRERZES
TEAHASE HEFHRASH  REZEERN
20252 A 10BBRATEZEE ZIRGE - AT
WAREIBENES - R2025F4817HEBRAT
FZEEZRGE UIRESSEE - AR
RAER - ARBYIERITESOE IS -



2024 4£4F | ANNUALREPORT 2024 | REFIRE

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain a high
standard of corporate governance. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy,
in reviewing and assessing suitable candidates to serve as a Director, the
Nomination Committee will consider a range of diversity perspectives with
reference to the Company’s business model and specific needs, including but
not limited to gender, age, language, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry, regional experience
and length of service. Furthermore, the Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the diversity of the Board, reviewing the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time, developing and reviewing measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and monitoring the progress on
achieving these measurable objectives in order to ensure that the Board

Diversity Policy remains effective.

The Directors have a balanced mixed of knowledge and skills, including but
not limited to automotive manufacturing, R&D of fuel cell systems, business
development, finance and investment. They obtained degrees in various
majors including software engineering, automotive engineering, business
administration, mathematics, economics and finance. Furthermore, the Board
has a relatively wide range of ages, ranging from 39 years old to 60 years
old, and consists of seven male members and two female members. The
Board therefore believes that the composition of the current Board satisfies
the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
membership, structure and composition of the Board, and is of the opinion
that the structure of the Board is reasonable, and the experience and skills
of the Directors in various aspects and fields can enable the Company to
maintain a high standard of operation. The Company will take opportunities
to increase the proportion of female members of the Board when selecting
and recommending suitable candidates for Board appointments to help
enhance gender diversity in accordance with stakeholder expectations and

recommended best practices.
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The Company also intends to promote gender diversity when recruiting staff
at the mid to senior level so that the Company will have a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to the Board. We believe that
such merit-based selection process with reference to the Board Diversity
Policy and the nature of the business will be in the best interests of the

Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Board was not aware of any
mitigating factors or circumstances which make achieving gender diversity
across the workforce (including senior management) more challenging or
less relevant. As at December 31, 2024, the gender ratio in the workforce
(including senior management) is 74.8792% (male): 25.1208% (female).
For further details of gender ratio and initiatives taken to improve gender
diversity together with the relevant data, please refer to the section headed
“27.1 the performance of human resource” under the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report. The Directors are of the opinion that gender
diversity has been achieved on senior management and workforce level with

reference to the current circumstances of the Company.

Director Nomination

The procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee
will identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals. The
Nomination Committee will determine the composition of Board members
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will also make recommendations to the Board of Directors on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors (in particular the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the
general manager), taking into account the Company'’s corporate strategy and

mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

From the Listing Date up to the date of this report, the Board had reviewed
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the corporate governance policies and
practices, the compliance of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance

with the CG Code and the disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE
RECORDS

Since the Listing Date, the Company has adopted the practice of holding
Board meetings regularly, at least four times a year for Board meetings, and
at approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of a majority of

Directors, either in person or through electronic means of communication.

Up to the date of annual report, the Board had held four meetings, namely
the 14th meeting of the second session on January 27, 2025, the 15th
meeting of the second session on February 16, 2025, the 16th meeting of
the second session on March 28, 2025, and the 17th meeting of the second
session on April 17, 2025.
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The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board committee BEETHHEEAFHRAE  SEERERFA
meetings of the Company held since the Listing Date up to the date of this TEehEFReegatELEHIIMT

annual report are set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meeting(s)

BER/ BB
Remuneration
Strategy Audit and Appraisal Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors meeting(s) meeting(s) Meeting(s) meeting(s) meeting(s) meeting(s)
2 EBKEEE EHZEE EHHEZx  REEZEE
EERE 'L &3 g3 zawed & BRE
Executive Directors HI{TES
Mr. LIN Qi #3852 4 4/4 0/0 N/ATE AR N/AiE A 2/2 1/1
Dr. HU Zhe #RE1E L 4/4 0/0 N/ATE R N/ATE R N/ATE 1/1
Ms. MA Audrey Jing Nan 55 &8 1 4/4 N/AiE N/AiE N/ATE N/AiE 11
Dr. ZHAI Shuang Z2& 18+ 4/4 N/ATE A N/ATE A N/ANE A N/ATTE A 1/1
Mr. ZHAO Yongsheng 87k & 5t 4 4/4 0/0 N/ATNE A N/ATNE F N/ATNE A 1/1
Non-executive Director ¥ {TESE
Mr. LIU Huiyou & & 54 4/4 0/0 N/AZNE 1/1 N/AZNE 11
Independent Non-executive Directors Bk #{TESE
Mr. LI Wei FE 4 4/4 N/ATE A 2/2 11 2/2 1/1
Dr. QIAN Meifen $2E3E+ 4/4 N/AN i 2/2 1/1 22 11

Mr. CHEN Fei BRS¢ o &£ 4/4 0/0 2/2 N/ATE A N/ATNE A N
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Board meetings include regular meetings and extraordinary meetings.
Regular Board meetings shall be held at least four times a year and shall be
convened by the chairman. Notice of a regular Board meeting shall be given

to all Directors and Supervisors at least 14 days in advance.

An extraordinary board meeting may be held by request of Shareholders
representing more than 10% of the voting shares or by request of no less
than one-third Directors, more than one half of independent non-executive
Directors or Supervisors, chairman of the Board or chief executive officer of
the Company where they think if necessary. Notice of an extraordinary Board
meeting shall be given to all Directors and Supervisors at least 5 days in

advance.

The Board shall keep minutes on matters discussed at meetings of the Board,
including any concerns or objections raised by the Directors. The minutes
shall be signed by the Directors present at the meeting. Minutes of the Board

meeting shall be kept as the Company's record for a period of 10 years.

The Board and each Director also have separate and independent access to

the senior management whenever necessary.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and

effective risk management and internal control systems.
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The Company established a dedicated risk management and internal control
team which takes responsibility for establishing risk management and

internal control policies and conducting internal audit.

The Board has reviewed the Company's risk management and internal
control systems during the Reporting Period and considers that its risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate. The
Board shall continue to review the adequateness and effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control systems on an annual basis.

The Company has implemented various strategies to manage its

cybersecurity risks and protect data security.

As of the date of this annual report, we have not encountered any major
network or data security incidents or discovered any major network or data
security threats that have had or are likely to have a significant impact on us,

our business strategies, results of operations or financial condition.

The Company has adopted arrangements to facilitate employees and other
stakeholders to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties in

financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee of the Company shall review such arrangement
regularly and ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up

action.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a general
guide to the Company's Directors, senior management and relevant
employees in handling confidential information, monitoring information
disclosure and responding to enquiries. Control procedures have been
implemented to ensure that unauthorized access and use of inside

information are strictly prohibited.

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND ANTI-FRAUD POLICY

The Company has established a comprehensive system of integrity, providing

institutional guarantees for anti-corruption, whistleblowing and supervision.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding all dealings of the Company’s securities by Directors, Supervisors,
and the senior management of the Group, who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Company’s securities due to their

position or employment.

Specific enquiries have been made to all the Directors and Supervisors, and
all Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code during the period from the Listing Date to December 31,
2024. In addition, no incident of non-compliance with the Model Code by
the senior management of the Group was noted by the Company during the
period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2024.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEEREE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial

statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, announcements relating to
disclosure of insider information and other disclosures required under the

Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided the Board such explanation and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of

the Company's financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to

continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out

in the "Independent Auditor’s Report" of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The total fee paid/payable to Ernst & Young, in respect of audit services and

non-audit services for the year ended December 31, 2024 is set out below:
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The joint company secretaries are responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and ensuring that the Board policies and

procedures, as well as the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

The current joint company secretaries are Mr. ZHENG Zhong and Mr. POON
Ping Yeung. The biographical details of Mr. ZHENG Zhong are set out in
the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management -
Biographical Details of Senior Management” of this annual report. In order
to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance with the
Listing Rules, the Company also engaged Mr. POON Ping Yeung, a manager
of the listed and fiduciary corporate services of Trident Corporate Services
(Asia) Limited, as another joint company secretary to assist Mr. ZHENG in
discharging his duties as company secretary of the Company. Mr. POON's

primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. ZHENG.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, each of Mr. ZHENG and Mr. POON
has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in

compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the best

investment decisions.
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The Company has adopted a Shareholders” Communication Policy, which
complies with the Listing Rules and provides all Shareholders with equal
access to such information, in order to keep Shareholders informed of
its performance, operations and significant business developments. The
Shareholders’ Communication Policy of the Company is available on
the website of the Company. The Company endeavours to maintain an
on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other general meetings. The general meetings of
the Company provide a platform for communication between the Board
and the Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee,
the Audit Committee and Strategy Committee or, in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, are available to answer Shareholders’
questions at general meeting. The external auditor of the Company is also
invited to attend the annual general meetings of the Company to answer
questions about the conduct of audit, the preparation and content of
the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
Shareholders may raise questions or make a request through designated
channels for the Company's information to the extent such information is

publicly available.

Please refer to page 4 of this annual report for the address of the Company’s
H Share Registrar and contact details of the Company. Shareholders can
contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company's
H Share Registrar, for questions about their shareholdings. For putting
forward enquiries to the Board, please refer to the section headed "Putting
Forward Enquiries to the Board” below. To promote effective communication,
the Company maintains a website (www.refire.com), where information
and updates on the Company'’s financial information, corporate governance
practices, biographical information of the Board and other information are
available for public access. As the Company was only listed on the Stock
Exchange on December 6, 2024, the Board shall review the implementation
and effectiveness of Shareholders” Communication Policy during the financial
year ending December 31, 2025. The Board shall continue to review the
implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy

on an annual basis and amend its terms as and when necessary.
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To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution should
be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of the Director. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock

Exchange after each general meeting.

According to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) individually or jointly
holding more than 10% of the issued voting shares of the Company may sign
one or more written requests of identical form and substance requesting the
Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting and stating the subject
of the meeting. The Board shall, pursuant to relevant laws, administrative
regulations, the Hong Kong Listing Rules and the Articles of Association, give
a written reply on whether to agree or disagree to convene the extraordinary

general meeting within 10 days after receipt of the request.

If the Board agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, it shall
serve a notice of such meeting within 5 days after the resolution is made by
the Board. In the event of any change to the original proposal, the consent of

relevant Shareholder(s) shall be obtained.

If the Board does not agree to convene the extraordinary general meeting or
fails to give a reply within 10 days after receipt of the request, Shareholder(s)
severally or jointly holding more than 10% of the issued voting shares of
the Company shall be entitled to propose and request in writing to the
Supervisory Committee to convene an extraordinary general meeting. The
Supervisory Committee shall decide whether to convene the extraordinary
general meeting within 10 days after receipt of the request in accordance
with the provisions of laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of

Association, and give a written reply to the Shareholders.
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If the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting, it shall serve a notice of such meeting within 5 days after receipt
of the said request. In the event of any change to the original proposal, the

consent of relevant Shareholder(s) shall be obtained.

If the Supervisory Committee fails to give the notice of such a meeting
within the specified time limit, it shall be deemed to have failed to convene
or preside over the meeting, in which case, Shareholders individually or
collectively holding more than 10% of the issued voting shares of the
Company for more than 90 consecutive days may convene and preside over

the meeting on their own.

Prior to the announcement of the resolution of the general meeting, the
proportion of the issued voting shares of the Company individually or
collectively held by the Shareholders who convene the meeting shall not be
less than 10%.

When the Supervisory Committee or Shareholders decide to convene a
general meeting on their own, they shall notify the Board in writing and file
the notice of meeting with the agency of the CSRC in the place where the
Company is domiciled and the relevant stock exchange in accordance with

applicable regulations.

If the Supervisory Committee or Shareholders convene a general meeting on
their own, the Company shall bear the reasonable expenses incurred thereby
and deduct the expenses from the amount owed by the Company to the

delinquent Directors.
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association, when the Company convenes a
general meeting, the Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 1% or
more of the issued shares of the Company with voting rights may put
forward a written ad hoc proposal to the Company to nominate a candidate
as a director and a candidate as a non-employees’ representative supervisor
10 days before the convening of the general meeting. The written notices
shall include (i) the intention to nominate a candidate as a director or a
supervisor and the acceptance of nomination by such nominated candidate,
and (i) the relevant written materials of the nominated candidate shall be
given to the Company no less than 8 days prior to the date of the convening
of the general meeting. The information and biography of the nominated
candidate shall comply with the requirements under the Rule 13.51(2) of the

Listing Rules.

Upon receipt of the above notice from a Shareholder after publication of the
notice of general meeting, in order to provide the Shareholders sufficient
time to consider the proposal of election of a candidate as a director or a
supervisor, the Company shall, if necessary, adjourn the general meeting
and issue an announcement or a supplementary circular for disclosing the
particulars of such candidate pursuant to Rule 13.70 and Rule 13.74 of the
Listing Rules no less than 10 business days prior to the date of the convening
of the general meeting. At the general meeting, voting for each candidate
as a director or supervisor shall be handled separately. In the case of ad hoc
addition or replacement of any director or supervisor, the Board of Directors
or the Supervisory Committee of the Company shall, respectively, put forward
a proposal, or the Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 1% or more
of the issued shares of the Company with voting rights shall put forward
a written ad hoc proposal 10 days before the convening of the general

meeting, to the general meeting for such election or replacement.

BEABER  RARRBERISE - 555
HEBEFFARREITEIIE RAENRG
19%8k A ERIARER - RIAERR SR € BRIAT10 A A
AATRHEMBRRRER  REEFREAR
FBIRREEREA - EMBAERIENIRS
EEREEBREANZERRAREAESR
% RDEIRBIRE ANBBESEMEELT
PREBHBRRESE BASARARRHE - 124
REANERREREREG EMARAZE135102)
1ERBVARTE ©

7

7.

@

=

ERFEEBEQAME  WERFEH LA LB
M RERREEHASHEZEREETHESF
RIEAMNRE  ARAIEEVER  RBREZ
BHEBMAIRLRI0@EEE - MERRS -
WARE ETRAIEE 13706 R E 13,7415 HA
EREFEBE  WEBEZSREANFE - &
BREREE HEREFELEEREANKRERE
ENRIEE - R ERAEREIMES - BEF
B ARREEFSREFCTREIBAKRKESIR
HEER  EBNESHFEARETEIN
BRREOBD 1% LHRERERES A
FATOBMBRRSREEMBRZER - UEE
By FREFNES -



Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited | L& 2 EREBMBRHERATE

Pursuant to Article 73 of the Articles of Association, Shareholders individually
or jointly holding more than 1% of the issued voting shares of the Company
may raise temporary proposal and submit it to the convener in writing 10
days before the general meeting is held. The convener shall, within 2 days
after the receipt of the proposal, issue a supplementary notice to inform
other shareholders, explain the contents of the temporary proposal and

submit the temporary proposal to the general meeting for consideration.

For putting forward any enquiry to the Board, Shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal

Or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to

the following:

Address: Room 1004, 1/F, Unit 1, 1555 Jingyuan Road, Jiading
District, Shanghai, PRC (For the attention of the Board
of Directors)

Email: refire.ir@refire.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details
and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information

may be disclosed as required by law.
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Save as disclosed below, during the period from the Listing Date to the date
of this annual report, no changes have been made to the said Articles of
Association. The Articles of Association is available on the websites of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

In light of the New Company Law and the Proposed Dissolution, as well
as the consultation conclusions on “Proposals to Further Expand the
Paperless Listing Regime and Other Rule Amendments” published by the
Stock Exchange on January 24, 2025, and to further improve the corporate
governance of the Company, the Board has resolved and proposed to amend
the Articles in accordance with the requirements of the New Company
Law and the Listing Rules, and make adjustments to certain provisions in
the Articles after taking into consideration, among others, the operational
and management needs of the Company (collectively, the “Proposed

Amendments”).

Pursuant to the Articles and the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Proposed Amendments are subject to the approval of the Shareholders
by way of a special resolution at a general meeting. A special resolution to
consider and approve the Proposed Amendments will be proposed at the

AGM in due course.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
April 17, 2025.
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To the shareholders of Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Ernst & Young R E S
27/F, One Taikoo Place = R

979 King's Road o
HEIE 9795k
Quarry Bay, Hong Kon
v Bay. Heng fond K —E271E

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shanghai REFIRE
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 137 to 292, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2024,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Tel E5%: +852 2846 9888

9795k Fax f8E: +852 2868 4432

ey.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”"), as applicable to audits of financial statements of public interest
entities. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the

matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

BMERBEEESAMAS ([EESFMA
“%J)ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\]?;‘%%ﬁ/iﬁﬂ(FE\‘?’%%%E‘EE'JJ)?E

T8E%Z - HPEZSFETAENEETZER
#&iﬁ?%ﬁlﬁﬁiwﬁ%%? M mERATENE(E]

B R EE — SR - $E'<TJ’59§>’§@E+EW’A§E’\J
ERARARN G BB ERREFO(EERS
EmERsr A ([PR1)) - BB ‘E%‘%l g
BATCETTATHEMERBREMT - &
fI1E1E - P ESNERRILERTEEE
AT FINE R HER -

MRECERATRERMANERHE - B88
FHGAVBRERNEREREENEE - &
EFEPHERMNBELEBS AV BRRRBAR
/E_Hﬂﬁﬁ BT e UREEREHREBNE
CBATHRERME @ HAREZER TR
f?tﬁf?ﬁﬁ%%qﬂ&%ﬁ%%%léé’\]ﬁfﬁ 2

ﬁZ1FﬁEJEﬁ$$&iTV%IEfﬁ?fL%$ m/:.\ﬁﬂ%iﬁ
FEAENERT IS AANET  BREZS
BHHEENEE - Ilrt PN ERERANTE
- RESRMASGAMBEHRRERNERRAL
REREFHE - HPINEZRERF (BREEEN TS
AEMRMZRF)NER - RERMABBEHNES
MW RAABROBZERRHER -



Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited | L& 2 EREBMBRHERATE

Key audit matter
HEESLER
Revenue Recognition

WA TR

The Group mainly manufactures and sells goods and services
including hydrogen fuel cell systems, components and hydrogen
production systems. During the year ended December 31, 2024,
the Group's revenue from sales of goods and services amounted
to RMB649 million.

EEETTHEREETRBELERS THL KRS
LEMMRG - BHE2024F12831BILFE - EEEEEE

i M IRIE R A /AR 649B BT ©

Revenue from sales of goods and services is recognised when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods.

EERNEHEERTERE  BAHEEMR
A Hefki ESEREHREREIBELERHNNE -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERNAEERREERSE

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition on sales of

goods and services included:

HPRHEE R ERERAERNIZFEREATEEA

(1) We obtained an understanding of the Group's revenue
recognition process, evaluated and tested the design and
implementation effectiveness of management’s key controls
over revenue recognition on sales of goods and services.

() F&MER EEENRABRRER  FERAAEEE
B2 555 5 om N AR S WA B SR A B SR 1 A SR T IR AT
BB R o

(2) We evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies
of revenue recognition, by inspecting sales contracts and
interviewing management to understand the key terms or
conditions of contracts, analyzing and evaluating the timing
of the transfer of significant risks, and the estimation of
amount when a variable consideration included.

Q BMAFERAERSHABERNREL  FTAR/BREHE
ERUREEREEH  ABRRBRE O E 2 HEREEK
e DM EFEEBERRBNRHELZE - UEEHAEH
BRERFNSEMGE -
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Key audit matter
HRELER
Revenue Recognition

WA TR

We focused on this area as significant efforts were spent on
auditing the revenues recognised from sales of goods and
services due to the significance of the revenue amount, the
periodical sales cycle affected by industry and complicated sales
terms such as variable consideration in certain sales contracts.
EEEM&U\%%EEK CRITEXEBRMIHE RN RE TH

BHAPHRERESEMBEERY  HMEHEIHEE
uu&ﬂ&i%ﬁ’wlﬁz)\ﬁﬁ% CWIEBTRERNHERRNEES
o AR TS WA ETTEZ °

Refer to note 2.4, note 3 and note 5 to the consolidated financial

statements.

B2HEA M ISR TE24 - B EE3 MRS -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERNMEERRERER

We implemented analytical procedures for revenue and
gross profit margin by product and customer, identified
whether there were significant or unexpected fluctuations,
and analyzed the business reasons.
ﬁiﬁ?ﬁi%ﬁ:&E)f'%ﬁﬂﬁz)\&%%lﬁiﬂﬁ"ﬁ%‘iﬁ :
BREEERRBINEE) - ROMEHEIBHE

35

We checked the supporting documents related to revenue
recognition on a sample basis, including sales contracts,
sales invoices, customer orders and acceptance receipts.
BMmEZEWABRRBHEBIFEXH  BEHEES
B HERE  BPFTERBIBIES -

We performed confirmation procedures on a sample basis
for revenue transactions from sales of goods and services
during the year and the trade receivables and contract
assets balances as at the balance sheet date.

BHPR AN FEHEE R ERBHBRARZGARNE E
BEXRENEZIRUFIENRE N EEERBERAITER
BFF e

We performed cut-off test on the revenue recognised
before and after the balance sheet date, and checked the
supporting documents such as sales contracts, customer
orders and acceptance receipts to evaluate whether the
revenue was recognised in the appropriate period.
BMENEERBERAMBERNOWARTE LA
WEZEHESLN TR ERRBRKKESEFHIEXH
N EBERAZREREE AMER -

We checked if information related to revenue was

appropriately disclosed.

BB RARBEENRED ZEKE

o

il
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Key audit matter
BRELER
Impairment of trade and bills receivables and contract assets

ESEUFAREREBEUREHEENBE

As at December 31, 2024, the gross balance of trade and
bills receivables and contract assets of the Group amounted
to RMB2,870 million, and the impairment of trade and bills
receivables and contract assets amounted to RMB530 million.
20245128310 - EXENE S RKIEREWREL R
ENEEEBBEAARK2870BE T - BEHEBGRIERE
WEBARAKNEENRERARKES0BETT

The Group applies the simplified approach under IFRS 9 to
measure expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for trade and bills receivables and contract assets.
Management grouped trade and bills receivables and contract
assets based on shared credit risk characteristics and then
determined the expected loss rates on the basis of the payment
profiles of customers and the corresponding historical credit
losses, which were adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
SEERAEFMBRELREORIA T L EASRME
BEE HEHRWTEAREBREBARGOEERR2H
RHEREEE EREERBRANEERRFHEE ZEK
REREREBARENEESA  NERIBFF MRS
ARAENELEEFEETEDEEX  WEHRABUR
MEBTERPAERIFIAR NN ERELBER RN E AT &
ATIE &R o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERNAEERREERSE

Our procedures in relation to impairment of trade and bills
receivables and contract assets included:
BMRMESERRFIBERERZBEUARGHNEERENETE
FEATEE :

(1) We obtained an understanding of management’s
assessment process of impairment of trade and bills
receivables and contract assets, evaluated and tested the
design and implementation effectiveness of management'’s
key controls over impairment of trade and bills receivables
and contract assets.

() HBMEREEENEFRUIEREBREBARGHE
ERREEEF  FERAAEREEEE S RIKIE
R M EIE VA K& #) 8 B RUE AR B 80 B B2 12 i 80 3R 51
BITOARILE -

(2) We assessed the appropriateness of expected credit loss
model, methodology and key assumptions adopted by
management with the involvement of our internal expert:

Q BMEARER2ETEEREAMRABARAEESER
B RTENRBARERREEE M -

(@) We evaluated the appropriateness of management’s
assessment on customer grouping based on our
understanding of the Group's business and operations
and the credit risk characteristics of the relevant
customers;

@ HMERY BEX£EEXBLEERMBBEFEERR
FEMER  TEEEEHERSENENEE T
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Key audit matter

BRBEREH
Impairment of trade and bills receivables and contract assets

EZREURFERENFEBEUREHEENBE

We focused on this area due to the significance of the balance
of trade and bills receivables and contract assets and complex
estimation and judgements were involved in the assessment of
expected credit losses mentioned above.

HRE SRR KRIEREREBAREGNEEGZRER - UK
LR REEEES REMA AR RAE - B RME
BRAE& T E -

Refer to note 2.4, note 3 and note 20 to the consolidated

financial statements.

F2HRA M ISR TE24 - MiEE3 RMiEE20

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERNAREREERER

(b) We evaluated the reasonableness of the expected loss
rates by considering the payment profiles of customers
and the corresponding historical credit losses;

b) BMEBEREFPNNREAREEELEEE
B AMEESBEENSEN

(c) We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s
assessment on the forward-looking information
with reference to our understanding of the Group's
business, industry and external macroeconomic data;

© FHM2ZH BEEENER  TERINIEBEHE
ENER  FEEEEHAELEERFENSE
%

We tested the historical data used in the calculation of the
historical credit losses, including the settlement records
and the accuracy of the ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables and contract assets, on a sample basis, to
supporting documents.
BMEIHFUEXGPRRAERELEEBENE L8R
ETHENR - BRESERUFIENEREEUARERH
BENBERENIRRDITHERM o

We checked if information related to credit impairment
on trade and bills receivables and contract assets was
appropriately disclosed.

BT EFRRFTBREBREBEARENEENEE
BEEBERNEEE X EKE -
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability

to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

BERREZAARREBEER G ENEEEMR
BRI SR EE S ER REB QAR
MW&?&E’%%EEW¢%M%QW%#
= IﬂAw%ﬁﬁﬁ MBEREROERTTF
RN UGFER M EREARERRAT S A
Mm%ﬁ%?ﬁﬁa

EREGAVBRERE - EAREERAAR

1t %%lhfﬁamAﬂ*IEﬁ%1ﬁT
BREERELEZEENER  UAREAFER
EEER KRIF BEAREFEAEHNR ES
BERHFILEE  HPEEBERERNERT

iy

=
ERAREFREEETZREGNHE TEITE
B AEREMBHRSBROET -

ZANE SRR B HREABRES T FE
MR RMERNERERBILRSE
EBERE MASERMAEROZBEERE -
ZAERRT (ERBE)®RE - TERMLA
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B ERAEEAEE -

AEREFZLSKINRE  BTERELRE
BB EAEITHEREENERRAFER
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ERBEEBENEABETEZNREBREF -
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We BMERTERHE  RETEXERER -
also: IR

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

BRI AN IRFE R M G HAR A B
BHRAFEERERRAORR - Rtk
HITEREFAREZERR - ARER
FRMEENEZEE  FREMABREN
it - RNBFFARES RER  BE &
BAER - EREGL - SORBRAEESZ
£ FEUE R BE IR ARG M E A E R
AR BRI B [ B = 1A R BE B 3R IR 85 AR 1T 28 B
B A #E AR R O L
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MEZERF  EEMLFHE BEEEARI
THINARMERER -
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i - RIEBMERNBZER  EER
BFEREERENEBNERNTEE
- EmARENY BERENFELE
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AIHEEN - BBV EERBENHRE PR
FEREIEREAVBERER T NEER
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Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Ho Wai Ling.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 March 2025
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Year ended December 31, 2024E £ 2024F 12 A31 B ILFE

2023

20234

Notes RMB'000

P =E AREET T

REVENUE A 5 895,278

Cost of sales HERAR (715,662)

Cost of sales of goods and services B 2 R 7 88 AR (683,897)

Impairment losses on inventories FEREEBX 19 (31,765)

Gross profit EF 179,616

Other income and gains H A R ias 5 59,825

Selling and marketing expenses HE R EERX (134,833)

Administrative expenses THAX (339,670)

Research and development expenses e X (220,880)
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets BRAREBEFAEBEN

at fair value through profit or loss, net CRIEEAAEE

sk (B18) F8E (3,120)

Impairment losses on financial assets, net CRIEERMEERKRFHE (63,965)

Other expenses HEMfx (4,960)

Finance costs % ER 7 (47,926)

Share of losses of: FEMRLA TN B IEEIE -

Associates BN A 16 (3,855)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BB AR 6 (579,768)
Income tax credit FrisfiE e 10 2,237
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FABE (577,531)
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BreREERNDERQE

Year ended December 31, 2024E Z2024F 12 A31 B ILFE

2023
20234
Notes RMB'000
B 5 ARBFT
Loss attributable to: AT & EELERE -
Owners of the parent BARIER A (529,472)
Non-controlling interests IR RS (48,059)
(577,531)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BAREBEERBEEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EEEREE
THE PARENT
Basic and diluted HAKEE 12

RMB AR (6.51)7T
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Year ended December 31, 2024E £ 2024F 12 A31 B ILFE

2023
20234F
RMB'000
ks ARBTT
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (577,531)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Htt2EER
Other comprehensive loss that will not be REBIBTSENHE
reclassified to profit or loss in ZEGHEAMEE
subsequent periods: 518 -
Equity investments designated at fair value  EFEEABETA
through other comprehensive income: H2mkasay
R E -
Changes in fair value NAEEZS (3,834)
Income tax effect stz 2 958
Net other comprehensive loss that will REBERHE TS EFHLE
not be reclassified to profit or loss in EERMNAMEZEEE
subsequent periods T (2,876)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that & 48 B ] B BT
may be reclassified to profit or loss in DEEBENEM
subsequent periods: 2H| (B18),Wa
Exchange differences: ME R
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEEE L
foreign operations E 5 ZE 3,673
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income W& B A B EFT
that may be reclassified to profit or DEEBENEM
loss in subsequent periods 2 (F518), /W F 58 3,673
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME ~ FRHEM2E (FER),
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX Wi (HIBRBEE) 797
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FARXEBELEHE

THE YEAR

(576,734)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meZmRER
Year ended December 31, 2024E{ & 2024F12 A31 HIEFE

2024 2023
20245 2023%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T ARMT T ARBTT

Attributable to: LA & IR e -
Owners of the parent BARIER A (743,048) (529,577)
Non-controlling interests PR (41,172) (47,157)
(784,220) (576,734)
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December 31, 2024 2024512 A31H

December 31,

2023
2023
12A31H
Notes RMB'000
B & ARBTTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BERFE 13 452,801
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 69,419
Other intangible assets HivfmEEE 15 22,456
Investments in associates REEE R FINIRE 16 99,522
Equity investments designated at fair value 8 EIEAEERTA
through other comprehensive income Eith 2 E R HY
BHERE 17 47,656
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFABRDN
profit or loss TREE 22 44,401
Trade receivables Z Z M IE 20 403,933
Contract assets aRNEE 20 30,785
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTFIE AU
other assets HIEREMEE 21 67,892
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEEE 18 12,919
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 1,251,784
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories eSS 19 239,872
Trade and bills receivables EE N CREY L ES 20 1,583,395
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTFRIE - Hph R FRIA
other assets REHAME E 21 296,268
Financial assets at fair value through RARBEER AEZED
profit or loss TREE 22 =
Restricted cash ZRHEE 23 746
Cash and cash equivalents HeEMREEED 23 664,510
Total current assets MEEERE 2,784,791
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BreREERNDERQE

December 31, 2024 2024912 A31H

December 31,

2023
20234
12H31H
Notes RMB'000
BaE AREBFT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE

Trade and bills payables E ) ANV AN E S 24 650,741
Other payables and accruals E fth &< 5RIE KR FEET B 25 141,315
Contract liabilities AHEE 26 12,740
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t B 8R7T M E M &5 27 470,443
Lease liabilities HEGE 14 18,921
Tax payable e I8 1,056
Deferred income EIEUA 29 963
Provision BAE 30 21,080
Total current liabilities mB A ERE 1,317,259
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 1,467,532
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERABARZ 2,719,316

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Contract liabilities AH8aE 26 13,841
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t B R7T R E M &3 27 833,025
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 42,483
Redemption liabilities of a subsidiary —RWBRARIMEBER A E 28 =
Deferred income FEIEUA 29 58,284
Provision BE 30 21,219
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEREE 968,852
Net assets FEE 1,750,464
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December 31,2024 2024912 A31H

December 31,
2023
20234
12A31H
Notes RMB'000
P aE ARBTTT
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of FARERA
the parent b

Share capital f& A 31 81,311
Reserves &1 33 1,743,089
1,824,400
Non-controlling interests IR (73,936)
Total equity DB 1,750,464

Mr. Lin Qi
MEEE

Director

EFE

Mr. Hu Zhe
W EE
Director

EZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended December 31, 2024E 2 2024F 12 A31 B ILFE
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Year ended December 31, 20248 £ 2024F 12 A31 B IEF /&

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets

Share-based payment expenses

Share of losses of:
Associates
Impairment losses on financial assets, net
Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value
Finance costs
Interest income
Investment income from structured deposits
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

Remeasurement gain on investments in
associates held before business
combination

Gains on disposal of associates

Government grants and subsidies credited
to the statement of profit or loss

Warranty provision

Losses on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of a derivative financial
instrument

Gain on lease term termination

Year ended December 31, 2024E £ 2024F 12 A31 B ILFE

RETBHFRRARERE

B BLATE A
BA T B %
W - BE R RS E

EREEENE
H At T2 8 B 3
MAR D 2R ELHE Y
BEGE3

FEIE AT B IEEE

A AN
SN

SREERERRFRE
FEMBRER SR FE

MBER

M EHA

EREEERIRERA

BAREBEA
BN REE
RAEEKE),
&1

BEBAFRMESEN
i N RIETTIRE R
B EWRE

BN R E AR
Wz

FHABERRNBUTH B
Ko Bk

RIEBE

HEME - BER
REEE ) EE

HETESR T AN
&1

HERK FEENRES

Notes

=

6,13
6,14
6,15

6,32

6,14

2023
20234
RMB'000
AREFIT

(579,768)

92,792
18,151
9,677

87,066

3,855
63,965

31,765
47,926

(16,166)
(1,269)

3,120

(2,010)

(11,400)
18,461

512

(40)

(232,644)
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Year ended December 31, 2024E E2024F 12 A31 B ILFfE

2023
20234F
Notes RMB'000
P=E ARBTT
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & Ggm, wd 5,297
Increase in deferred income EFEHAIE AN 10,600
Decrease in restricted cash PR 3R 2R 59,156
Increase in trade and bills receivables B S REYGRIE &
FEN SR AN (527,533)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BREERD,/(35M) (31,380)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEfTFRIE - E M ENRIE
other receivables and other assets REMEERD
(125n) (128,823)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and Hih eI RIE R EF B A
accruals CRA) /1 hn 37,324
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 e RIE X FE A
SR 84,486
Increase in contract liabilities EHBAEEM 7,491
Decrease in provision B (14,930)
Cash used in operations KEMARSE (730,956)
Interest received 2T B 14,955
Income tax paid BEETER (2,404)
Net cash flows used in operating activities KEEFFTARERE
R (718,405)
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Year ended December 31, 2024E 2 2024F 12 A31 B ILFfE

2023
20234F
Notes RMB'000
P =E ARBTT
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING REZFHRARESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE « HE&
plant and equipment BAEIE B TS RIE 4,530
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE BER
equipment and right-of-use assets HERE REAEEE (142,120)
Purchase of other intangible assets BEHMEFAE 15 (1,932)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—KK B AR 35 -
Settlement of a derivative financial instrument {74 &R T E&EE (38,142)
Maturity of financial assets at fair BRAREBEFAEBRR
value through profit or loss TREEDH 337,066
Investments in associates REEE RN FRIRE (35,250)
Disposal of an associate HE—KBE QT 8,250
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HERQALEBEETA
through other comprehensive income Hibh2miaa
CREE =
Investments in financial assets at fair value KERAABETTA
through profit or loss BaremEE (41,000)
Investments in financial assets at fair value WEZRAAEERTTA
through other comprehensive income H 2w
TREE (27,895)
Withdrawal of time deposits IREUE BITER 53,297
Net cash flows used in/(from) REEEEA(FT18)
investing activities ReneEFH 116,804
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Year ended December 31, 2024E E2024F 12 A31 B ILFfE

2023
20234F
Notes RMB'000
P=E ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RiEEBFIBRESRE
Capital injection from non-controlling EERRFTE
shareholders 1,000
Capital injection of a subsidiary of the Group ~A&EB—RK B A A
HEE 28 =
Proceeds from issue of new shares BATHAR D P15 3008 31 -
Lease payments MEK 36(b) (19,195)
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and ST RRIT REMERK
other borrowings FrfS R 561,059
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and BB BRITREMBER
other borrowings (265,383)
Payments on listing expenditures AR 31 (2,318)
Deposit paid for supplier chain financing EERE Y MIES (60,000)
Interest paid EARFE (33,751)
Net cash flows from financing activities REFEABRE
REFHE 181,412
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASHAND HR&RAEEEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,/ (i) #H8 (420,189)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yearg?ﬂfﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%%ﬁ% 1,079,456
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [E R E# &) £ /558 5,243
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREERBEELZEY 664,510
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERBEEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS R
Cash and bank balances e RIRITEEH 23 665,256
Less: Restricted cash B XBREIRE 23 746
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in RESRERR
the statement of cash flows and Bk R A IR 89
statement of financial position RERASEEY 664,510
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Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Shanghai on September 18, 2015. The registered office
of the Company is located at Room 1004, 1/F, Unit 1, 1555 Jingyuan
Road, Jiading District, Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). On 11 September 2020, the Company was converted into a
joint stock company with limited liability. On December 6, 2024, the
Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:
research and development, production and sale of hydrogen fuel
cell systems, components and hydrogen production systems and

related components

provision of hydrogen fuel cell engineering and technical services

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows, all of

which are limited liability companies:

December 31, 2024 2024912 A31H

FBEBREREERMNAERLAAA TR
20159 A18 B LMK I BREFE
DA ARFFAMPEREUNREARHS
AE([HE ) BT REEREK15555
11004 = ° 1202098118 » XA H
HEIRRDERAT  R2024F 12608 -
ARARHBRHREBHERSAERAR

TREM -

RAFE  AEENTZEBWT

TR EBRL -

T R A

AR AERAZ A a0 3 - EEMIEE

MR B TIZH B RT

ARAEEZMBAR (ZMAEREER

ARSI -

Place and date of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
registration registered
Name Notes  and business share capital
HMARYL/EHRE BRITEER/
8 ME SEBERAN ERRE
(000)
(F7)
Shanghai REFIRE Technology Co, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000
(‘REFIRE Technology') December 17,2014
EBRERRBERAR ([E2HE]) HE/hEN AR3,0000007C
014F12R178
Changde REFIRE Surge New Materials (1) PRC/Mainland China RMB12,500
Technology Co, Ltd. April 1,2023
BREEY RN ERRERAR hE/hEA ARB125007

03F4R18

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

KRR R RELA
Direct Indirect
EE ik
% %
100 -
56 -

Principal

activities

B

Research and development (‘R&D"),
manufacture and sale of fuel cell
systems

RE SRR AREE
(%)) - BERHEE

Technology development and sale of
components

TR REE
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Name

£

Foshan Diyi Element New Energy Technology

Co, Ltd. (‘Foshan Diyi")
Il —TRIERNRERAF
(T LE—])

Shanghai PANDO Electric Technology Co,, Ltd.

(Shanghai PANDO")

LEEBERHMBARAR ([ LEET))

Jiangsu REFIRE Technology Co,, Ltd.

THERERHBERAA

Zhejiang REFIRE Technology Co, Ltd.

MIERERHRERAA

Shaanxi Daqin REFIRE Technology Co,, Ltd.

REAZRBZHRRHERLT

Place and date of
incorporation/
registration

and business
HRRL/ HRE
BepHRAN

PRC/Mainland China
December 5,2022

HE/mER
2022612158

PRC/Mainland China
January 22,2018

hE/hEN
20181 /228

PRC/Mainland China
November 23,2018

hE/hENY
2018F 11 A23A

PRC/Mainland China
September 2, 2021

/AR
202169A28

PRC/Mainland China
December 27, 2021

HE/hEN
20215128278

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEER/
EMBRA

(000)

()

RMB120,000

AE1200007T

RMBS1,724

ARES1747T

RMB350,000

AKR#3500007T

RMB30,000

AK#30,0007T

RMB100,000

AKE1000007T

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

RAREERELA
Direct Indirect
EE i
% %
45 10
445 -
- 100
- 100
- 100

Principal

activities

TEEH

Manufacture and sale of fuel cell
systems

MHEBRRNBERHE

R&D and sale of fuel cell components

MAELEBHOTMRRHE

Manufacture and sale of fuel cell

systems

MHE RN REREE

Manufacture and sale of fuel cell

systems

MAEBZRNRERHE

Technology development and sale of

fuel cell systems

AT ARNRMRARRAE
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Name

£

Zhengzhou REFIRE Technology Co,, Ltd.

OMEBRRRRERLR

Unilia (Guangdong) Fuel Cells Inc.

BEMREL (RR)BRLA

Unilia (Shanghai) Fuel Cells Inc.
(“Shanghai Unilia")
FRRSHERNEARAE ([ LEBE])

Foshan Nanhai Cungjiu Equity Investment Co,
Ltd. ("Nanhai Cungiu")

TR ERFNREREARAA
(8%

Zhejiang Unilia Hydrogen Technology Ltd.

MIBETHNRERAR

Place and date of
incorporation/
registration

and business
R 1)
BEhHRAR

PRC/Mainland China
December 24, 2021

hE/hENY
2021128248

PRC/Mainland China
August 27, 2020

hE/HENY
202058278

PRC/Mainland China
May 23,2017

HE/PER,
0174554238

PRC/Mainland China
March 16, 2020

e/ RER
202063 R16H

PRC/Mainland China
March 31,2022

A/ hER
W0%F3A318

December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

Percentage of equity

Issued ordinary/ attributable to the Company

A=
registered ARARERRLD Principal
share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BRTZER/
EMBRA ER B TEER
(1000) % %
(F7)
RMB10,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of fuel cell
systems
AR%100007 MEEBRREEERIRE
RMB14,178 - 809  R&D, manufacture and sale of fuel cell
stacks
ARB14178TC MEBBBEMTY  HERKE
RMB100,000 - 809  R&D, manufacture and sale of fuel cell
stacks
AR1000007 RAEBBRMTE  BERKE
RMB1,260,000 - 100 Investment holding
ARH1,2600007 RERR
RMB50,000 - 809  Technology development and
manufacture of bipolar plates, the
core components of fuel cells
ARES00007 MHE RO TR SRR

EEYPE S
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Percentage of equity

Place and date of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ TR
registration registered RERBGRRLH Principal
Name Notes  and business share capital Direct Indirect  activities
HMRL/ ERE BRTEER/
8 ME SEBERAN EfRE Ei Bk FEER
(000) % %
(Fr)
Unilia (Hong Kong) Fuel Cells Ltd. (1) Hong Kong RMB2,722 = 809  Investment holding
January 4,2019
BAESMERNRARAA R AR 727 REER
201951 A4H
Unilia (Canada) Fuel Cell Inc. (1) Canada CAD9,7593 - 809  R&D of fuel cell stack technology
September 8, 2017
BERHEL(MER)BRAR mex 97593 REE BB RRIETE
201769 A8H
REFIRE Europe GmbH Germany EUR25 100 - R&Dand sale of products and
June 23,2023 provision of services in the field of
fuel cells and hydrogen technology
in Europe
REFIRE Europe GmbH e BT 25 ERMIREE B R E Rl A e

2023F6F 238 REEE R RIRERE
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The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by the management of the Company
to translate the Chinese names of these companies as they do not have

official English names.

During the year, the Group acquired Jia Hydrogen (Shanghai) Industrial
Co., Ltd. and Jia Hydrogen One (Shanghai) Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
as subsidiaries from a third party. Further details of this acquisition are

included in note 35 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

(1) These companies are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the
Company having control over them.

(2) The Group legally transferred 48.97% equity interests in Nanhai Cunqiu
as collateral to equity investment companies on 15 March 2020. Under
arrangements, the Group was obliged to purchase the related equity
interests at a fixed amount on a future date upon repayment of the
borrowings from the equity investment companies.

December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

FiA T R B S 0 B A M X A TB T
BAARERERRASNH RS AA®
X & BEEFE - HE L EER XA
-

RAFE  AEEE-—RE=ZSTUBEERD
(EB)BEXARARRED — (LB)ER
MERERARRMB AR o thIBKEHE
— BN B BMRMEE3S ©

ERBINEZRRIBZXEFARENE
RARBEEEFESAIDNARBMNE
NE - EERK/2INEMHBARFIES
BYATBERILE °

() ZERARRARRZRIFZENE R RN
BAR - Bt - KABEZEQREEES
- MARRSIEHRB AR -

(2 2020838158 © AEBEBREEEFKD
48.97% B RE S VAT R T IRAEIRE A RIE AR
- BRELZHE  ASEEEERBIRER
RIERBEEERRREMEB SHRETSHE
& B ABRARRAE -
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December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards, (which include International Accounting
Standards (“IASs") and interpretations) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
private equity funds and equity investments which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi ("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended December 31, 2024.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of

the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

ZEVHREABEER S EAES
g ((HRSAENBEES )BEMNE
BRUBREER ST EN (RERERS
AR (TEREREF A k)R
FERERBGIRERERSE - ZFW
BHERDIRBELKAERE » 1R
AREBEEAENLEREES MIE
BRERIN - ZFMBERRTIAARE
(TAR®1)Z% - RABHEHAN -
BEEANERAAZSEINTAIE -

HEEE

HEMBHRREEARRRENEA
Al (BRI AEEDEE2024512H
BNBELEFENMBRE - WEBARRS
ARAABERKMEREFNER (24
HEUEER) EAKEH2EELEY
KEBHAZOREAERARLIZEE
Mo BRENEREBREHRME
N (AAREEERE TRAENATER
BHRMBEEBOBRFEN) ZEZS
Bl R - BVERISHE G -

—RIERT  FEZBIRERTKIE
HENRE - MARRBEAREHR
RSB UEN BB AEE
AEERHREHREERAK - &
ZERFAEHBEERBER 81

(@) EREHFHMREFEANEGHD
2

(b) BB HPIELNERN K

(O AEENREREREEREE-
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to

be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the
related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling
interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the
fair value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related

assets or liabilities.

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

HERE(E)

MEAREAEARR NS K
RFHF —mE RO BRE - WM
BRAAMEEEASBERGENEZ
BiREGa AR UIHEGASARESR
PRIEGIERILE AR
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BRAEERBHE ANMIEERE
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WWE%EWQﬂﬁEE&%%‘%
@ WA AXERRESREREGA
ARG BB o

MBEEERBEABER DM =IHZEH A
=% F—EZ% Eﬁﬁﬁ%’$ﬁ
BesflmERTEFREHR -
RIB A Tm%ﬁ%%*ﬁ(ﬂﬁ%

ISR )RR R H AR ©

WA E B R A — KM E R R A E G
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2) - AR - IR R E R
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The Group has adopted the following revised IFRS Accounting REERAKRFEEM G oMK ERERAT
Standards for the first time for the current year's financial HIES T BIRR B 75 i 5 22 Al 2 51 22 A o
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

R IR E 1658 (IBRTA) E#EALHERE

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the "2020 Amendments”)
Rt RIS 1 5R (BRI ) BEAER LB RE ([2020F1&FT 1)

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

REETHERISE 5% (BT AR) R B A 1E (12022183 1)

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

B SR E 75 M BRI RS HEBBELH
HRIF 75 (BFTA)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRS Accounting Standards w s BT R B 78 3R 5 E Bl =2 5T BI Y

are described below: MERTZEWNT

(@) Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller- (a) EREF RS RS R FE 16598 ((B5T
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale R)FTBHE R —ABEARTEE R
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does AR SGEENHEESERFERD
not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to BT UWERES —ABATSRE
the right of use it retains. Since the Group has no sale and RELH TR EE AR AR
leaseback transactions with variable lease payments that do SN EIES R c AR ANEB VA
not depend on an index or a rate occurring from the date of FE AR RS AR F 1650
initial application of IFRS 16, the amendments did not have any H 8 E AT AEUARN K —I81E
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group. YR F RGO ERE N TN E

REERS - HRSETLEE R
% BB BHR R R BB T
2 .
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(b) The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying

liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by
a right to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist
at the end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability
is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement. The amendments also clarify that a
liability can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that
only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is itself
accounted for as an equity instrument would the terms of a
liability not impact its classification. The 2022 Amendments
further clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from
a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Additional disclosures
are required for non-current liabilities that are subject to the
entity complying with future covenants within 12 months after

the reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions of its
liabilities as at 1 January 2023 and 2024 and concluded that the
classification of its liabilities as current or non-current remained
unchanged upon initial application of the amendments.
Accordingly, the amendments did not have any impact on the

financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the characteristics
of supplier finance arrangements and require additional
disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure requirements
in the amendments are intended to assist users of financial
statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity's liabilities, cash flows and exposure
to liquidity risk. As the Group does not have supplier finance
arrangements, the amendments did not have any impact on

the Group's financial statements.

(b)
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRS AEBHARZSEHBEHREER T
Accounting Standards, that have been issued but are not yet B AR B M R AE A TR RSB ET Y
effective, in these financial statements. The Group intends to apply PR B 7 s E B 52 R o AN 4R
these new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards, if applicable, RZEE] REIEFT RBR B & %
when they become effective. Ale s R A E A SR (2@
A) -
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability'
R ETAERIZE 2158 (B3R AN) RS RIS HE

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
R B 5 R 2 R 28 9 51 IR B R
R E LR E 75 (BRI A)

IFRS 18
BIFR A 75 5 2R RIS 1857
IFRS 19

BB B TS S ZE B2 1955%
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

I % B 7 i 5 22 B 35 1 055 S BB
SRS 285 (IB5TA0)

Annual improvements to IFRS
Accounting Standards - Volume 11

IR B #R 2 Rl it 2R A
FRHE—F 115

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments?
H2 BT AL B ZERNEET

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements?®

B RS R #7552

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures?

FHRRZFTE (EIE LN F] -

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

KREZHRBEN AR A SRS MR EE L& TE
Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 and IAS 72

BRI EERE 5% - BRPBREERNE75R - BRMEREER
Fo5t - BEREMBRELENE 105 RERSFHERFE 75 (BFTAK) 2

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025 ! MR2025FE 1 A1 B2 EFBHNEER
AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026 2 R2026F 1 A1HS 2 BEABNEEH
RAE

3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 R2027F 1 B1 B2 BFBNEE

2027 WEBRB AR

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption 4 oe Ak B EA T - ME AT AR

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of AEBCDHBIGZSEHAEENE

the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards, which are relevant AN MBI EHE

to the Group's operations. According to the preliminary assessment EASHEINEZE - BEEEEL

made by the directors, no significant impact on the financial B )25 0 FEERET AT RSB R B R

performance and financial position of the Group is expected when Bf IR 3R &5 Rl & 5 E A £ A 2 B R

the new and revised IFRS Accounting Standards become effective. £ B/ B 75 R I8 K2 B 75 AR O 35 Ak {A]

BEARE -
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Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the

investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint ventures. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and a joint venture are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint ventures,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s

investments in associates or joint ventures.
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Investments in associates and a joint venture
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from

disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the

ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the

acquiree.
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Business combinations (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or other

comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in

profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at December
31. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of

units.
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Business combinations (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the

cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments and private equity
funds at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic

best interest.
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Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best

use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the

cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the

smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of

profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Related parties B
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETIERT  —AHEREAERN
e e
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family @@ FBABEBEREVNREKE -
and that person MERZEA :

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () PRSI HEREGAER

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HBAREBEESEATE : 3

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) RAEEREGATINERE
Group or of a parent of the Group; BAE:

or 3%
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) FEUTEMAIBRHERE
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () ZEREAAEEAR-—SEH

Dg=]

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy ZERAS BB (I%S—
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the EROEATF - [MEARISKA
other entity); RMBARMEERAFIHE

B

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (iy ZEBAAEBERAE=FH
third party; GEBE

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (iv) ZERAE=ZFTHNEELEM
entity is an associate of the third entity; S—EBRARE-FHBER

o
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Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies: (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group; and the sponsoring employers of the

post-employment benefit plan;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the

Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and

location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets

with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used

for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter
of the lease

terms and 16%

Vehicles 19% to 25%
Machinery 9% to 33%
Office equipment and electronic devices 9% to 33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and

ready for use.
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Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life

are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life
of 5 to 10 years, which is mainly determined by reference to the

licensed period of the purchased software.

Patents and licences

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 8 years, which are mainly
determined by reference to the period during which such assets are

expected to bring economic benefits to the Group.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as

incurred.
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Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the

underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the

estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 50 years

Plant and properties 2 to 8 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated

useful life of the asset.
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Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the

event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a
change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying

asset.
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Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that is

considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other

comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set

out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the

business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair

value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the

date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when

the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in other

comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

RERAMETHMEE (&)

BBEK A EN B EE (B
BITA)

RBER A BN RMEEREER
ERARESE  YALTREY
2o REERILER  BHRRE
B ek RSB ESRNER -

BRREE AR E E W s 7
EMEE (BEFTA)

BARBEEFALMEERENERE
BE - EFBKRA - SMNEEMR RBE
BARBOHEBRERABR  5HH
TRBREBHKAGTENSREEM
Rl - HBAREBEEZSHNE M2 EK
SRR o RILHERE - Hti2EK
mPERNRFAABEEZDSED
FBERP -

WEER AT IEET AR EE K
mA)EAEE (KERE)

VIR R - ANEE AR E T A H
M EBREREDBREERAAE
B AEtEEEENRERE A
RRELRENABR SR ERE32
FIEMTA : IR THREER -
BYFERS - nERRESRET
BIRHEFEH]

ZETMEENRERBES T E
EEBEERT - BREERRRTER
REMKA - ATREXNEE T
BRIEARE B LAWK EI A & Bl & EK A
MAARZERMBFATER - £E
BERAT  ZWREFFAEMEER
& EERAABEAARMEEK
SRR B TETTRES -



Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited | L& 2 EREBMBRHERATE

December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair

value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity investments are
also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss

when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted
for as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in

the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through

profit or loss.
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Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual

terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and

forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 360 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking

into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable

expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive

income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to

impairment under the general approach and they are classified

within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for

trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified

approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 -

Stage 2 —

Stage 3 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific

to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating

ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,

or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, lease liabilities, redemption liabilities of a

subsidiary, and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

EHEERIE (F)

BE%
HNTBESEAREAREONES
FEURFERANVEE  AEAKERK
ATHRABREAMEARBOTENE
BREEER  NREBEGERSIE
EEBASERABLITE - RE[LS
% ARBTRBERRRNEL
MERBEREREBHNEHEHE
ERERRERER AKEDRE
HELSEEBRRREYTRERE
b - B 5 A M A B BR 3R O 5 E R
EMERZET T AR -

HREEEARE AR TS HE 5 E
Wy BT A 4 B A O E K
A EERRRAEL A EE
HEEEE LRA ERARRERL
R -

EHEE
IR R ot 2

TRABEVNEERRRIBE/ERL
REEFABGSNHSBEE ERNR
e IR (2ER) -

ESRABNFIRAREERR
MBERRAEFTIA R ENFOR - AR
R EREIE X BRAIRHER

AEENERABEREEZENK
HHEMEMNRERESER  HE
B —FWBATMEDEENUR
At BERITREAMER



2024 #£4F | ANNUALREPORT 2024 | REFIRE

Financial liabilities (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group classifies financial liabilities that arise from a supplier
finance arrangement within trade and bills payables in the
statement of financial position if they have a similar nature and
function to trade payables. This is the case if the supplier finance
arrangement is part of the working capital used in the Group's
normal operating cycle, the level of security provided is similar
to trade payables and the terms of the liabilities that are part
of the supply chain finance arrangement are not substantially
different from the terms of trade payables that are not part of
the arrangement. Cash flows related to liabilities arising from
supplier finance arrangements that are classified in trade and bills
payables in the statement of financial position are included in
operating activities in the statement of cash flows. Otherwise, the
financial liabilities are classified in interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings in the statement of financial position and the related
cash flows are included in financing activities in the statement of

cash flows.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other
payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation

is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities (continued)
Redemption liabilities of a subsidiary

A contract that contains an obligation to purchase the Group's
equity instruments for cash or another financial asset gives rise to
a financial liability for the present value of the redemption amount,
even if the Group's obligations to purchase are conditional on the
counterparty exercising a right to redeem. The Company undertakes
such redemption obligations as certain preferred rights are granted
to investors in the Company's financing process, the redemption
liabilities are recognised as financial liabilities initially at the present
value of the redemption amount and reclassified from equity.
Subsequently, the redemption liabilities are measured at amortised

cost with interest charged in finance costs.

The Group derecognises the redemption liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. When the preferred rights are waived by investors,
the carrying amount of the redemption liabilities is reclassified to

equity.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when

appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit

or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The derivative financial instrument is initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Change in fair value of the derivative financial

instrument is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the
case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any

estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short — term highly liquid
deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of

meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's

cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance

costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
hydrogen fuel cell systems, components and hydrogen production
systems for general repairs of defects occurring during the warranty
period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted by
the Group are initially recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate. The warranty-related cost is revised

annually.
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Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for

financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible

temporary differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary

differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of the reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a

reduced depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no
interest for the industrial support, the initial carrying amount of
the government loans is determined using the effective interest
rate method, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Financial liabilities” above. The benefit of the government loans
granted with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and the
proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and released
to the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the

relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be

entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract

inception.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the

variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

Sale of hydrogen fuel cell systems, components and hydrogen

production systems

The Group manufactures and sells hydrogen fuel cell systems,
components and hydrogen production systems in the market.
Revenue from sales of hydrogen fuel cell systems, components
and hydrogen production systems is recognised at the point
in time when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the customer, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products
have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer,
and either the customer has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all

criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Certain sales contracts have back-to-back terms that the
settlement of trade receivables from the customer is associated
with the customer’s receipt of subsidies from the government,

which give rise to variable consideration.
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Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b) Provision of hydrogen fuel cell engineering and technical

services and others

The Group recognises revenue from hydrogen fuel cell
engineering and technical services at the point in time when
the relevant services are rendered and acknowledged for
receipt by the customers. Contract costs include contract
fulfilment costs. Costs incurred for the provision of hydrogen
fuel cell engineering and technical services are recognised
as contract fulfilment costs, which is recognised as the cost
of sales when recognising revenue. If the carrying amount of
the contract costs is higher than the remaining consideration
expected to be obtained by rendering of the service net of the
estimated cost to be incurred, the Group makes provision for
impairment on the excess portion and recognises it as asset

impairment losses.

Revenue from the provision of separate after-sales services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis
because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes

the benefits provided by the Group.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset.
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Contract assets

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the contract terms, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets. They are
reclassified to trade receivables when the right to the consideration

becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e,, transfers control of the related goods or services to

the customer).

Share-based payments

Several employee incentive schemes and a Pre-IPO share option
scheme are operated for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for equity
instruments (‘equity-settled transactions”). The cost of equity-settled
transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair values for the
employee incentive schemes are determined by a third party valuer
based on investors’ recent transaction price and independent
valuation. The fair value for the Pre-IPO share option scheme is
determined by an external valuer using a binomial model, further

details of which are given in note 32 to the financial statements.
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Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of the reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative

expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an

award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to

the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original

award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional

share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for certain of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees

when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable

in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Other employee benefits (continued)
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.

Events after the reporting period

If the Group receives information after the reporting period, but
prior to the date of authorisation for issue, about conditions that
existed at the end of the reporting period, it will assess whether the
information affects the amounts that it recognises in its financial
statements. The Group will adjust the amounts recognised in
its financial statements to reflect any adjusting events after the
reporting period and update the disclosures that relate to those
conditions in light of the new information. For non-adjusting events
after the reporting period, the Group will not change the amounts
recognised in its financial statements, but will disclose the nature of
the non-adjusting events and an estimate of their financial effects,

or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made, if applicable.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved

by the shareholders in a general meeting.
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Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date
on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration.
If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the

advance consideration.
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Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, a joint
venture and associates are currencies other than the RMB. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate

to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences are
attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit

or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.

S (4B

ETHIIMNIBAR AELERBE
REINDEEBERARBUINGE
o RHmERR ZFEBNEER
BESRNRRENRERNERKRE
R/RARKE MHEBERXSREAXZH
HERBNEXHENETRE/SAR
B o

PEEMES ZENEME2EEEA
HRRRELRBFERERARG @ E5
BRI R ZRRI - HEE
SRR - EZEEBINEBARBN
RERTCEEEBRERTER

BERHERERME @ BINER
AMBRERERRSRERRNERL
ERME/ARY - BINHBARR
ERFEARFELNESRERSF
A FIERBE AR



2024 #£4F | ANNUALREPORT 2024 | REFIRE

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Measurement of variable consideration in sales contracts

Certain sales contracts have back-to-back terms that the settlement
of trade receivables from certain customer is associated with the
customer’s receipt of subsidies from the government, which gives rise
to variable consideration. Based on the assessment of credit risk of the
customer and collectability of government subsidies by the customer,
the Group considered it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
for current sales contracts. However, this judgement may be reviewed
and revised if the industry market environment or conditions change in

the future.

Identifying whether a significant financing component
exists in sales contracts

According to the current market practice, as China’s hydrogen fuel cell
vehicle industry is still in the early stage of development and is highly
affected by the government subsidy policies, therefore the Group's
customers, i.e., hydrogen fuel cell commercial vehicle manufacturers,
typically sell and charge prices to their customers after deducting
applicable subsidies at the time of sale before receiving government
subsidies. The Group's customers, i.e., commercial vehicle manufacturers,
can collect the relevant subsidies from the government, but this usually
takes a lengthy period of time, typically more than two years. Therefore,
the Group granted similar credit terms to major customers explicitly or

implicitly to align with current market practice.
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Identifying whether a significant financing component
exists in sales contracts (continued)

The management of the Group determined that such contracts currently
do not contain a significant financing component based on the industry
market environment and conditions. However, this judgement may be
reviewed and revised if the industry market environment or conditions

change in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.

Share-based payments

Several employee incentive schemes and a Pre-IPO share option scheme
are operated for the purpose of providing incentives to the Company'’s
directors and the Group's employees. The grant date fair values of the
shares of the employee incentive schemes are determined based on
investors’ recent capital injection price and independent valuation.
The fair value for the Pre-IPO share option scheme is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. However, this estimate may
be revised if the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest
changes in the future. Further details are contained in note 32 to the

financial statements.
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Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills
receivables and contract assets, other receivables

Provision for impairment of trade receivables is made based on
an assessment of expected credit losses on trade receivables. The
assessment of expected credit losses requires management’s judgement
and estimates. Trade receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection are assessed
individually for impairment allowance. The remaining trading receivables
are grouped based on ageing of bills of various customer segments with

similar loss patterns and collectively assessed for impairment allowance.

Under the collective approach, the Group uses a provision matrix to
calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on ageing analysis of customers that have similar loss patterns. The
provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and

changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs
on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 20 to the financial

statements.

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

ESRUFEREKRERE  SHE
E ~ Rt EWRIEHERE B 5%
]

85 R RERBEREE S REK
HEHEEERNTGEL - BHEES
BAHE 2 REE B EH H R b - BB
AEEAERES B REEFRONELE
BN E 5 BB RE BT AR ERE -
BHINEZRUGRIEREEBUBEENR
BEEFPOBNERREETOAILMAEFT
ERERE -

EHAAET  AKEERREREHEAER
SRBKENTRREEEBE - BEEFER
ERBUBERANE P KKK DT
- -BERESRVENAEEREERSG
IREHERMETE - AREHRIZAEMLEE
HABREBLARBEEERELR -1
EREOHENBEIERGINENERY
DITRIIE MR RO RS

e
pay
X!

HBTBREBIMENE - FEALEMRR
HEHEESEBZENEEENTHIE
ANiGst - BEHEEBESEIXERLE

RIERAGEERRAATZE - AEERBERE
BB B AR RACE KR TER IR AT g AR
RARBEFPHERENBR - BALEER
B REYGIENEREEEBENNT S
MEMIFE20HE o



Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited | L& 2 EREBMBRHERATE

December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

Estimation of provision for warranty claims

The warranty period is generally the shorter of 5 years and the period
when the vehicle that carries the Group's product travels for 200,000
kilometres after the control of goods is transferred to the customers.
Management estimates the related provision for future warranty claims
based on historical warranty claim information, as well as recent trend
that might suggest that past cost information may differ from future
claims. The assumptions made in respect of the Track Record Period
are consistent with those in the prior years. Factors that could impact
the estimated claim information include the success of the Group's

productivity and quality initiatives, as well as parts and labour costs.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of the reporting period. These non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in

order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits,

together with future tax planning strategies.

The Group has tax losses of RMB2,871,711,000 (2023: RMB2,429,235,000)
carried forward. These losses related to subsidiaries that have a history of
losses, have not expired, and may not be used to offset taxable income
elsewhere in the Group. The subsidiaries have neither any taxable
temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available that
could partly support the recognition of these losses as deferred tax
assets. On this basis, the Group has determined that it cannot recognise
deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried forward. Further details are

contained in note 18 to the financial statements.
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Management has determined the operating segment based on the
information reviewed by the Group's chief operating decision maker,
which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segment. The chief operating decision maker has been

identified as the executive directors of the Company.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segment
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment, focuses on the operating results of
the Group as a whole as the Group's resources are integrated and no
discrete operating segment information is available. Accordingly, no

further information about the operating segment is presented.

Most of the non-current assets of the Group are physically located in
Mainland China. The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the customers operate, and most of the revenue of the

Group was derived from operations in Mainland China during the year.

In the year under review, the revenue from the Group's major customers
accounted for 50.22% of the total sales for the year and sales to the

largest customer included therein amounted to 22.43%.

Customer A BEFEA
Customer Group B BEFEES
Customer C BEC

* Less than 10% of the Group's revenue
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Seasonality of operations

The Group is a supplier of fuel cell systems in fuel cell vehicle industry.
Higher revenues and operating profits are usually expected in the
second half of the year, especially in the fourth quarter of the year.
Higher sales during the fourth quarter are mainly attributed to the fact
that policies and awards for fuel cell vehicles are typically announced or
updated during the first half of each year by relevant local governments,
as China’s hydrogen fuel cell vehicle industry is still in the early stage
of development and is highly affected by the government subsidy
policies and customers will determine their purchase plan under the
updated government subsidy policies, resulting in the concentration of

customers’ stocking demand in the second half of the year.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers BEAHWA

o)
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(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) ZHEUAEF]
2023
20234
RMB'000
ARBTT
Types of goods or services Ems iR &R
Hydrogen fuel cell systems QIR E MR 637,176
Components =T a3 220,082
Hydrogen production systems and QAL B RABE T
related components 7,681
Fuel cell engineering and technical services AR E N TI2FA R 23,444
Others EAh 6,895
Total #Et 895,278
2023
2023
RMB'000
ARET T
Geographical markets HET S
Mainland China IR 872,069
Other countries/regions HMBER, & 23,209

Total FEE 895,278
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(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (a) ZEKAEHR (&)
During the year, the amounts of sales revenue apportioned to the REE  BIMNBEMEHEERASEA
oversea regions were RMB58,426,000 (2023: RMB23,209,000). R#58,426,0007T (20234F : AR

23,209,0007T) °

2023
20234
RMB'000
ARETTT
Timing of revenue recognition ON A
Goods or services transferred at a point in time & fa sk ARFS A 3 — R Bhi 2 888,936
Services transferred over time PRIG A — R i 6,342
Total #Et 895,278
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in TRINTHREAETARERHTELD
the reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities BENERAMARBTHEERET
at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from BHEFHERIBBASEE -
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:
2023
2023
RMB'000
ARETTT
Revenue recognised that was included in FAmRE YIS HNBESN
contract liabilities at the beginning of BERERBA

the reporting period: 15,069
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(b) Performance obligations (b) BHIELF

Information about the Group's performance obligations is

summarised below:

Sales of hydrogen fuel cell systems, components and
hydrogen production systems

The performance obligation is satisfied upon acceptance and
payment generally varies from 20 days to 36 months, except for
Faw Jiefang Automotive Co., Ltd. ("FAW Jiefang”) that the payment

is settled according to back to back terms.

Provision of fuel cell engineering and technical services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon acknowledgement
of receipt by the customers and payment generally varies from 20

days to 150 days. Partial upfront payment is made in advance.

Others

Others mainly represent after-sales services. The performance
obligation is satisfied over the scheduled period on a straight-line

basis and payment is periodical according to the service schedule.

As the original expected duration of the contracts from customers
of the Group are within one year or less, the Group applies
the practical expedient of not disclosing the transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance obligation. The amounts
of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations which are expected to be recognised as revenue after
one year relate to after-sales services, of which the performance
obligations are to be satisfied within eight years. The amounts
of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) were RMB15,154,000
(2023: RMB13,841,000).
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5. REVENUE, OTHER

(continued)

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

INCOME AND GAINS 5.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB R AR BTRE

December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

WA - EfW AR W (F)

Hip WA RBSEHDHTT

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETTT
Other income E AU A
Government grants and subsidies AT # B B e B 31,088 39,446
Interest income FEWA 6,101 16,166
Investment income from structured deposits HERETFHRIRERA - 1,269
Others HAh 1,114 229
Subtotal NET 38,303 57,110
Gains W
Gain on disposal of scrap materials R E A RS 884 665
Remeasurement gain on investments in associates ¥ A FHRIFTH A & Q&)
held before business combination ETRENENTERE 950 =
Gains on disposal of associates HEBE AR EENRE - 2,010
Gain on exchanges R E 968 =
Gain on third-party debt restructuring FoHEBEEELENE 645 =
Gain on lease term termination HEHKR EEERNRE - 40
Subtotal 25y 3,447 2,715
Total st 41,750 59,825
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The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of goods sold*
Cost of hydrogen fuel cell engineering and
technical services provided*
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Research and development costs*
Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities
Employee benefit expense
(including directors” and chief executive's
remuneration (note 8)):
Wages and salaries
Share-based payment
Pension scheme contributions and
social welfare
Impairment losses on financial assets, net
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
Gain on lease term termination
Warranty provision
Losses on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of a derivative
financial instrument
Remeasurement gain on investments
in associates held before business
combination
Gains on disposal of associates
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

Auditor's remuneration

Listing expenses

Notes

B

EEmARAR*
FTiR L &M EE A
T2 2 ARG R
M - BENRREBITE 13
TREEENE 14(a)
HivEm & EgH 15
B X A
R AHEAEHEN
HAERMK 14(c)
B T &
(PREFR&ERITR
A B R FB (FsEs)) -
I&ERT®
M%@%R%WH% 32
RREFH AR
HE@H
CREERBEBIFRE
GFEMRZEZIRFE 19
HEBRIEEE RS
RIER
HEWE - BER
HAEIE B B ER
HETESRMTA
EAEREE
HEBEHRMARHEN
Bt N RBETTIRE M
ECibg g 5
B A B E A B 5
BRAREBER ABZN
SREEANEE
(=) BB
A GIEAT
EWRX

REBERBAEBENMGR, GFAU TS
THIBES

2023
20235
RMB'000
AREF T
598,727
7,255
92,792
18,151
9,677

65,028

2,097

250,554
87,066

65,093
63,965
31,765
(40)
18,461

512

719

(2,010

3,120

19,084
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6. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

*  The depreciation of property, plant and equipment, the depreciation of
right-of-use assets and the amortisation of other intangible assets related
to manufacturing and research and development for the year are included
in "Depreciation of property, plant and equipment’, “Depreciation of right-
of-use assets” and “Amortisation of other intangible assets’, respectively. The
labour costs related to manufacturing and research and development for the

year are included in “Employee benefit expense”.

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R YT
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

6. BRBLAIEE (&)

FREREERNEEHENYE - BEREE
TE EREEENEREMETEEZSH
DRIFFATYR - BERREBHE]  [#H
REENE IREMBTEERE] - F/
A ERAEBANG TRAGA BRI
B -

7. BEEH

HEERSTWT :
2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBET T

Interest on interest-bearing bank and

HBBITRAMBIERFIE

other borrowings 54,621 43,373
Transaction cost on redemption —XHEBEATN

liabilities of a subsidiary 425 -
Interest on lease liabilities HESENE 2,547 4,553
Total 57,593 47,926
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Directors’, chief executive's and supervisors' remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

FACREBELTRA - BAERRERME
383(1)(a) * (b) * (O RMEARAR (WEE
ENRERDROFE2HBWENEE - &S
TRABREENZFHMAOT

follows:

2023
20234
RMB'000
AREFIT
Fees we 361

Other emoluments: Huph< -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYEA 6,373
Performance related bonuses* B 1,090
Equity-settled share option expense AR B ER 43,069
Pension scheme contributions RIRE T B 1,126
Subtotal IINET 51,658
Total “aET 52,019

* Certain executive Directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments
which are determined by key performance indicators.

During the year, certain Directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements. The difference between the fair value of the shares
and options granted and the subscription price was recorded in the
share-based payment reserve within equity with the corresponding
“share-based payment expenses”in profit or loss over the vesting period.
The amounts of the share-based payment expenses during the year are
included in the above Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration

disclosures.

*  KRRRETHTESHERZAZARERE
REERN SR

FA REARBPNERETS 5TE
ERERAKER ARG ERBRE -
E—THBHNRPBHRERME32 - ERH
By RBERENALEEERBEEZHL
EREN S A AR D AERO N RFEEA
B - AR FE B [ AR 1) 7 B R WO SR B 3
AERBHARNEREAR - FAUKN A
ARNNFHAXSRRNLEXEERES
TTRABHMHKEERSD -



2024 %% | ANNUALREPORT2024 | REFIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R YT
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 8. EEX BREITHABREEF
SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) B (42 )
The fees paid to independent non-executive Directors during the FAMBYIFRTEST TSN
year were as follows: I
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R AR¥ETT

Ms. Qian, Meifen (i) BESLZL() 120 120
Mr. Li, Wei (i) e () 120 120
Mr. Chen, Fei (ii) BoR e 52 A (i) 120 1
Mr. Xie, Penghong (i) HMSIB LA - 120
Total #Et 360 361
(i) On 8 September 2020, Ms. Qian, Meifen, Mr. Li, Wei and Mr. (i) M202069A8H  BEF L+ -
Xie, Penghong were appointed as independent non-executive FEEERBISBEEEZEIRAE
Directors of the Company. Mr. Xie, Penghong resigned on 27 NEVEMIENITES - #IEBREE
December 2023. 2023512 A27 BEHT °
(i) On 27 December 2023, Mr. Chen, Fei was appointed as an (i) M2023F 128278 - BRLEE
independent non-executive Director of the Company. ZERARRBEIIFNITES -
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FARIWEENBIIENITESNEM

non-executive Directors during the year (2023 nil). Bl (20234 : &) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI aE

December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director, the chief

executive and supervisors

8. EE RETTHAEBRESEH
B (&

(b)

HITES  FHTES - BT
BAEBRES

Salaries,
allowances  Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
e RER DR EN Bife
ENER ENRS BREMX BE a3 20 Pk
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
2024 20245
Executive Directors: WiTES
Mr. Hu, Zhe LS 889 2,392 41,533 145 44,959
Ms. Ma Audrey Jing Nan Safit 858 1,230 17,267 114 19,469
Mr. Zhai, Shuang BeXE 737 1,303 13,411 145 15,596
Mr. Zhao, Yong Sheng HXELE 658 1,425 12,989 145 15,217
Subtotal NG 3,142 6,350 85,200 549 95,241
Non-executive Director: FHITES:
Mr. Liu, Hui You flertaE - - - - -
Supervisors: Ex:
Mr. Wu, Yang (vii) B 5 A (i) - - - - -
Mr. Zhou, Wei (viii) [R5 A (i) - = - = -
M. Ji, Yizhi (vii) F—E LA vil) = = = = =
Mr. Wang, Chugi (viii) SRS A (vill) 548 582 185 145 1,460
Mr. Sun, Bei (ix) FIb A (ix) 742 1,674 377 145 2,938
Mr. Zhang, Cheng (x) RIESAE (x) - - - - -
Subtotal NGt 1,290 2,256 562 290 4,398
Executive Director and HITEER
Chief executive: BETHALE :
Mr. Lin, Qi WE A& 862 3,658 57,746 145 62,411
Total @t 5,294 12,264 143,508 984 162,050
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8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R YT
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

8. EEX - RETHAEBREEH
M (&)

Salaries,
allowances Performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related share option scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
e 2R PAERLEER RIkE
EMET Ewge  BRERY FTEIHR Eaal ok
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
2023 2023
Executive Directors: WITES
Mr. Hu, Zhe HELE 902 100 3,295 143 4440
Ms. Ma Audrey Jing Nan BRIt 861 100 1,129 114 2,204
Mr. Zhai, Shuang BEEE 765 97 231 143 1,236
Mr. Zhao, Yong Sheng HXERE 636 91 451 143 1321
Mr. Gong, Xiaohui BB A 966 - 2,257 131 3354
Mr. Chen, Weishan BRELLE 142 = = 23 165
Subtotal et 4272 388 7,363 697 12,720
Non-executive Director; FHITES
Mr. Liu, Hui You flerRiE - = = = -
Supervisors: .
Mr. Wu, Yang (vii) B ST A (i) - = - = -
Mr. Zhou, Wei (vii) B2 5 A (viil) = = = = =
Mr.Ji, Yizhi (vii) F—E LA i) = = = = =
Mr. Wang, Chugi (viii) TERE LI A (vill) 505 76 6,957 143 7,681
Mr. Sun, Bei (ix) BIb LA () 722 526 753 143 2,144
Subtotal NG 1227 602 7,710 286 9,825
Executive Director and HITEER
Chief executive: Re{THAE :
Mr. Lin, Qi WEEE 874 100 27,996 143 29,113
Total @it 6,373 1,090 43,069 1,126 51,658
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On September 8, 2020, Mr. Lin, Qi was appointed as the chief
executive Director and the chairman of the board of Directors

of the Group.

On September 8, 2020, Mr. Hu, Zhe and Mr. Zhai, Shuang were

appointed as executive Directors of the Group.

On December 27, 2023, Ms. Ma Audrey Jing Nan was appointed

as an executive Director of the Group.

On April 3, 2023, Mr. Zhao, Yong Sheng was appointed as an

executive Director of the Group.

On September 8, 2020, Mr. Gong, Xiaohui and Mr. Chen,
Weishan were appointed as executive Directors of the Group,
Mr. Gong, Xiaohui resigned on December 27, 2023 and, Mr.
Chen, Weishan resigned on February 28, 2023.

On December 27, 2023, Mr. Liu, Huiyou was appointed as a

non-executive Director of the Group.

On January 19, 2023, Mr. Wu, Yang and Mr. Ji, Yizhi were
appointed as supervisors of the Group, Mr. Ji, Yizhi resigned on
19 February 2025.

(viii) On May 18, 2022, Mr. Zhou, Wei and Mr. Wang, Chugqi were

appointed as supervisors of the Group, Mr. Zhou, Wei resigned
on August 21, 2024.

R2020F9 A8 H » MBHAESL
EEAEBEENTESRES
Eo

20209 A8H - B HERE
S ARETAAERMNTES -

M2023F 128278 - &Rt
BRERAEBENTES -

R2023F4 A3H » BIKELAE
ZRARREERNITES -

MR2020F9A8H  BNEEER
BB CEREZTRASENITE
= o B/NEEAR2023F12A27
AEHE - BREFILE AR 2023524
28 HBHE ©

M2023F 128278 » BlgkEk4t
BERERAEBENTES -

R2023F1 A198  RIFLERSE
—EEEREEAEAEERES - F
— &G HER2025F2 A 19HBHE -

(vii) R 202255 A 188 » ABEART

RELCEERZETAAEEES - F
B AR 20248 A21 HEHE ©
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(ix) On 8 September 2020, Mr. Sun, Bei was appointed as a

supervisor of the Group, Mr. Sun, Bei resigned on 27 January

2025.

(x)  On 21 August 2024, Mr. Zhang, Cheng was appointed as a

supervisor of the Group.

There was no arrangement under which a director, the chief

executive or a supervisor waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.

During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, no

emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office.

The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors

(2023: two directors and a supervisor), details of whose remuneration are

set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the

remaining highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive or a supervisor of the Company are as follows:

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

(ix) FA2020F9HA8H @ AitLLES
EAREBEEE - FIL R AHEK2025
F£1 727 BEHE -

(x) M2024F8A21H  RIBELLEE
TAEKREBEESE -

FRALTFEEE  ERTHRABR
EENELRBMEEMF M ZHE -

REZE2024F K 2023F 128318 IEEF
B - ANE BN AR E E A
- ERMEEEMARERS A
REER 2 B EABASE

FAN hEBSFHEERE=R2E%
(20235 : MBEFER—BESE) AHE
EMFBF BN LXES - F£A - BEIF
ARREBEENTHERTHRAERESHHE
pE=FMERFBNOT ¢

2023

20234

RMB'000

AREFTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e MR EWET 2,965
Performance related bonuses EiEe 676
Share-based payment expense LARR 7 2 B 89 5 SR 2 13,237
Pension scheme contributions RIRE IR 430
Total 45T 17,308
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The numbers of non-director, non-chief executive or a supervisor highest

paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands are

FHBEBRATHENFES  FRHTH
ABREZNREHFIEESABWMT

as follows:
Number of employees
EBEAE

2023
20234F

RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000 AR#¥4000,001TE
AR #5,000,0007T 1
More than RMB5,000,000 HBid AR ¥ 5,000,0007T 2
Total st 3

During the year and in prior years, share options were granted to certain
employees, further details of which are included in the disclosures in
note 32 to the financial statements. The difference between the fair
value of the shares and options granted and the subscription price was
recorded in the share-based payment reserve within equity with the
corresponding “share-based payment expenses” in profit or loss over
the vesting period. The amounts of the share-based payment expenses
during the year are included in the above directors’ and chief executive's

remuneration disclosures.

During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

REARBEFE HTEREERBR
8 RE-SHBERUBRRME2HR
BEMNT - DRHEBRD RBERENAAE
BEEABEZHNZRRNEBEANNRN K
ERONRERBAR  MABREARD
AERONFFAZ JAIERBHRAREBREA
BR - FANBRODAERNONRAXSELD
BALXEZRERTRABHMHEES
K o

REE2024F K 2023F12A31BILFE -
AEBUER AL &S D HNEES X HEM
HEN  (EREEEMAREBKMALRE
B2 e ke RBERESE -
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The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are

domiciled and operate.

The subsidiaries incorporated in Mainland China are subject to tax at the
statutory rate of 25% on the taxable profits determined in accordance
with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which became effective on 1
January 2008, except for those subject to tax preferential policy set out

below:

REFIRE Technology, Shanghai PANDO. and Shanghai Unilia were granted
the qualification of High and New Technology Enterprises (“HNTE").
Accordingly, the subsidiaries were entitled to a preferential corporate

income tax rate of 15% during the year.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have applied the Small-Scaled Minimal
Profit Corporate Income Tax Preferential Policy announced by the PRC's
State Administration of Taxation. For small-scale low-profit enterprises,
the policy of calculating the taxable income at a reduced rate of 25%
and levying corporate income tax at a rate of 20% will continue to be in
effect until December 31, 2027.

The subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong is subject to Hong Kong
profits tax at the rate of 8.25% for taxable income not exceeding
HKD2,000,000, and 16.5% for taxable income exceeding HKD2,000,000 on
any estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had
no assessable profits derived from or earned in Hong Kong during the

year.

The subsidiary incorporated in Canada is subject to Canada profits tax
at the statutory rate of 15% on any estimated assessable profits arising
in Canada during the year. No provision for Canada profits tax has been
made as the Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in

Canada during the year.

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

AEBANERBABEMRAEREEKER
AEMERREMENRNEAEERESNKK
BRMREEERNNBHARKREH

B A b 5 1 B 2 B BT B A BB B AR BB
20085F1 A1 BAERMMCHEA R MBI B
FT{8Hi% ) 1 K MR R B IR 250 M A E
ﬁ%@ﬁ 1B ST 3 A B WU R UK
BFT B R EIBR I -

EBMER - LBEPR LEEERESH
i ([SHFRMmbE])ER - Bt -
BUEMBARARRFEAZTEIS%NEED
EFBBBE

AEANETHBARCEATEERR
548 5 A 5 B /N U BRI £ 2 P 15 7 (B JR R
oo B/ NELMFIREM T - RIR25% M T K
STEE R ATSEE R IE 20% M F RN %
ISR BUR S IFEE R E 202712 A31
E| o

W%EWE%%FiW%%E#ﬁﬂHﬁ

TRV M A S BT B A R B BT R
@Zﬁéﬁnm%#ﬁﬂﬁhaﬁ% gtk e
BB BB BB T NIE16.5%
BB EBNEENER - AR AEBNF
W 4R B & S S I B S BREUA) FE SR B A
B R EER BB RS REE -

EMERFMEZONE QR ERXRRFERA
TE DN R E A Rl 5T FE R R E R 1 5% 8%
ERMEHMAMERFER - ARAEER
FRWERE NERLEMNEANFRRD E
ARERAE - BB INERFIS TR -
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Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates

of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

H A B R Bl [ O B AR A A B IR IR A
BRLRAEREEERNRITHERGHE -

2023

20234

RMB'000

ARBTT

Current income tax BHAFTS 13
Deferred tax credit (note 18) BRI B R (FizE18) (2,250)
Total tax credit for the year FATIAB R LR (2,237)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to loss before

tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdiction in which the Company and

the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e, the

statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows:

Loss before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate

Effect of preferential tax rates

Losses attributable to a joint venture and
associates (a)

Expenses not deductible for tax (b)

Super deduction on research and development
expenses

Deductible temporary differences not recognised

Tax losses not recognised

BREtRIE R

R E BRI TLIR
BERENTER
EIERERER
B2 AR EE (a)

T REINFIR A FI S (b)
Bt 3% R SOBnEHHIRR

RERW A BINERHER
RERIBIRE R

BARBREKRS BB R RHEMRAER
RIAEBEEAEER R ENRBATER
ERMBIERX (R ) B% A M X5t
HOBRAXOEE - ERRE (BDEE
B )BAYH KGRI T ¢

2023
20234F
RMB'000
AREBFIT

(579,768)

(144,942)
24,957

964
21,921

(25,256)
9,449
110,670

Tax credit at effective tax rate

BAYBERGFENHIAR L

(2,237)
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(@) The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
RMB15,182,000 (2023: RMB3,855,000) is included in “Share of losses

of associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(b) Expenses not deductible for tax mainly include the tax effect of
share-based payments, and non-deductible business entertainment

expenses.

No dividends have been paid or declared by the Company during the
year ended December 31, 2024 (2023: nil).

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the loss
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and
the weighted average numbers of ordinary shares of 81,642,050 (2023:
81,311,371) outstanding during the year, as adjusted to reflect the new

shares issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
is the number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, as used in
the basic loss per share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration
on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares into ordinary shares.

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

@ BERBERBERARZHEBSEAA
K#®15,182,0007T (202345 : AR¥E
3,855,00070 ) st AfR A B am &k [ FEAG B
ENRIEBEIA -

) TAEHNBERIXEIZREARNA
ERMNRORBEE R TAEMNE
BREFHRX -

KABREE2024F12A31BILFEHE
IR E IR E (20234 « £&) -

BRERNEESERBI AR S RERS
BEABREFABBARFRNBETENE
WA DN 19 2081,642,050 % (2023 4F ¢
81311371051 E + W FAFAEURBRER
BIETAR 4T o

BRESENBRESAREBERIFTEA
EEFABRFE - EPEANTBER
MEF OB AT ESREREBIEMANSE
NBETHEINEBRBE - M BB INEF
BERRENBEBEEEERRBER
TERERR R ERREIZTRERT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R MY EE
December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

12.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY NR.BLAAEERZREAELE

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued) REGE (&)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on: BREAREERFHIRBEANSIETE -
2024 2023
20244 20234
Loss &8
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of BRRE@BEREEA
the parent (RMB'000) FEhEE(ARETT) (737,301) (529,472)
Shares A& 15
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BRI EEREREENER
outstanding during the year used in BATIEINE BRI 198X
the basic loss per share calculation 81,642,050 81,311,371
Loss per share HiEE
Basic and diluted EXREE RMB A R # RMB A R #&
(9.03) 7T (6.51)7T
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the REERBZE2024F &2023F 1243181k
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. FEIWEELEETET L AR -
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amount MERE EHEE204F I EFENERE
presented for the year ended 2024 in respect of a dilution as the impact AEESBEELAE  TTERR2024FH
of the option outstanding adopted in 2024 had an anti-dilutive effect on MEBEITEIINBERELMZNHERER

the basic loss per share amount presented. EESHEARREETE -
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13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R BT 5
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

13.M% - BERRE

Office
equipment
and electronic Leasehold  Construction
Buildings  Machinery devices Vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BARER
BT HE  ETRE RE HEXE  ERIRE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARWMTR ARETT AR®TR ARBTT ARMTR ARETR
December 31,2024 2024%12A31R
At 1 January 2024: R2024%51 718
Cost AR 69,300 430,603 28,225 4,895 189,340 38,135 760,498
Accumulated depreciation BETERAE
and impairment (7,652) (167,430) (20,370) (2,997) (109,248) - (307,697)
Net carrying amount REHE 61,648 263,173 7,855 1,898 80,092 38,135 452,801
At 1 January 2024, net of accumulated K204 1 18 + MR RF
depreciation and impairment FERRE 61,648 263,173 7,855 1,808 80,092 38,135 452,801
Additions AE 7,749 8,221 132 4 4,298 18,849 39,253
Disposals BE - (8,216) (290) - (1,349) (38)  (9,893)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35)  WE—RIBL A (Fi335) = 7,833 s = = = 7,833
Depreciation provided during the year  FREHERIE (2,991) (55,644) (3,315) (625) (31,414) - (93,989)
Exchange realignment EHRE - (1,250) (62) (13) (426) - (1,751)
Transfers a5 - 31,954 - - 2,404 (34,358) -
At December 31, 2024, net of 20245124318 - g
accumulated depreciation and ZHNERRE
impairment 66,406 246,071 4,320 1,264 53,605 22,588 394,254
At December 31, 2024: 2045124318 :
Cost KA 77,049 469,145 28,005 4,886 194,267 22,588 795,940
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERAE
impairment (10,643) (223,074) (23,685) (3,622) (140,662) - (401,686)
Net carrying amount RRFE 66,406 246,071 4,320 1,264 53,605 22,588 394,254
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13.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13.9% - RERRE(Z)
Office
equipment
and electronic Leasehold  Construction
Buildings Machinery devices Vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BRARER
g¥ KE  ETHE RE BEXE  ERIE &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

ARETL  ARMTT AREBTR ARETR ARETL  ARETT AR%TR

December 31,2023 2023%12A31H
At 1 January 2023: RABF1A1B
Cost KA 65,500 352,643 24928 3,168 174432 11509 632,189
Accumulated depreciation and BEHTERAE
impairment (5128) (114,729) (15742) (2422) (76,885) - (214905)
Net carrying amount REFE 60,381 237915 9,186 746 97,547 11509 417,284

At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated 202351 A18 - kR

depreciation and impairment ZAMERAE 60,381 237915 9,186 746 97,547 11509 417,284
Additions AE 264 49849 3,083 1,757 4450 70232 131635
Disposals RE (258) (4633) (108) (43) = = (5,042)
Depreciation provided during the year ENzHEEITE (2,524) (52,702) (4628) (575) (32,363) = (92792)
Exchange realignment e - 1,160 2 13 521 = 1716
Transfers ELE 3785 31,584 300 = 9937 (45,606) =
At December 31, 2023, net of R2023%E128318

accumulated depreciation and MREHMERRE

impairment 61648 263173 7,855 1,898 80,092 38135 452801
At December 31, 2023: 12023E128318
Cost R 69,300 430,603 28225 4895 189,340 38135 760498
Accumulated depreciation and ZHNERAE

impairment (7,652) (167.430) (20370) (2,997) (109,248) - (307697)

Net carrying amount REFE 61,648 263,173 7855 1,898 80,092 38135 452,801
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The Group's buildings, included above at cost, were valued at
RMB69,300,000 as at December 31, 2023 in the prospectus issued on 28
November 2024 in connection with the listing of the Company's shares
on 6 December 2024.

At December 31, 2024, certain of the Group's buildings with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB66,406,000 (2023: RMB61,648,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group

(note 27).

At December 31, 2024, certain of the Group's machinery with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB118,041,000 (2023:
RMB138,522,000) was subject to the sale and leaseback business with
Taiping & Sinopec Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. (note 27).

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and properties
used in its operations. Leases of plant and properties generally have
lease terms between 2 and 8 years. Other equipment generally has lease
terms of 12 months or less or is individually of low value. Generally,
the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets

outside the Group.

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

2024511 A28 HEE AR R FIMRD 20245
12A6H EmAIENBRERY - EXAEH
BRAGTENAEEBFR2023F12H31
H & & E A AR 69,300,0007T °

R2024F 128318 AEEERFELY
B AR¥66,406,0007C (2023F : AR
61,648,00070) MG TEFHREREALER
EE—RRITREOER (HiE27) -

2024F 128318 - AEBEREFEYD
B ARM118,041,0007T (20234 « AR
138,522,0007T ) M E TR BN EX T AL
CRAEFMRETARMNERMRER (M
F£27) o

AEBERELLEFERNZEBRE WX
BEFTEHESR - BMEMMENHER
HERER2FE8F - HMRENELE
BEAEB2EAKESNNEEERE - K
SE-RERHIKHEEEERLEHE
REBEZH -
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December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the

(@) RAEEE
REARNEBEEREEENEREER

movements during the year are as follows: g8t
Plant and
Leasehold land properties Total
HELT# N8 ES #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T AR®TT ARBFT
As at 1 January 2023 R2023F1 H1H 21,659 66,211 87,870
Depreciation charge TEEH (465) (17,686) (18,151)
Decrease arising from lease term T E B EER AR

termination = (300) (300)
As at December 31, 2023 and 2023124318 K&

1 January 2024 20241 A1 H 21,194 48,225 69,419
Additions NE 38,683 1,586 40,269
Depreciation charge TEEH (1,756) (16,874) (18,630)
As at December 31, 2024 M2024F12H31H 58,121 32,937 91,058

As at December 31, 2024, the Group's leasehold land with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB20,776,000 (2023:
RMB21,194,000) was pledged to secure interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings granted to the Group (note 27).

2024128318 ' AEBEERFE
45 ANR%20,776,0007C (20234 :+ A
R#21,194,0007T ) #9755 + 3t 1 & #1E
ARAEBERTBERITREMBRD
BR (B5E27) ©
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(b) Lease liabilities

(c)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

(b) HEEARE
RENAEREOREERZPNT :

2023
20234
RMB'000
ARBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January »1 A1 BREREE 76,386
New leases HE -
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 4 IRERR B 8.1 i 4,553
Decrease arising from lease term termination T E B FiER AR (340)
Payments NE7N (19,195)
Carrying amount at December 31 ®12A31 BREREE 61,404
Analysed into: DITA
Current portion mEnE s 18,921
Non-current portion TR ENEL S 42,483
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as (c) HHEEREBEERANSENT :
follows:
2023
20234F
RMB'000
AREBT T
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 4,553
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENEER 18,151
Expenses relating to short-term leases 5B E BRI 1,868
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets REELEERERBANAEZ 229
Loss on lease term termination ME BRI EEENES (40)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIEERRNESEE 24,761
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Patents and Construction

Software licences  in progress Total
B4 ERRFT EEIR #5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR¥TR ARBTR AR%TER

At January 1, 2023: H2023F1 818 :
Cost (BN 43,740 11,000 478 55,218
Accumulated amortisation RETEE MORE

and impairment (16,705) (8,312) - (25,017)
Net carrying amount AR A 27,035 2,688 478 30,201

Cost at January 1,2023, netof 420235131 KA

accumulated amortisation HBRBTHERRE

and impairment 27,035 2,688 478 30,201
Additions = 1,266 = 666 1,932
Transfers L0 973 = (973) =
Amortisation provided during FRETIRAE

the year (8,211) (1,466) - (9,677)
At December 31, 2023 M2023%12A31H 21,063 1,222 171 22,456

At December 31, 2023 and at 2023F 128318 K

1 January 2024: 20241818 :
Cost BN 45,979 11,000 171 57,150
Accumulated amortisation and EEEHERE

impairment (24,916) (9,778) - (34,694)

Net carrying amount AR A 21,063 1,222 171 22,456
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December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

Patents and

Construction

Software licences in progress Total
B BERRFA EEIR et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥BTR ARBTR AR%®TR
Cost at 1 January 2024, net of 74202451 81 BRI
accumulated amortisation HBRE ST 84 21,063 1,222 171 22,456
Additions NE 212 = 838 1,050
Acquisition of a subsidiary i — BB A 7 - 4,666 = 4,666
Transfers R 599 - (599) -
Amortisation provided during FRNETIRAVEL
the year (7,925) (1,763) - (9,688)
At December 31, 2024 A2024%12H31H 13,949 4,125 410 18,484
At December 31, 2024: 72024%12H8318 :
Cost BXAR 46,790 15,666 410 62,866
Accumulated amortisation and REHEHEMORE
impairment (32,841) (11,541) - (44,382)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 13,949 4,125 410 18,484
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16.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

16. RBERNTNKRE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARBT T

Share of net assets JERFEE

132,590 99,522

The associates of the Group are considered not individually material
for the year and the following table illustrates the aggregate financial

information of the Group's associates:

RER  REBNKERARREREBM
FXAEKN - TRIVRAKEEE R RH
REBPEER

2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ETR ARBTT

Share of the associates’ losses for the year FE(RE & QR FAEE (15,182) (3,855)
Share of the associates’ total comprehensive JE(REE N Al4R e W B EE

income (15,182) (3,855)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REEREEARIRENRARE

investments in the associates 132,590 99,522

The outstanding balances with the associates are disclosed in note 39.

17.EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

RS N B AR IR SRR P RE 30K R ©

gl

17.EERAARBEFTAEMER
AR ERE

2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARBET T

Unlisted equity investments EETRERE

43,541 47,656

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these

investments to be strategic in nature.

HRAKEK DR ERESR SB BRI
g AHABRECH T AREEERE
NAEEFARBREKES
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The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are

as follows:

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

RENBEHRBEERABNEFHNT

Deferred tax assets BEREEE
Losses Fair value
available for adjustment
offsetting arising from
Impairment of Lease Deferred  against future  acquisition of
inventories liabilities income  taxable profits subsidiaries Total
RIS WHENE
ARERE  DEELEN
FEAE HELR BEWA  WENEE OABERER gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR®TR ARBTR
At 1 January 2023 R3EIA1A 1629 12016 9886 - = B3I
Deferred tax creditec)/(charged) to profit or ERiNEREA/ (15 )8
loss during the year ERLHE 675 (2654) (164) 609 = (1534
Gross deferred tax assets at December 31,2023 R03%F 12731 AMEEHE
HELE 23m 9362 9722 609 - 21997
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-ZHEAR - = - - 1914 1914
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit or ERiNEREA/ (15 )8
loss during the year s 997 (2519) 351 1205 (1079) (1029)
Gross deferred tax assets at December 31, 2024 R2024E12A3188
ElthEsEaE 3301 6843 10073 1834 835 2886
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December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are

REARERBEERABNESHMOT :

as follows: (continued) (#&)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHRESE
Depreciation Fair value
allowance adjustments
in excess arising from
of related Right-of-use acquisition of
depreciation assets subsidiaries Total
I W i Y R
e AREEMN
BERN DNREE
HEE &REEE A et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TRT ARTR AR%®TR AR®BT:R
At 1 January 2023 7202351 1R 2,360 10,502 = 12,862
Deferred tax credited to profit or ~ F AT ABZEH

loss during the year EFER A (646) (3,138) - (3,784)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at HR2023F 12 A31 B/

December 31, 2023 RETRIAR BHERE 1,714 7,364 = 9,078
Acquisition of a subsidiary i — B B A ) - = 1914 1914
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to  FRMRBIFT A/ (FIBR)HY

profit or loss during the year ERERE TR 307 (1,968) (1,079) (2,740)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 2024512 A31HK

December 31, 2024 REBIEB EERE 2,021 5,396 835 8,252



2024 #£4F | ANNUALREPORT 2024 | REFIRE

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are RENELEHBEERBENESHNOT -
as follows: (continued) (%)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued) EEBIEEE (F)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have BIERY  ETECEREEERABEER
been offset in the statement of financial position. The following is an MBIRRREE - M BREmMEARE
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial reporting RUEEFRIBAER AT ¢
purposes:
2023
20234F
RMB'000
ARETF T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the AR E BT IR R 2R A BERR Y
consolidated statement of financial position FERIEEEFE 12,919
Total st 12,919
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following WA TEE BRELERIBEEE :
items:
2023
20234F
RMB'000
AREBT T
Tax losses TIAEE 2,429,235
Deductible temporary differences AR R =5 661,798

Total st 3,091,033
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18.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB2,871,711,000 (2023: RMB2,429,235,000) that will expire in one to
ten years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time, and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which

the tax losses can be utilised.

19.INVENTORIES

18 ETERIE (45)

AEBMTMETRERNMELATRBEEEA
R#¥2,871,711,0007% (20234 : AR#
2,429,235,0007T) - EARMIEEEHRR —Z
TEER TRARNEHEBRERTAE
HRBEEREERE —BREMAN—HE
EBRNBAR  BEEBETAAAES
ARAERMNBEEENERRFDE - e
ERZEEEERAEEHIBEEAE -

1978
2024 2023
20244 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBT T

Raw materials R 197,404 175,710
Work in progress & 20,984 12,993
Finished goods Uk M 200,593 166,784
418,981 355,487

Less: provision for impairment B FEREBREE
losses on inventories (122,106) (115,615)
Total #Et 296,875 239,872
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January »1 AT BREREE 115,615 125,442
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BRI AR K (Fizke) 34,584 31,765
Amounts written off G feak: (28,093) (41,592)
Carrying amount at December 31 M12 831 HREREE 122,106 115,615
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19.INVENTORIES (continued)

At December 31, 2024, inventories were stated at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

During the year, the Group has written off impairment losses amounting
to RMB28,093,000 (2023: RMB41,592,000), mainly due to the fact that
certain hydrogen fuel cell systems with limited market presence were

scrapped or sold.

20.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI IR
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

19.7E (&)

R2024F 128318 » FERKAEA 37
FEMEFRNREETR -

FARN - AEEEMBRAEBRIARE
28,093,0007T (20234 : AR 41,592,000
) FEHRBENEEETMISMESR
PR B SRR B RETFTER o

20E 5 ERNRERBERFEEURK
BREE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT

Non-current: FERED ¢
Trade receivables (a) S REWFTE®) 275,040 417,537
Contract assets BHEE 20,000 31,380
295,040 448,917
Less: Impairment losses A ORERK (4,587) (14,199)
Subtotal INET 290,453 434,718
Current: mEp -
Trade receivables B S e ERIE 2,481,491 1,974,948
Commercial acceptance bills A LESR 84,402 25,258
Bank acceptance notes RITALIES 8,911 30,083
2,574,804 2,030,289
Less: Impairment losses o OREEKR (525,563) (446,894)
Subtotal NEF 2,049,241 1,583,395
Total HaET 2,339,694 2,018,113
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20.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain

strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control

department to minimise credit risk.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are

non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables, commercial
acceptance bills and contract assets, based on the past due

information and net of loss allowance, as at the end of the year is as

20 EZ BN ER BRREE UK
BRNEE (&

AEBEEEFNRZHEREZRRE -
BREFPHURERRERRE - AEEHK
DB IR G B R A RYGRIE - WREBER
ZHHFIAREREERRR -

AEEVEREEZRUKERBREE
R mR EAMERER - B 5B KA
Z:AE-+/%\ °

RER  AEBERBHER KMK
BREFENEZSRERIE BEAR
EERANEENREONAT

follows:
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Current BNER 1,160,525 1,137,834
Within 1 year 1A 730,293 519,188
1to 2 years 13824 281,027 128,430
2 to 3 years 2E3F 16,441 72,735
3 to 4 years 34 42,493 4,168
410 5 years 4Z 55 370 125,675
Over 5 years SELE 99,634 =
Total HEt 2,330,783 1,988,030
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20.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

The movements in the impairment losses on trade receivables,

commercial acceptance bills and contract assets are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI IR
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

20E S ENAREREREZEEUR
EHEE (&

BHREFIR BERLAEZRAN
BERBERINESHIT

2024 2023
20244 20235
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARBT T

At the beginning of the year REF] 461,093 400,140
Impairment losses recognised, net BERBEERIFE 69,057 60,953
At the end of the year RER 530,150 461,093

The Group's bills receivable aged within six months were not past
due. Bank acceptance bills that are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are considered as having very low

credit risk and the loss allowance is assessed to be minimal.

AR BN E A AR ER B B U R BRI R
B - mARBESARMEE RS
AEMRTALEZRNERRRER
ABIE  BEBRBRERIGALTE
* o
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The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs
for trade receivables, commercial acceptance bills and contract
assets. Trade receivable, commercial acceptance bills and contract
assets relating to customers not sharing similar credit risk with
others are assessed individually for impairment allowance, for
instance, customers with known financial difficulties or significant
doubt on collection. The remaining trade receivables, commercial
acceptance bills and contract assets are grouped and collectively
assessed for impairment allowance. Under the collective approach,
an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on past due information for grouping of
customers that have similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than five years and are not subject
to enforcement activity. During 2024, the increase in impairment
losses on trade receivables, commercial acceptance bills and
contract assets was mainly due to the rise in the expected loss

provision matrix along with the ageing migration.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group's trade receivables, commercial acceptance bills and

contract assets using a provision matrix:

AEBEFEEZSRERE  BEA
AEZERANEENEREEBER
RABEDE - BEMEPEELE
RREBNRF (MNTFE S X R 2 sk
WRFHEEAFRNEF)EENES
IR  BEAREZERENEE
SETERNGRERE HHES
IR BEAREZERGNEE
FTUADEWETHEAFTEREREE
REBHESE  REREBHRBEE
EEETRENN UAEEHEE
BiE - BEXRDERAEERLBAR
ANBEPERNBIMERGE - %&t
BERUMEEMELER  BERHEER
RBEEMASHNERBESRMH &
AIAR I BOR RGN TER R IER
BRER - —RME - EHREEFR
EEHEE R FR T IAMBEE TR
BTTIRBPTARIR - 20245 - B 5
EWFHIE BEAREZERGNEE
BEBKENEEEMRNEREER
AR RE E ARE B AT L7t

TREIIERBBEEFENAEE
BHREKFIE  BEALERRAHK
BERBRNEARRER
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20.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

(@) Non-current trade receivables represented receivables
from customers who signed contracts with a credit

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R BT 5
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

20E S ENAREREREZEEUR
BHEE (&)

@) FRBEZRUWRIBEARKE
BB 1VFHNETNEFHNRK

period of more than 1 year. (continued) I8 o (48)
Within 1 1to2 2t03 3to4 4t05 Over5
Current year years years years years years Total
i 15h 122F 183% 3B4E 4E5E SENE h)
As at December 31, 2024 R2024E12A318
On collective basis BHARE:
Expected credit loss rate L b 1.44% 8.03% 17.63% 39.37% 55.11% 8598%  100.00% 8.47%
Gross caying amount (AMB00))  EREAE(ARETT) 1,177,447 794,039 341,166 27,119 94,660 2,639 638 2,437,708
Expected credit osses (RMBO00) ~ BEEEBR(ARETT) 16,922 63,746 60,139 10,678 52,167 2,269 638 206,559
On indlvidual basis KEEEE:
Expected credit loss rate BHEERRER 76.46%
Gross carrying amount (AMB00))  ERELE(ARETT) 423225
Expected credit losses (MBO00) ~ BEEEBB(ARETT) 323,591
Within 1 1102 203 3t04 4105 QOver 5
Current year years years years years years Total
il 15/ 1315 1E3E IB4E 4B SENE Bt

As at December 31,2023 120235128310
On collective basis KHAEE:
Expected credit loss rate BREERRER 206% 6.5%% 13.56% 3546% 56.99% 5981% 10000% 1365%
Gross carrying amount (RMB000)  BRTIAE(ARETTL) 1161778 555,826 148573 112699 969 312,700 %0 2302216
Expected credit losses (RMBO00) ~ BEEEBB(ARETT) 23,944 36,638 04 39964 552 187025 950 314186
On indlividial basis: GERERE:
Expected credit loss rate L b 10000%
Gross carrying amount (AMB00))  EREAE(ARETT) 146,907
Expected credit losses (RMB000) ~ BHEEEE (ARETT) 146,907
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OTHER ASSETS

21.PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

21. 7N FIE - HEKRRERE

fthEE

2024 2023
20245 2023%F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
bz AR%T T AREBTT
Current: mE :
Prepayment for government subsidies TR #76 AL TR K (@) 46,512 113,100
Deposits e 90,108 88,657
Prepayments to suppliers I £ P& 7 2 P R TR AT R 65,772 60,444
Other tax recoverable H e Y B B 18 24,971 17,812
Prepaid expenses ERNERA 16,775 16,346
Listing expenditures Baliilcib-a - 3,893
Due from related parties e BR S 75 3B = 642
Advances to employees )& B IR AR 289 301
244,427 301,195
Impairment allowance RER (4,402) (4,927)
Subtotal NEt 240,025 296,268
Non-current: FETRE
Other tax recoverable o th AT Uk [B1 75 18 24,076 13,285
Prepayments for long-term assets REFEETENR 33,295 54,607
Subtotal INET 57,371 67,892
Total 3 297,396 364,160

(@)  Entitled by the Group's customers, i.e., hydrogen fuel cell commercial vehicle
manufacturers, the Group has applied for certain subsidies on the customers’
behalf with local government. As at December 31, 2024, the Group obtained
approval from local government but only received a portion of the amounts
on the customers' behalf. Considering the friendly cooperation relationship
with these customers, the Group paid the entire subsidies of RMB46,512,000

(2023: RMB113,100,000) to its customers in December 2024.

An impairment analysis is performed at the end of the year. Impairment
allowance for deposits and amounts due from related parties was mainly due

to the uncollectability of these receivables as at December 31, 2024.

@) EAEERFE (MEREE0EmmERER)
B AEBEAREFAEWBFREET
B o R2024% 128318 » AEBEREE
WL E - BEREFREIZSOHE - =
BHEZERFNRITAERE  AEER
2024F N2 AMERPZNE2HHEMRAR
#46,512,0007T (20234 : AR¥113,100,000

JT) °

RERETTREDN - K2024F 128318
HRe REWERE T SRR ERETE
NS BUGRIARN T A Y@ AR
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22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R YT
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

RBAREBEFABRENEHME

PROFIT OR LOSS =3
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBEF T
Current: mEp -
Listed equity investments, at fair value ETRERE - B 2 91,035 =
Non-current: JEmED ¢
Private equity funds LEREES 89,165 44,401
Total #Et 180,200 44,401

The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

23.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH

PRABRERERBRRRBAABE AR
HNEREE  RREFERS

o

BREFRRESEYRZIREIR

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R AR¥ETT

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELFED 883,356 664,510
Restricted cash SRR HIEE & 49 746
Total #Et 883,405 665,256

At the end of the year, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounting to RMB49,000 (2023:
RMB746,000), were pledged to banks as collateral for issuance of bank
acceptance notes. The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other

currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RER  AEEUARE ([ARE])HE
#I3R & RIRITHER B A R 49,0007T (2023
F: AR¥746,0007T) - EER TIRITIER
BFRROALEZNERY - ARBRA
BERLBREEMES  Af - BRERERX
I # SN B IR {15 A R S5 BE - BB R A EE
ERRT  AEEEERBSIELEN
MRS RIRITIEARE IR H B -
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An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the

year, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RERBFENAARENREERNER
B HRBRER AT T

2023

20234

RMB'000

ARBTT

Within 1 year 1A 447319
1to 2 years 1824 113,317
2 to 3 years 2E3F 25,801
Over 3 years 3EM 64,304
Total #EtT 650,741

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
within 30 to 180 days upon receipt of the VAT invoice. Certain suppliers

made part of the final payment within 24 months.

The Group entered into supplier finance arrangements with Xi‘an
Jingchan Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. ("Xi'an Jingchan”), Cloudchain
Group Co., Ltd. (“Cloudchain”), and CCB Supply Chain Finance Co.,
Ltd. ("CCB Supply Chain"), together as the “factoring companies”. 1)
Pursuant to the agreements, Xi'an Jingchan provided a total credit
limit up to RMB200,000,000 for factoring the accounts receivable of
the Group's suppliers. To secure the Group's payment obligations,
the Group provided a deposit of RMB60,000,000 to Xi‘an Jingchan. 2)
Cloudchain provided a total credit limit up to RMB50,000,000 from Bank
of Communications Co., Ltd., RMB20,000,000 from Bank of Shanghai Co.,
Ltd. and RMB100,000,000 from Agricultural Bank of China. 3) CCB Supply
Chain provided a total credit limit up to RMB20,000,000 from China
Construction Bank Co., Ltd.

ZoRNZFBARE  —RRIREEET
BEERI0E180RANBEE - BT HEmEMN 24
BARZEBRER °

AEFEATREREREERAR (AR
KED  PLEREBRHARAG((HPLE
#EREZERBAREEAR ([2E/B))
(ZBIMREBAR DM EEEIRMELHE -
DIREZERE  AXCERREAEE M
FEENREKETRECEAEERSARE
200,000,0007C ° AERANEBONRES -
AEERAZEERHFARE600000007T
WRER - )P EEHBBATABRITRNAE
R aEiedt&m ARS50,000,0007T « £F
HRITHRD B R A RIR #t AR %20,000,0007T
EABRERITROBERARIREHRARE
100,000,000 TCHY42(5 FBEE © 3) (= plimiA
BRBEZRRITRODERAFTNREESAR
520,000,000 T HI 4B (= FAZEE ©



2024 #£4F | ANNUALREPORT 2024 | REFIRE

Under these supplier finance arrangements, the Group's suppliers can
elect to have their undue accounts receivables from the Group factored
by the factoring companies. Upon the Group's approval, the suppliers
will sign accounts receivable transfer agreements with the factoring
companies, whereby their corresponding accounts receivable transfer
from the Group to the factoring companies. The factoring companies
will pay the suppliers directly for the factored receivable. The Group will
subsequently make payments to the factoring companies to settle the

factored accounts receivable.

Carrying amount of financial liabilities that are
part of the supplier finance arrangements
included in:

Trade and bills payables of which suppliers

have received payments

From the perspective of the Group, the supplier finance arrangements
effect a non-cash movement of the reclassification from payables to
suppliers to payables to the factoring companies. As at December
31, 2024, Xi'an Jingchan, Cloudchain and CCB Supply Chain had paid
factoring financing funds amounting to RMB45,375,000, RMB82,761,000
and RMB16,125,000, respectively.

REEERERE oM
ERBERTETA

HEFHEWRFIENE S
JEASF R OE R PR R R

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

REZEHERBELH  TAEENHE
BAEERREARREEERAKEEDN
REHERR - BRAKEHIER - HES
15 BLORIE R R ZR R B R RE R T - 1B
- EEENERERAAEEEE TR
BERE - REARBEERARERMR
B ARR » REBBER A R RIE QR
FUAE BRI EULARSK

2023
20234
RMB'000
AREFTT

16,337

RAEBAEMS  HEAMERHEER
EREEEREET S B AEMRIEAR
FIERIERSEB) - R2024F12H318 -
ALRKE  PEERRZERBS B
REMERARKE453750007T « AR
82,761,000 & A R#16,125,0007T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R MY EE
December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

25.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HittENRIE R ESTE A
2024 20233
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBT T

Payroll and welfare payable FERT & Rtz F) 52,698 40,295
Other tax payables H b fEIBIIE 3,714 27,839
Government grants IR #6 Bh 67,878 26,360
Collection on behalf of others UK @ - 28,628
Listing expenditures payable e - 11,624
Due to related parties FETRAESE 5 BOR 50 =
Others Hit 15,988 6,569
Total st 140,328 141,315
(@) Entitled by the Group’s customers, i.e., hydrogen fuel cell commercial vehicle @) EREERE (BIEMKEhrgAERERN)

manufacturers, the Group has applied for certain subsidies on the customers' B AEBERRPMEMBTRES T

behalf with local government. At December 31, 2024, the Group obtained AL > P2024F12A31H » REBERSE M

approval from local government but only received a portion of the amounts BUS#tE - BERRPKRRIEHHIE - £58

on the customers’ behalf, amounting to nil (2023: RMB28,628,000). BZE(20234F : AR#28,628,0007T) ©
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26.CONTRACT LIABILITIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R YT
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARBT T

Non-current: FERED ¢
Others EHAth 15,154 13,841
Current: mEp
Hydrogen fuel cell systems QIRKLE MR 10,580 7,707
Components ZEB 1,125 1,762
Hydrogen fuel cell engineering and SRR T2 5A 3 AR 75

technical services 2,220 263
Others Eh 8,603 3,008
Subtotal g 22,528 12,740
Total #5 37,682 26,581

Contract liabilities represented advances received to deliver products

and services.

BRBERMRNER MRS MU E B
Wk
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R MY EE
December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

27.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 27. 5T ESBITREMER
BORROWINGS
2024
20244
Effective

interest rate

(%) Maturity RMB’000
BERIE
(%) Ep= AR%T
Current RED
Bank loans — unsecured RITER—BER 2.8-4.15 2025 364,467
2025F
Current portion of long-term RERITE R 2.9-4.2 2025 281,726
bank loans - unsecured MENER Y — EER 20254
Current portion of long-term RERITERH 3.6 2025 8,084
bank loans - secured mENE D — B IR 20255
Current portion of long-term REAH AR 4 2025 45,779
other borrowings — sale leaseback mENEk sy — Sz B 20254
~ secured —BER
Current portion of long-term other REAH AR 4 2025 93,454
borrowings — unsecured MENER Y — EHELR 2025
Current portion of long-term other REFEAbfE KA 4.2 2025 260,724
borrowings — secured mENER D — B R 2025
Subtotal — current NEF— R ED 1,054,234
Non-current SR E
Bank loans — unsecured RITER— \ER 2.9-4.2 2026-2027 409,850
2026 F 20275
Bank loans — secured RITER - B ER 3.6 2029 62,000
2029F
Other borrowings - sale leaseback Hinfg R — S EHE 4 2026 32,926
- secured —BER 2026 F
Subtotal - non-current NET—FERED 504,776
Total et 1,559,010
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2023
2023%F
Effective
Interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000
BRI =
(%) FEAR AREBTT
Current RE
Bank loans — unsecured IRITER — EER 3.1-345 2024 36,840
2024%F
Current portion of long-term RERITE R 2.9-4.55 2024 192,032
bank loans - unsecured mENEL S — R 20244
Current portion of long-term RHIRTTERMN 435 2024 20,095
bank loans — secured nEH D — BER 20244
Current portion of long-term RAEFH M ERD 4 2024 41,476
other borrowings — sale leaseback mENEs — E'EMA 20245
~ secured —BHER
Current portion of long-term RAEFH M ERH 42 2024 180,000
other borrowings — secured mENE Y — B HER 20245
Subtotal - current NEE— R ED 470,443
Non-current R ED
Bank loans — unsecured RITER— E|ER 2.9-4.55 2025-2026 469,900
2025F B 20265
Bank loans - secured RITER—BER 4.5 2025-2029 57,500
2025F 220294
Other borrowings — sale leaseback Efnfg R — &% EHE 4 2026 82,840
- secured —BER 20264
Other borrowings — secured HbfE R — B TR 42 2025 222,785
2025%F
Subtotal — non-current NEF— IR ED 833,025
Total et 1,303,468
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2023
20234
RMB'000
AREBTT
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: FEEBIRITER
Within one year —&FR 248,967
In the second year F_F 321,400
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-ZRF (BEEEMTF) 203,500
Beyond five years AFLAE 2,500
Subtotal g 776,367
Other borrowings repayable: FEEEHMER
Within one year —FRN 221,476
In the second year F_F 264,205
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-ZRF (BEEEMRTF) 41,420
Subtotal /g 527,101
Total #3 1,303,468

Certain of the Group's bank loans are secured by:

(a) the Group's property, plant and equipment with an aggregate

carrying amount of approximately RMB66,406,000 (2023:

RMB61,648,000) (note 13).

(b) the Group's right-of-use assets with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMB20,776,000 (2023: RMB21,194,000) (note 14).

(c) machinery with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB118,041,000 (2023: RMB138,522,000) which was subject to sale

and leaseback business with Taiping & Sinopec Financial Leasing

Co., Ltd. (note 13).

The Group pledged the equity interests in a subsidiary as collateral to

equity investment companies, as disclosed in note 1.

REBNE TRITEFA TS EEER

(a) ANEBEEmAELN A AR 66,406,000
TC (20234 + AR¥561,648,0007T) B9
¥ B KRB (HE13) -

by ANEEEREARELNAARY20,776,000
70 (20234 : AR#21,194,0007T ) (&
BEEE (K3E14) -

(0 BREBELHAARKE118,041,0007T
(20234 : AR#¥138,522,0007T ) Ay #
ROAEKEBENERNTA(cemE
EFREARFNERBIMEERS (T
13) °

WM FTRE - ARERR —RMHE AR
MEESERRER TRERERR]
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In June 2024, one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Shanghai PANDO, obtained
RMB10,000,000 capital investment from an independent investor (the
“Shareholder”). The key terms of the preferred rights granted to the
investor are summarised as follows: Upon occurrence of the following
events, the capital investment shall be redeemable at the option of the
Shareholder: 1) Shanghai PANDO fails to achieve a Qualified Initial Public
Offering (“Qualified IPO") by December 31, 2027; 2) The Group stops
providing liquidity support to Shanghai PANDO.

The redemption amount is calculated as the higher of (i) the original
investment principal from the investor, plus an annual rate of 8% of the
original investment principal for a period of time commencing from
the date when the investor pay the capital increase price to Shanghai
PANDO to the date when the investor receives the full repurchase price
paid by the repurchase obligor (calculated as 365 days in a calendar
year), net of the cash dividends already received; (ii) the audited net
assets of the company at the time of the investor's repurchase request

(consolidated basis) multiplied by the investor's shareholding ratio.

The redemption rights granted to the investor constitute as Shanghai
PANDOQ's obligations to repurchase its own equity instruments. This
obligation was recognised as redemption liabilities which are initially
measured at fair value (representing the present value of the expected
cash flows for settling the related obligations if these rights are
exercised by the investors) and subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Shanghai PANDO applied a redemption discount rate of 8% to

determine the initial recognition amount of the redemption liabilities.

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

R2024F6 A - AEENEFT—KKTEB AR
FELHES—FBUREE ([ZBRE])
HERIEEAR10,000,0007C « BT &
BEMELENEZHRIBMET - BRI
TEHEER  ZRERZERLRERE
B ) EBEEHN2027F12 A31 BRIARTK
BEBERAREE ([AERBRAHE
£]) )REEELR EFLHREREE
B XIF o

BERSBERUNTREEE - (VREENR
WIREAS  MEBRERRALSEHX
MEEERZ ARERE R WL EEL
AZTE 2 EEER (FIBRERERAES
RE)zBIEHE (E—EEF365K51E)
RIGIRE RS8N FHE : (NN EEIR
PEEZRHARBANEEZFEE (K6
ER)FRAREENIFRELE o

BRTREENBOEBK LEEHOER
B LTANEE ZEETERASED
BE BOaEVSRAREE(MZER
NEREETE  AEEERREEINE
SRS RERE)FE - HERREHKAG
- FEEHRAsWNBEEITRXETE
BaENTRERTEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R MY EE
December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

28.REDEMPTION LIABILITIES OF A SUBSIDIARY 28.—RMBAGINERERE (£)
(continued)
The movements in the redemption liabilities of a subsidiary are set out —RWBATINER G EESHI|WT -
as follows:
2024
20244
RMB’000
AR®F T
At 1 January 2024 M2024F1 A1H =
Recognition 2 10,000
Charged to finance costs (Note 7) B Y% E Rk (FH5E7) 425
At December 31, 2024 202412 A31H 10,425
29.DEFERRED INCOME 29 R FEW A
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ETR ARBT T

Non-current: ERE

Government grants AT B
Asset-related grants (a) & EMBEE ) 45,890 54,084
Reimbursement of future expenses (b) RRFZFE (D) - 4,200

45,890 58,284

Current: e -

Government grants AT %8B 802 963
Reimbursement of future expenses (b) RIRFAZHE D)

Total a5t 46,692 59,247
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R YT
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

29.DEFERRED INCOME (continued) 29.EEW A (45)
(@) Asset-related grants (@) AEMBMEFB)

BEERRAEDREBNERBRNERASEY
% BB RARIBROTHRS o

The asset-related grants were the subsidies received from the government in
relation to the Group's property, plant and equipment.

(b) Reimbursement of future expenses (b) REMAZMEE

e R R IR BE X # (B RO BT 47 B AR MR ER B 5 A
ARERERIRFE BB AL

Government grants as reimbursement of future expenses were subsidies
received in relation to the Group's future research and development

activities.
30.PROVISION 30. 13 4E
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR AR¥ETT

Non-current JERED

Product warranties (a) EmRIE () 20,639 21,219
Current mED

Product warranties (a) EmREQ) 20,888 21,080
Total #Et 41,527 42,299

(@) Product warranties

Provision was made for estimated warranty claims in respect of products
sold which were still under warranty at the end of the year. These claims are
normally expected to be settled according to the terms of sales contracts.

@@ EmRE

RERDENREBAND EERDBEHR
EREHRRE - BREEBZSRERRE
HEAKNMEREE -
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2023
20234
RMB'000
ARETTT
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER

Share capital %N 81,311

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows: ARE ARG BEAT
Number of Share
shares in issue capital
ERTROBE [
RMB’000
AR%T T
At 1 January 2023 720231 H1H 81,311,371 81,311
At December 31, 2023 and 1 January 2024 M2023F 12 A31H %2024 1 A1H 81,311,371 81,311
Issue of new shares (a) BAITHR () 4,827,920 4828
At December 31, 2024 2024512 A31H 86,139,291 86,139

()

On 6 December 2024, the Company issued 4,827,920 shares through Initial
Public Offering at the price of HKD147.00 per ordinary share, whose share
capital has been fully paid in cash of approximately RMB4,827,920 on the

same date.

(@) M2024F12H6RH > ARBBBEXAHA
BERTRLBR147.008 THERET
4,827,920 181 - RATIRAERE B LAR
SHAREEL827,920TTHE ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R YT
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

32.SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 2. B EE R
Expenses arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions R EENURDAEBHNRR SE
were as follows: ERREL T -
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Share Incentive Schemes (a) i1 B ET &l (2) 115,632 87,066
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (b) BR AR E R ERERT (D) 223,810 =
Share Incentive Schemes over a subsidiary’s —RWERBIIGD

shares (c) B tn Rt &l (o) 391 =

Total st 339,833 87,066

Share-based payment expenses relating to employees recognised for FAEANEEE BB ARN BERH
the year are as follows: NEFFAZIT

2024 2023

2024F 2023

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBETT

Administrative expenses TR 207,138 61,483
Research and development expenses R 75,561 20,085
Selling expenses HERX 54,517 3,565
Cost of sales HEKE 2,617 1,933

Total a5t 339,833 87,066
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To provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the Group's operation, the actual controller of
the Company, Mr. Lin, Qi, designed and established several
employee shareholding platforms for the Company to operate
a series of employee incentive schemes (the “the Schemes”).
Eligible participants of the Schemes, including members of senior
management, mid-level managers and other employees of the
Group, were determined by the actual controller and approved by
the Company through board resolutions. The Actual Controller of
the Company acted as the general partner of these platforms, and
had the right to determine the eligible participants, vesting criteria,
and was obliged to repurchase the shares of the resigned eligible
participants at subscription prices and then reallocate these shares

to other eligible participants.

On March 17,2017, May 30, 2019, December 24, 2020, April 27, 2023
and 21 January 2024, 1,200,000 shares, 1,673,797 shares, 296,000
shares, 1,087,285 shares and 1,035,206 shares of the Company were
granted to eligible participants through the employee shareholding
platforms of the Schemes at subscription prices of RMB1.00 per
share, RMB9.13 per share, RMB2.65 per share, RMB33.64 per share
and RMB33.64 per share, respectively. The grant date fair values
of the shares of the Share Incentive Schemes were RMB16.67 per
share, RMB41.06 per share, RMB80.27 per share and RMB133.55 per
share, which were determined based on investors' recent capital
injection price, and RMB140.36 per share, which was determined
based on independent valuation, respectively. The difference
between the fair value of the shares granted and the subscription
price was recorded in the share-based payment reserve within
equity with the corresponding “share-based payment expenses” in

profit or loss.

SEBRERMEARERLEEHAER
MAaBER2EE  KNARERZES A
MEEERBARB R RRILT Z @
BTIHKFE  REE-RIBTH
B8 (TErE)) - SHEMAERS A
E(PREAEENSREREAE -HE
EEABNMEMER)HERZEH AR
EUHAARRBBESTERERLL
e ARBEREFAELZETS
VEBEBA ERATAENRZHE
E RERE UBEHRABBER
CEEHETRERSEBENRD  BF
ZEBNDEFOETEMEERZ A
E

2017938178 » 2019F 58308 -
2020%F12H248 - 2023F4R8278 &
202451 A21 R - BB EIME THR
FTAMAEERL2HEESFREARRF
1,200,000 B& 1% ~ 1,673,797 RAX (D
296,000 A& 1D ~ 1,087,285 B A% 1D &
1,035,206/ 5 - REERERARE
1.007C * BRARM9.137T - ERAR
#2657 - BRARB33. 64T RER
ARM336470 c BB EEZLEEE
B ERRD BB EROEL A
HOAABEIIABRARK 1667
T BRARE41.067T F BRARE
8027 T R FR AR 133.557T IR
B EEENEBRARKE 140367
ERERNNANEEHEARBEE ZME
B ERERER NG AEE R
EEARR - MABEA [ ARG AERE
RNEFAZ AR B AR -
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The shares held by the employee shareholding platforms of the
Share Incentive Schemes will be vested at the date of successful
listing of the shares of the Company. Therefore, service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of equity
instruments that are expected to vest. The vesting period will be
reviewed and determined by management and the related expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is from the date of

grant to the expected listing date.

Movements in the number of equity interests shares granted and
the respective weighted average grant date fair values were as

follows:

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

Bt B Et Bl e) B THFARF & Fris ik
MBERARBBROKIN ETERER
B o Rt - RFB GRS EEIA R
BHEDTAHENRRT - BEH
HHEEEEZMEE - MAAMRMX
REBH(AEREANEEEM LT
H AL ) ARERR o

B IR 4 55 A% 10 B8 A KR AR 8 0 F
BROBMAABENEENT

2023
20234F

Weighted

average
grant date Number of
fair value shares

19

B H
NREE i tn 8B

RMB

per share

ik

AR¥TT

At January 1
Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year

®W1A1H
FREH
F AR

39.35
133.55
34.03

4,769,195
1,087,285
(31,928)

At December 31

M12A31E

56.96

5,824,552
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The Group adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the purpose
of which is to recognise employees’ contribution to the Group. As
at 21 January 2024, the Group granted options under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme to 155 grantees, including directors, senior
management of the Company and other employees of the Group,
to subscribe 5,267,800 shares. The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is

valid and effective for 6 years from the grant date.

The exercise price of all the granted options is RMB33.64 per
ordinary share. 50% and 50% of the shares subject to the options
shall vest at the last trading day of H share within 12 months and
the last trading day of H share within 24 months of the vesting
commencement date upon the fulfilment of the targets, being
the revenue increasing by 20% in 2023 and 2024, respectively. The
vesting commencement date shall be the later of 12 months after
the grant and the listing date of the public offering. The options

may not be exercised until they vest.

There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group does not
have a past practice of cash settlement for these share options. The

Group accounts for the Scheme as an equity-settled plan.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to

vote at shareholders’ meetings.

RNEERME R AR EATBRE
2 EEREEBEHASEMNER -
M2024F1 218 - REBRBEEHKX
ANFRBERERES &M 155 B EE
A(BIEARRES - %‘#&%ﬁ/\é&
REBHEMES)F L BRE - TRBE
5,267,800i8 i1 - BIRARBE ﬁu,ﬁﬁﬂx
TR E T B BB F A -

FBEEELERENTEELHAETR
LB AR 33.647T - BEARERT PR
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The following share options were outstanding under the Pre-IPO

Share Option Scheme during the year:

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

FRABRARBEENBRETZET
HARTTEAEBAENT -

2024
202445
Weighted
average Number of

exercise price share options

R I9ITEE BRERE

RMB

per share

BRARET
At January 1 ®1A1R = =
Granted during the year FRKRE 33.64 5,267,800
Forfeited during the year* F PR U 33.64 (2,972,144)
At December 31 »12H31H 33.64 2,295,656

* After taking into consideration of the best estimation of the above
service requirements and performance conditions, the management
determined the forfeited amounts of the relevant Share Option.

The fair value of the share options granted on 21 January 2024 was
RMB531,152,000 (RMB107.80 each), of which the Group recognised
a share option expense of RMB223,810,000 during the year 2024
based on the Group's best estimate of the number of equity

instruments that will ultimately vest.

The fair value of share options granted was estimated as at the date
of grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The following

table lists the inputs to the model used:

AT e bt BR A AR TE M A UG Y AR (A
% BEEEETAERBREDRKEHE -

202451 A21 BEREERENA R
BEABARES31,152,0007T (BB AEA
R¥107.807T) » ERAKBEREHE
BREKTHEBROER TARENKE
HET R 2024 FHERBREMI AR
223,810,0007T °

ERLBRENRIABEINEEA
HER -—BARLMGME  ETEZE
B 8 RO B 18R B 1R - TRERD
FTAREL A (E
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2024

2024 %

Dividend yield (%) % B 5 2R (%) =
Expected volatility (%) T8 HR O 18 (%) 42.63-50.87
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 [ i F1) 3R (%) 2.08-2.28
Expected life of options (year) FERRETERTEHA (F) 2-3
Weighted average share price (RMB per share) MEFHRE (BRARKET) 14036

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. No
other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the

measurement of fair value.

On October 2024, the company transfers 2,500,000 shares of equity
in Shanghai PANDO (“the subsidiary”) to the established employee
shareholding platform at a price of RMB2,500,000 to provide
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who have made
contributions to the subsidiary’s operation, The shares held by the
employee shareholding platform of the Share Incentive Schemes
will be vested at the date of successful listing of the shares of the

subsidiary.

BRERFFRLIERBE=ZFNE
SBBFESL  RURBRATEERLE
BTRERE o FTREDRIERBR T 20K
BIETARRBENERE  KRLEKR
ERER - SHEARBERHREIA
ERLBRENEMEE -

R2024F 108 RAFUARE
2,500,000 LY B AR5 & /82 F) ([ B
B AR ) BRHEFT2,500,000 8815+ LA
BRUBIHRTES - HWRE &IEE
HBARKEELERMNAEERS
HE - ROHBEENHEIFRTES
Fri B #5 A B B 2 IR D AR T £ 7
EHRE -
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Movements in the number of equity interests shares granted and

the respective weighted average grant date fair value were as

follows:

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

B 5 R 1) B DA S AR B A T
BROBMRABENEENT

2024

20245

Weighted
average

exercise price

Number of

share options

INEEF T EE BREHAE

RMB

per share

BRARYT
At January 1 ®m1A1H - -
Granted during the year FARH 6.00 2,500,000
Forfeited during the year FRHRIK 6.00 =
At December 31, ®12H318 6.00 2,500,000
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REBNGBESEREERANEE RBE
FEMNEBHEINNMBMERE 14421468
IREETEEHR -

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity on pages 144 to 146 of the financial statements.

The share premium and other reserve of the Group mainly
represents the premium in issuing shares and the premium in

acquisition of non-controlling interest.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Group which are domestic enterprises are
required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the relevant PRC accounting standards, to their
respective statutory surplus reserves until the reserves reach 50% of
their respective registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set
out in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the statutory surplus
reserve may be converted to share capital, provided that the
remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of

the registered capital.

The exchange fluctuation reserve represents exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations whose functional currencies are different from the

g .
Group's presentation currency.

The share-based payment reserve represents the equity-settled

share awards as set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

AEBENBRDEEREMEEERE
BT B B R SR B s

g o

RBC(PEREER) - AERBERE TH
B (RRARE)ABREHERT
Hest A EEEBENEN10%E
BREEZRBNETRESKRE BEEX
fEEEEESBEEMERTS0%  RIT
(REIRBNE) #INETRS - &0
FEERBBEABRASERAE  ERE
LR FIBRAE R T DR EME AR
25% °

SMNER B EHIEMEI R ER B RN
A& E 25518 E T 80 B 7%
RFFELZELER -

AR RER N R E IR RE
B FE 32 ATk A M B A L B AR ) 22
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33.RESERVES (continued)

According to relevant PRC regulations, transfer of production

and maintenance funds at fixed rates based on relevant bases

to a specific reserve account is required. The production and

maintenance funds could be utilised when expenses or capital

expenditures on production maintenance and safety measures are

incurred. The amount of production and maintenance funds utilised

would be transferred from the specific reserve account to retained

earnings.

34.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R YT
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

33.17%1E (&)

REBFFEBBRERNRE  #HNE

EESTRBEETHMRE - #HK
HEES ARG REER AR
MERREATHELRER - 28
AneBREEESSAERREEYS

EELTER

/8 2 7]

MEEEAFEREZNHEE

AEEBFEERFEREENMB ARG

interests are set out below: BEEFIWT -
2024 2023
20244 20234
Percentage of equity interest held by VIR 2 R A M AR EL 1 -
non-controlling interests:
Shanghai Unilia Badishch s 19.10% 19.10%
Foshan Diyi 311 38— 45.00% 45.00%
2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETTT
Loss for the year allocated to DI EFEEARE R A
non-controlling interests: FANEE :
Shanghai Unilia LBEE (9,173) (26,107)
Foshan Diyi 1L — (3,838) (3,461)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling RS B EFEEREER
interests at the reporting date: e
Shanghai Unilia LEE=E (104,813) (99,488)
Foshan Diyi B1ldE— 28,484 32,540
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34.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any

inter-company eliminations:

BABEEERFERERNFLE
YR8 ()
2R I A 0 B R R B
FRBeBEATAARMMHZ NS -

Shanghai Unilia Foshan Diyi
tiEEE #1138 —
2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 20234 20244 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT AERETR AR%TR
Revenue WA 150,170 289,646 50,307 -
Total cost and expenses BN K S 48 58 (198,196) (426,330) (58,835) (7.691)
Income tax expense FrsFifM = - - - =
Total comprehensive income ZHEREREE (48,026) (136,684) (8,528) (7,691)
Current assets MENEE 99,321 250,621 68,521 74,838
Non-current assets IEREEE 107,831 113,631 379 480
Current liabilities nEAaE (641,928) (778,202) (5,602) (3,008)
Non-current liabilities EmEBIE (13,983) (6,930) = =
(448,759) (420,880) 63,298 72,310
Net cash flows from/(used in) wEES TS, (FTA)
operating activities REREFRE 80,917 (374,219) (57,856) (6,028)
Net cash flows from/(used in) wEESE(FTA)
investing activities REeREFHE 31,583 (45,711) (9) (231)
Net cash flows (used in)/from BEEE (FrA),/
financing activities FriglenE #58 (126,623) 426,571 - 44,000
Net increase/(decrease) W& RIS EEYIEM
in cash and cash equivalents CR) 558 (14,123) 6,641 (57,865) 37,741
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On 31 January 2024, the Group acquired 70% equity interests in
Jiaging (Shanghai) Industrial Co., Ltd., an unlisted company from two
independent third parties. Jiaging (Shanghai) Industrial Co., Ltd. is
engaged in operating a hydrogenation station. The acquisition was
made as part of the Group's strategy to expand business in operating the
hydrogenation station. The purchase consideration for the acquisition
was in the form of cash, with RMB6,300,000 paid on 31 January 2024.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Jiaging

(Shanghai) Industrial Co., Ltd. as at the date of acquisition were as

December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

20241 A31H - ARERMEBEIE=
FUREIELETRAZEE(LE)EEARA
AIM70%MHE - TR (LB BEXBERARR
ENMEHEE  c WEFEDAEEBES
HEZNEHELERBN—Ho - WES
EMBEEREEARSER - 1202451 A
31 BZ A AR#6,300,0007T ©

FR (LB EBEXARARNKE R
BRIBENMBEBEHAAEERAT

follows:

Fair value

recognised on

Notes acquisition

RUBRRERN

B AREE

RMB’000

AR®T T

Property, plant and equipment YIE - R KRB 13 7,833

Other intangible assets HEthmpEE 15 4,666

Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHER 2,114

Trade receivables B 5 e GRIA 558

Inventories EE 4

Prepayments and other receivables TE AT FRIE Fo H Al pE YRR IE 10

Trade payables B SRR (1,271)

Accruals and other payables FEET B A R H fth B A< RIE (4.914)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARBEFENIHIFEERTE 9,000
Fair value of investments in the associate B AR ANREE RARN

held before business combinations "ENAREE 2,700

Satisfied by cash LAIR & s 1+ 6,300
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The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables as at
the date of acquisition amounted to RMB558,000 and RMB10,000,
respectively. The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables and
other receivables were RMB560,000 and RMB10,000, respectively.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary

RUEE B ER - B 5 e WK I H i B UK
B RAREES R AARES580007TRA
R#10,0007T © B 5 FEHRIE K H fh JE WK
HHE KBS Rl R ARB560,0007T kA
R#10,0007T °

HRUBE—FKHBARNRSRESTAT :

is as follows:
RMB’000
ARBT T
Cash consideration RERE (6,300)
Cash and bank balances acquired FrisigiR & RIRTT 454 2,114
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AFARERSAMSHRESERAENE SR
included in cash flows from investing activities REZEYRLFHE (4,186)

Since the acquisition, Jiaging (Shanghai) Industrial Co., Ltd. contributed
RMB129,000 to the Group's revenue and RMB430,000 to the consolidated
loss for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the period,
the revenue of the Group and the loss of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2024 would have been RMB723,790,000 and
RMB738,537,000, respectively.

BURENR 2@ (EB)EBEXERDFRN
HE204F12A31BLEFEATEE TR
WAARY129,000 T REEBRARE
430,0007T °

MEHREEST  AEBEHE2024F12
A3TEBLEFENRAREBEBDIABAR
#723,790,0007T & A K #738,537,0007T °
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During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets RMB1,586,000 (2023: nil) and lease liabilities of RMB1,585,000

(2023: nil), in respect of lease arrangements for plant and

equipment.

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

RERN - NEEHEEEBRE RELE
WHELHNEREEERTEEAE
RIERSARE DB AARYE1,586,000
7L (20235 : E) R AR 1,585,0007T
(2023 : &) »

Interest-bearing
bank and other

borrowings Lease liabilities Total
FTRBTR
Hi AR HEAE #mEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AR¥T T ARBT T
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1 A1H 998,170 76,386 1,074,556
Changes from financing BERSREE
cash flows 261,925 (19,195) 242,730
Gain arising from lease term HEBRIEEE R
termination - (340) (340)
Increase arising from supplier HEm R E TR E SR
finance arrangements
Interest expense FEMZ 43,373 4,553 47,926
At December 31, 2023 2023F12831H 1,303,468 61,404 1,364,872
Changes from financing cash BERSREZE
flows 200,921 (22,131) 178,790
New leases MEE - 1,585 1,585
Gain arising from lease term HERRIEEERE
termination = = =
Increase arising from supplier HpEr phE ZBEE £ RGN
finance arrangements
Interest expense B 54,621 2,547 57,168
At December 31, 2024 720245124318 1,559,010 43,405 1,602,415
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The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash

flows is as follows:

HARSRERNARRS AL EE
T -

2023

20234F

RMB'000

ARETF T

Within operating activities L TEE) 2,097
Within financing activities REES) 19,195
Total st 21,292

Based on the supplemental arrangement signed with a major customer,
FAW jiefang, who is also one of the Group's shareholders in December
2023 and 2024, the Group has offered a guarantee that this customer
will receive subsidies related to the hydrogen fuel cell vehicle with
the Group's products embedded in from the government amounting
to RMB252,560,000 before December 31, 2025 and RMB180,880,000
before December 31, 2024. For amount due before December 31, 2024,
RMB56,056,000 has received in 2024 and the remaining is in collecting
process. According to the subsidies policy, such subsidies can be applied
and received once the criteria are fulfilled. The management of the
Group considers that it is highly probable for the customer to collect
such subsidies. In addition, for the amount for which the criteria have
been fulfilled, the application process has already been taken with the
government, and for the remaining amount, management considered
it would be highly probable for the customer to fulfil the criteria in
forthcoming periods. Accordingly, the guarantee provision was assessed

to be minimal as at December 31, 2024.

RFHEERE P — A (7220234 2024
FRAMAREERRE 2 —)EITNER
T AEEEREER - BIZEPH
M2025F12 A31 BAT&20245F12H31H
AREI A EAREBEROEMBELTE
HI BT 8 Bh A R 5 252,560,000 7T & A R ¥
180,880,0007T ° FEFA2024F 12 A31 HATE|
HRRIEmME + AR¥S56,056,0007T2 R
2024 FYRER - FIp S RBINEWFBIEF -
RIEBIEE - — M B T AR R R 5
WEZERE - AEBEEERE  BF
ESEMABMMEEEGES - it - B
MERENRIEM S - BHEBTETRE
B REAKRENS  BEERAE
PRARBEMEELENAIEESRS -
It + 2024F12 A31 B ERBEETGHA
TR o
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38.COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R YT
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

38. 7B

REBRFEREGATERALE

year:
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET ARETTT

Contracted, but not provided for: BERT4) - B RFHR A
Property, plant and equipment W - BB R 80,503 51,827

In addition, the Group had the following commitments provided to

associates and other unlisted investments:

SN - AREE B AR R E A IE ET R
BERHUA T AGE -

2024 2023
20244 20234F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBT T

Contracted, but not provided for: BEETAY - B REHERAE -

Capital injection obligation FEERME

79,362 99,052
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39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

39.FA B

R5

In addition to the transactions disclosed in note 16 to the financial

statements, the Group had the following material transactions with

B RRME 16 MRENR SN
AEERFRNERBYITETATEKR

ZX

related parties during the year:

The Group had the following transactions with related parties

during the year:

BS

RER

JEAS S

EHEERTAATRS

2024 2023
20245 2023%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT
Associates: il YN
Sales of goods or services HEERIRG
Aerospace Hydrogen Energy AagE (L8 REERAR
(Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd. 7,761 24,482
Shanghai Taihydrochen Energy Technology Co, Ltd. EERARERREARAR 543 1567
Hangzhou Shuxin Bee Network Technology Co,, Ltd. MBI E BN R B R AT 383 =
Total @it 8,687 26,049
Provision of rental service RUHERS
Shanghai Bees Refire Energy Technology Co., Ltd. LEMEEERNEERAT 87 -
Jiaqing (Shanghai) Industrial Co, Ltd. Ea (L8 EXBRAR - 190
Shanghai Pegasus Hydrogen Technology Co, Ltd. BN EERAR - 12
Total @it 87 202
Purchase of goods or services BEBERIRS
Jiaging (Shanghai) Industrial Co,, Ltd * ER(EE)EERRAA = 9,031
Plastic Cloud Technology (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd. BERE ORINERDA 6,645 5,263
Shanghai Taihydrochen Energy Technology Co, Ltd. FERERERREERAR 438 852
Total @it 7,083 15,146




2024 %% | ANNUALREPORT2024 | REFIRE

39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

39.FA B

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R YT
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

X5 (%)

2024 2023
20245 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETTT
An associate: /NI
Disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BE &R
Shanghai Pegasus Hydrogen FEEWSEREBRAT
Technology Co., Ltd. - 937
A joint venture: HEdE
Purchase of goods or services HEEmoURG
Guohong REFIRE Technology Co., Ltd. EREEEBREIR
B BRAF = 10,615
Key management personnel: FEEEASR -
Advances of borrowings and interest BN R EEK
Ma Audrey Jing Nan Y - 142
Government subsidy to be paid JE A BUR #6 B
Zhai Shuang 2 50 -

These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms

and conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.

* The company became a subsidiary since 31 January 2024. Further
details of this acquisition are included in note 35 to the financial

statements.

ZEXSHIRBELEAL T HEHEBNIK
KNG HELT o
*  RZARIE2024F1 A3BEKBHBER

A o WRIREERE — P HEBE R R
R3S ©
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39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

30.FB RS (&)

2024 2023
20245 203F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Associates: /N
Trade related: RHIEA -
Trade receivables: BHREWE -
Current: ViR
Guangdong Hanhe Automobile Co, Ltd. EBRESAEBRAT 1,325 1325
Jiaqing (Shanghai) Industrial Co,, Ltd. =8 (L8 EXERAR - 804
Aerospace Hydrogen Energy (Shanghai) MRS (L) BEERAR
Technology Co,, Ltd. 51,693 50,426
Shanghai Pegasus Hydrogen Technology Co., Ltd. BN RERAR 1,736 1,800
Shanghai Taihydrochen Energy Technology Co,, Ltd. LERaRERREERAR 78 1,609
55,132 55,964
Less: Impairment allowance B R ERE (6,986) (4.971)
Total st 48,146 50993
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets: BNRE - At ERTEREMEE
Jiaqing (Shanghai) Industrial Co,, Ltd. =T (LB EEXERAR - 500
Less: Impairment allowance B ORERE = (50)
Total @it - 450
Trade payables BHENHE
Jiaqing (Shanghai) Industrial Co, Ltd. 28 (LB EXBRAT - 79
Shanghai Pegasus Hydrogen Technology Co,, Ltd. BN RERAR 100 100
Plastic Cloud Technology (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd. BERE (RY) BB AT 1,043 1421
Aerospace Hydrogen Energy (Shanghai) fAEg (L) REERAR
Technology Co,, Ltd. - 1429
Shanghai Taihydrochen Energy Technology Co, Ltd. PEREREREHEERAR 438 -
Total @it 1,581 3,029
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2023
2023
RMB'000
ARETTT
A joint venture: BEBE
Trade payables B SRR RIA
Guohong REFIRE Technology Co., Ltd. BERBIEEBREIR
RHEBERAA 755
Key management personnel: FEEEAE
Non-trade related: ERZZHEE
Prepayments, other receivables and TARTEIE ~ Eofth R FRIE K
other assets HihEE
Ma Audrey Jing Nan 55 mig 142
Other payables and accruals H fth FES FIE R FERT B A
Zhai Shuang B2e =
Total st 142

Trade receivables due from a joint venture and associates are
repayable on credit terms similar to those offered to the major

customers of the Group.

Trade payables due to a joint venture and associates are repayable
within 90 days, which represents credit terms similar to those

offered by the joint venture and associates to their major customers.

All the remaining balances due to related parties were

non-interest-bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand.

All the remaining balances due from related parties were

non-interest-bearing, unsecured and payable on demand.

B KA BLERBEATHES
BB AA R EEBRP R
RIS PRI

BN —RALEENRBERTNES
FEAS 3R EZ, Eé9 AAEE HEZDE
ERBERRRAEIETEFRHMNGE

ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂiﬁiw e

P FE 1S BR B D7 SROA AE BRI AL B
BRRNER Ttéf—

P FE W BR B 07 SROB AE BRI AL B
BERRMBRERIN -
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39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 0.BEEARS (2)
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

Fees e 360 361
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ - & « ZBL R EYEF 5,294 6,373
Performance related bonuses BERRE 12,264 1,090
Share-based payments LARRAD B B RE A ST 3R 143,508 43,069
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B 984 1,126
Total compensation paid to key MESEBAELMNH

management personnel Fri4azE 162,410 52,019
Further details of directors’, the chief executive's and supervisors' EF BeTBRABREZEHEME

emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial statements. — SR BE N I IS TREHIFES ©
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40.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R BT 5
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

40.ZERIETHNEMTA
R RS A ST ARREEMT -

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2024 2024%F
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets Financial assets Financial
at fair value at fair value through assets at
through other comprehensive amortised
profit or loss income cost Total
RARER s i
STABHMN BAREETA RAGTEH
SREE At 2ERENEREE SREE st
Equity Debt
investments  investments
RERE  EERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARMTR ARETn ARETR ARETR
Equity investments designated at fair value through BERANBE ALY
other comprehensive income PEKENRERE - 43,541 - - 43,541
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAABENERNEHEE 180,200 - - - 180,200
Trade and bills receivables EORNEREREE - - 8911 2311094 2,320,005
Financial assets included in prepayments, STABRTIE « K ERER
other receivables and other assets EtEENERAR - - - 132,507 132,507
Restricted cash XR5RE - - - 49 49
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEY - - - 883,356 883,356
Total it 180,200 43,541 8911 3,327,006 3,559,658
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40.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40.REREITHNERMT A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments R EHREENEmITANKEABEN
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) T (&)
2024 (continued) 20244 (#8)
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

R R AR

ATENSRERE

RMB’000

ARBT T

Lease liabilities HEAE 43,405
Trade and bills payables B S ENRIBRENER 873,823
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals s AEAMEMNFIBEREAERNSREE 83,866
Redemption liabilities of a subsidiary —RWBRARIMEREE 10,425
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings s RIRIT REME K 1,559,010

Total “ast 2,570,529
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40.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R YT
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

40.RERIE T WERMT A (&)

REERAREEH M TANKEELD

&
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) T (&)
2023 20234
Financial assets LREE
Financial
assets Financial assets Financial
at fair value at fair value through assets at
through other comprehensive amortised
profit or loss income cost Total
BRAREE RE
AR BRAABEA RAGH2E)
eREE AtRRMENIREE CREE st
Equity Debt
investments  investments
RiERE  ERRE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETE
Equity investments designated at fair value through BERANBE ALY
other comprehensive income PRGN RER = 47656 = - 4765
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRAABEHAERNSREAE 44401 o - = 44401
Trade and bills receivables BHRYWTERERRE - = 30,083 1,957,045 1,987,328
Financial assets included in prepayments, SABATIE - b EYEER
other receivables and other assets EthEENEREE - - - 197,773 197,773
Restricted cash RRHBE - = = 746 746
Cash and cash equivalents BERALZEY - = = 664,510 664,510
Total @t 44401 47,656 30,083 2820274 2942414
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40.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40.REREITHNERMT A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments R EHREENEmITANKEABEN
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) T (&)
2023 (continued) 2023 (#&)
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

bize: S [DWN

AENeRBRE

RMB'000

AR¥EFTT

Lease liabilities HEAE 61,404
Trade and bills payables B S RENRIBRENER 650,741
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals ~ sFAEAMEMNFIBEREAERNSREE 73,181
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTRRIT REMERK 1,303,468

Total 4t 2,088,794
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During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Group, endorsed certain
bills receivable accepted by banks (the “Derecognised Bills") to certain
of their suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers with carrying amounts in aggregate of RMB26,910,374 (2023:
nil). The Derecognised Bills had a maturity of 1 to 12 months at the end
of the year. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments, the
holders of the Derecognised Bills may exercise the right of recourse
against any, several or all of the persons, including the Group, liable
for the Derecognised Bills regardless of the order of precedence
(the “"Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of management, the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards relating
to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full
carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated trade
payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of management, the fair values of the Group's

Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not significant.

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

RER AEBHETHBARAEST
HREBESEERTELOETERER
([BRIEERER]) - UEBEMZEMH
EEESHE  BERILEREZEENEREEA
BAARE269103747T0(2023F : B) - B
RIEERZEREREIZ12@AFH -
RIBCEEER)  ERIEBRERRA AT
T ERERIEFHBERNEBERN —
% ZENEBERIEEREREEATT
FERE(TEESA]  -EEERAB
AEBCEBERCRIEERZENBAR
BABEBKEER - WEEBHRIEERED
RIFEREZEREEE S EMNFENERED
B AEEBEBSSAERIEERZERE
EIZEERIIBRAZBENARTRARESRE
FEEEWE’JH*K?E?E*H# REREE - 1
RE AEBEBESADKRIEERER
E’UA/LE@ET\EK °
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Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, time deposits, trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, lease liabilities and short-term interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. The fair
value of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings approximates to their carrying amounts mainly due to the

floating interest rate.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer. The
valuation process and results are discussed with the audit committee

twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the

fair values:

EREHEGL  RekASFEY X
RERE EHER  BHEUFARE
WRE - St ATENRIE - HARUKRIE R
HEENSREE BHENFTARE
NEE - Gt AEMEN IR RETER
cREE HERBENEHABRTRE
ERN AR EERLREERSE =2
EARELT AN ARE - 5 8RTT
REMERNIERB O A REEREK
E{ERE  EEHRFEFERMAE -

7,

i
=+
b

ofE i

S

AEBPBREIENMBEHLARFTS
BTAAREBEFENBRRREF - M5
REEZXAMBEEARS - REHRER
B BN I ANEEEZD I
BEGERMEANTIEHAE - HER
MBaEASHME KXEEBGFMAX
HEAZBESHUHERERERETIW
AR FEEMBREZA °

TREENBENAABENZIARE
BRZETETHERNRZ S (REXFRH
BERINPAI BN ERAR o BT ARE
BERRALTIDERRR
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The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and unlisted investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss have been estimated using
a market-based valuation technique based on assumptions that are not
supported by observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires
the directors to determine comparable public companies (peers) based
on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate
price multiple, such as price to book (“P/B") multiple and price to sales
("P/S") multiple for each comparable company identified. The multiple is
calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company
by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then discounted
for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences between
the comparable companies based on company specific facts and
circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the corresponding
earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments to measure the
fair value. The directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting
from the valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair values,
which are recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting

period.

The Group has bank acceptance notes issued by banks in Mainland
China measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The Group has estimated the fair value of these bank acceptance notes
by using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market

interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income, management has
estimated the potential effect of using reasonably possible alternatives

as inputs to the valuation model.

December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H
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Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation
of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis
as at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

TXAR2024F K%2023F 1243188/ T
BEfENERTTBERGAEUAREEH
REDITHRE -

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Range value to the input
fhER BEATABRBAE #E MEBHBAENSRE
Financial assets
Equity investments designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
BEERAAEBERTA
Hit2AREORERE
Unlisted equity investments Market approach  Discounts for lack of December 31,2023: 16%t0 30% 1% increase or decrease in multiple would

marketability ('DLOM")

result in increase or decrease in fair value

by RMB675,000.
FELEMRERE mE% B mERAETE 03F 128318 116%Z30%  BEEMKR 1% ERA R EEE MK
([HemERBMmE]) > ARE6750007C ©

December 31,2024:21%t030% 1% increase or decrease in multiple would

result in increase or decrease in fair value
by RMB435,000.

04F12A318 1 21%Z230%  EHEEMER % EERLRER

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

BRARBEFABEHEREE

K Mekiel > A5 435,0007C ©

Private equity fund Market approach  Discounts for lack of December 31,2023: 16% t030% 1% increase or decrease in multiple would

marketability (‘DLOM")

result in increase or decrease in fair value

by RMB45,000.
RERERS ik B mERBETE 203F12A318 116%230%  BEEMEA M wBER AR EEEMS
((emmratng)) W ARHE450007T °

December 31,2024:21%t0 30% 1% increase or decrease in multiple would

result in increase or decrease in fair value
by RMB180,000.

2004F 128318 1 21%Z30%  BEEMKR 1% ERA R EEE MK

> ARE180,0007T
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42.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at December 31, 2024

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R BT 5
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

REMITEANDIABERIAE
EE& (&)

QIREEER

THRIAAEEEHRITANOAEBEANE
B4R :
BARBEENEE -
20245128318
Fair value measurement using
ERAUTRENAAEENE
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
REE EXTHRE EAFTEE
5 HRE WAE BAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
14 #28 #3® Mgt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFR ARBT R ARET R ARBTR

Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFALZMZE

other comprehensive income YmreREE - 8,911 43,541 52,452
Financial assets at fair value through RAAEETABRN

profit or loss SREE 91,035 = 89,165 180,200
Total @5t 91,035 8,911 132,706 232,652




Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited | L& 2 EREBMBRHERATE

December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group's financial instruments: (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at December 31, 2023

TRAAREESRITANARBEFS

B : (&)

BALEBETEBHEE (&)

202312 A31H

Fair value measurement using

ERAATREN AR EETE

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
NER BERAEE  EATABER
mSHRE BAE BWAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1} EPE] F3R @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at fair value through other BRAAEEFALZE
comprehensive income hmreREE = 30,083 47,656 77,739
Financial assets at fair value through profitorloss &AL BET AR
SREE - - 44401 44,401
Total w5t - 30,083 92,057 122,140

The Group had no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at

December 31, 2024 (2023: nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for

both financial assets and financial liabilities (2023: nil).

R2024%F 128318 REBUWERQAAE

BFfENERALE (2023F : &) -

RER REeMEERESREEMS @ 51
MEE MY EEBEAAEBENE T
fmeE A\ sl 348 (20234F ¢ ) o
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The Group's principal financial instruments, comprise bank loans, other
interest-bearing borrowings, and cash. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and
bills receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks

and they are summarised below.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's long term debt obligations with a
floating interest rate. The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost

using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts.

As at December 31, 2024, if the interest rate of bank and other
borrowings had increased/decreased by 50 basis points and all other
variables were held constant, the loss before tax of the Group, through
the impact on floating rate borrowings, would have increased/decreased
by approximately RMB3,776,000 (2023: RMB3,067,000).

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

AEENTESCHIABRERITEN  H
M BEFNARRE -  BEEBMTANT
EANEATEENKEERES - A%
BEECHRAMBEREERARE WS
MERELNE S EWIAREWREE A
NEZRNFARENRE

AEEEMTAELANTIERRANEME
% HMERR - ERERMERB IR o
ExgEMiBEEREERARTTER
BREVBCR - B RRER AR T3

AEBEBOMSHNEESHRAKMERER
SENIBNEFARNERBEKREES
B o R B RRZ A B E KA # R X
BREAS ERENBRA -

2024512 A318 - HIRTT REMERE
MEEA " THSOEEBBEMBEEMES
REETE  AEENRBAEEBBYE
A REROFERIEIN RDHARE
3,776,0007T (20234 : AR#3,067,0007T) ©
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The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than
the units’ functional currencies. As the Group's major businesses are in
Mainland China, the majority of the transactions are conducted in RMB.
Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB. The
Group was not exposed to material foreign currency risk during the

reporting period.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. For transactions that are
not denominated in the functional currency of the relevant operating
unit, the Group does not offer credit terms without specific verification

procedures.

The Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as 47.81% at the end
of year 2024 (2023: 44.20%) of the Group's trade receivables were due

from the Group's five largest customers.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based
on past due information unless other information is available without

undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

AEBEEBRXZEEERR - BHERRKE
GBI ABMINEE R AN B ETT
MEEXEE - R AEEELEEBLR
REA - MAZHERHAAREELT -
AEBAHBOEERABAARKE -
RS HE - A& B W & RERINER

& o
N

AEBEERERANEERIFNE =TT
11X 5 - NEBEMNBEKEMA RKIREREK
RETXHINEFPYEBBERAKRER
Froo BESh - 7R SR B4 A4 BE 1 B W R IR A
B o HRWIFABBELEMNTIEER
HENR S - ERBBENZERFNE
AT AEETSREHMERER -

M2024F K - ARAEEHF47.81%(2023
F 1 4420%) W E 5 EIKRGIBAEKRAEE
EREPHIE EALAEEFE —ENE
SRR -

REERRFEEE

TRINRERAREEERRNERER
kEasEERRMO  HEFERRTIE
ERBHER (BEFNLBERAHEN
BRI S E M ERIBR M) R F AP B D 1R 1E
TT

FEFNeRReREENRmARE -
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43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at December 31, 2024

12-month ECLs

Lifetime ECLs

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI IR
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

= ARk (&)

REERRFLEER (&)
7A2024%12H31H

B.erEREEEEREEK(E)

12/8R 25
FHEEERE RHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1EE $2MEE E3MEE L @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®TR ARBT R AR%TR ARET T
Trade and bills receivables* B HREMIER
LES - - - 2,849,844 2,849,844
Financial assets included in STABNFE - At
prepayments, other receivables FEMRFRIE ] E At
and other assets BENGREE
- Normal** —EFE* 132,737 - - - 132,737
- Doubitful** — A EE* - - 4,172 - 4172
Restricted cash XRHRE
- Not yet past due — i ARE 49 = = = 49
Cash and cash equivalents BeRESZEN
— Not yet past due — AR 883,356 - - - 883,356
Total @5t 1,016,142 - 4,172 2,849,844 3,870,158
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Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at December 31, 2023

REERBRFLEEER (&
202312 A31H

)

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12188 24
BHEERE BHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1EE EpliE F3RER A @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Trade and bills receivables* B HRENIER
ES Y - - - 2,447,826 2,447,826
Financial assets included in FTATEAFUR - Hit
prepayments, other receivables FEUHE ] E At
and other assets BENERERE
- Normal** =IEE™ 199,369 = = = 199,369
- Doubitful** — Al - - 3331 - 3331
Restricted cash RRARS
— Not yet past due — AR 746 = = = 746
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEEN
— Not yet past due —RAREH 664,510 = = = 664,510
Total @t 864,625 - 3,331 2,447,826 3,315,782

* For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is

disclosed in note 20.

X%

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other

receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

X%

HNAKEERBOATERENE S B
FAREWRE - ERBERE B R K

FE20EE o

FPATRMNFOR - Rt EERAREMEERN
CREENRAHRBEENRASHEED

1= R B 1568 TR A SRR IR 12 40 -

AIEAE

REZHEERIES] - B SBEEN
ERERPRAIAER]
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The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management of the Group to finance the

operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations of cash flows.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and

other borrowings and lease liabilities.

Due to the Group's supplier finance arrangements, the relevant trade
payables are due to a single counterparty rather than individual
suppliers. This results in the Group being required to settle a significant
amount with a single counterparty, rather than less significant amounts
with a number of suppliers. However, the Group's payment terms for
trade payables covered by the arrangements are either identical to
the payment terms for other trade payables or extended to not more
than 180 days. Management does not consider the supplier finance
arrangements to result in excessive concentrations of liquidity risk
given the payment terms are not significantly extended. Details of the

arrangements are disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,

is as follows:

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H

AEEEZFRE MR SFEYA S EES
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43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43.2REMETEEEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) ST Eh 14 LB (
2024
20245
1to less 2 to less 3 to less
Less than than 2 than 3 than 5 Over
1 year years years years 5 years Total

1FURA 1228 2E3F 3E5E HBiBs5E ast
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AR®Tn ARETR ARETR AR¥Tx

Interest-bearing bank and TERITREMER
other borrowings 1,088,062 460,684 17,720 42,782 - 1,609,248
Lease liabilities HERRE 23,012 24,307 304 - - 47,623
Trade and bills payables BHERNTEBERENRE 801,104 72,719 = = - 873,823
Redemption liabilities of a subsidiary —FHBARMERERE - - 12,825 - = 12,825
Financial liabilities included in STAE AR IR
other payables *RAR 83,866 - - - - 83,866
Total B 2,068,763 484,991 30,849 42,782 - 2,627,385
2023
20035
110 less 2o less 310 less
Less than than 2 than 3 than 5 Over
1 year years years years 5 years Total
15HA 1226F 2E3F 3ESE BRSE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR ARBTRT ARETR
Interest-bearing bank and TERITREMBER
other borrowings 512,617 605918 232,595 19,258 2,555 1,372,943
Lease liabilities HEaE 21,867 21,683 23,238 - - 66,788
Trade and bills payables BHRNTBRENZR 650,741 = = = = 650,741
Financial liabilities included in ST fERFIER)
other payables SRBE 73,181 = = = = 73,181

Total et 1,258,406 627,601 255,833 19,258 2,555 2,163,653
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The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may return capital to shareholders or issue

new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes, within
net debt, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals and lease liabilities, less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to the owners of

the parent.

The Group has established supplier finance arrangements to manage its
working capital, details of which are included in note 24 to the financial

statements.

December 31, 2024 20244 12 A31H
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43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

3.cREAREEEERBE(Z)

RERRRNEERBLERNT :

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET ARETTT

Trade and bills payables B Z P RIE R EN R 873,823 650,741

Other payables and accruals Hib R RIE R ESH B A 140,328 141,315

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERIT R EMIERK 1,559,010 1,303,468

Redemption liabilities of a subsidiary —RKWBATMER & E 10,425 =

Lease liabilities HEaE 43,405 61,404

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReERBEEED (883,356) (664,510)

Net debt B FE 1,743,635 1,492,418

Equity attributable to owners of the parent AR AEEREE 2,036,150 1,824,400

Capital and net debt BARRESFEE 3,779,785 3,316,818

Gearing ratio BEAMGLE 46% 45%
44.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 44. |REFREIE

On 2 January 2025, the Group announce that the Stabilising Manager (on
its own behalf and on behalf of the International Underwriters) partially
exercised the over-allotment option described in the prospectus. This
involves a total of 23,180 H shares (the Over-allotted Shares), which is
equivalent to approximately 0.48% of the total number of Offer Shares
initially available for subscription under the Global Offering before any

exercise of the over-allotment option.

20251 A28 - AEEEMH - BEBK
BIEAN(RERE RRERBEBEAER)HS
TERRERFTMAOBERRE  SRE
23,1808 HAR GEREERL B AR (7)) - MERE
A B RE R TEAI R IREEE TS
AR B E RN B EN470.48%
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COMPANY

45.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R YT
December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

45,75 2 7] B AR R &R

AAFREE RROHBRRRERMT -

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE VYR L 7,192 9,100
Right-of-use assets FREEE 35,713 52,855
Other intangible assets HEtEmpEE 762 1,045
Equity investments designated at fair value BERAABETT AHLM
through other comprehensive income 2EWEHRERE 39,416 42,106
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ZASEBEABTHNEMEE 52,724 24,079
Investments in subsidiaries RIE AR AIEE 3,400,028 3,211,747
Investments in associates REE QR E 106,123 91,232
Total non-current assets EMBEELLE 3,641,958 3,432,164
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories FE 1,522 -
Trade and bills receivables H 5 WRIE kR =R 376,987 412,315
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets ~ FBf 708 « Efh U GRIE R HAib & &E 29,163 35,375
Due from subsidiaries FEUPT B8 A BIFRIE 432,134 488,943
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss R ANBEFABFHNSRHEE 86,235 =
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 627,865 27,060
Total current assets MENEERE 1,553,906 963,693
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R MY EE
December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

45.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

45. 8 DB AR R R (5)

AARBERRNFBRAKRE R M

u)

the end of the reporting period is as follows: (continued)

#
T ()

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEF T
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade and bills payables B R A R EN R 300,218 311,465
Other payables and accruals E R sE R EEA 95,135 23,549
Due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE R 348,934 273,361
Lease liabilities HEAE 18,924 17,859
Total current liabilities MBI A ERE 763,211 626,234
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFE 790,695 337,459
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERTSERE 4,432,653 3,769,623
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EmEaE
Lease liabilities HEAE 22,142 41,067
Deferred income RIEY A = 2,400
Total non-current liabilities EREABERE 22,142 43,467
Net assets FEE 4,410,511 3,726,156
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 86,139 81,311
Reserves G 4,324,372 3,644,845
Total equity RS 1BRR 4,410,511 3,726,156
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Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

RATBFERMRAT
Fair value

reserve

of financial

assets at air
value through

December 31, 2024 2024412 A31 H

Share-based other
Capital and payment comprehensive Accumulated
other reserve reserve income losses Total
BAREE
DRA  FAEMRE
BXR RERN WRNEREE
Hitifw AREE  DAEERE 501 st
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR AR%TR ARBTR ARWMTRT AR¥TR
Balance at 1 January 2023 R2023F1 A1 BRES 3,749,877 106,925 769 (102,902) 3,754,669
Loss for the year FREHE - - - (194492) (194492)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMZABSE:
Changes in fair value of equity investments RAABEMAEMEZE
at fair value through other comprehensive WarREREAAER
income, net of tax B (NkHE) - - (2,398) - (2,398)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FANZEBELSR - - (239) (194,492) (196,890)
Share-based payments UBRH AEROMR - 87,066 - = 87,066
At December 31,2023 and 1 January 2024 R2023F 12831 B R2024F1A18 3,749,877 193,991 (1,629) (297,394) 3,644,845
Loss for the year FRER - - - (261,145) (261,145)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMZHEBE :
Changes in fair value of equity investments BRAREEFALMEELED
at fair value through other comprehensive RERERAEBEEE
income, net of tax (nBRHE) = = (443) = (443)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZEEESRE - - (443) (261,145) (261,588)
Issue of shares BITRR D 601,674 = = = 601,674
Transfer of fair value reserve upon the disposal of REERRAAEEFALMRE
equity investments at fair value through e RER B RERAAEE
other comprehensive income =1 = - 394 (394) -
Share-based payments MR AERERR - 339441 - = 339441
At December 31, 2024 R2024F12A318 4,351,551 533432 (1,678) (558,933) 4324372

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to share capital when the related options are exercised, or be

transferred to retained profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.

BRERBLESREERRITENBEREND
ABE E—TFRRPERRME24 080 B
EMANN RN S BK - ZFCRS N AR R
BATRFBERA - s8R fEm SO MK
HEEEFWE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R MY EE
December 31, 2024 20245 12 A31 H

46.APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 28 March 2025.

46 . #L BT FE SRR

R FERERF2025F3 28 HhES & H#t &
I AT EE o
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Shanghai REFIRE Group Limited
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Website #84F : www.refire.com
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